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0.0 0.35 0.08 0.32
0.0 0.5 0.375 0.085 0.42
0.5 1.0 0.40 0.09 0.52
1.0 2.0 0.425 0.10 0.545

2.0 0.45 0.10 0.57

0.02
2022 31 1,680,093.83
380,779.35 1,886,228.22
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO
PIMCO

0.05
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PIMCO

PIMCO
0.05

PIMCO
PIMCO

PIMCO

152,070.04
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20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
15.315
2038 15
20.315 15.315 2038
20 15
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OECD

CRS

OECD

2014 10 29
CRS CRS
MCAA
60 2016
CRS
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2022
36,558 8.06
21,132 4.66
11,908 2.63
527 0.12
500 0.11
122,883 27.11
30,207 6.66
21,589 4.76
10,345 2.28
9,299 2.05
8,237 1.82
7,850 1.73
7,684 1.70
6,901 1.52
6,869 1.52
6,447 1.42
5,308 1.17
2,012 0.44
1,865 0.41
1,201 0.26
813 0.18
776 0.17
542 0.12
414 0.09
201 0.04
195 0.04
5,727 1.26
1,831 0.40
350 0.08
285 0.06
284 0.06
42 0.01
36 0.01
19 0.00
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48,993 10.81
13,935 3.07
6,023 1.33
4,499 0.99
4,195 0.93
4,278 0.94
2,359 0.52
66,451 14.66
199 0.04
49 0.01
481,720 106.27
28,401 6.27
453,319
62.844 100.00
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30
2022
1 |Charter Communications Operating LLC 2.936 | 2024 5,852,126 5,800,000 5,886,501 .30
2 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.900 | 2027 26 6,297,975 6,300,000 5,702,778 .26
3 |Nomura Holdings, Inc. 1.851 | 2025 16 6,095,769 6,000,000 5,614,369 .24
4 |Aozora Bank Ltd. 1.050 | 2024 5,687,078 5,700,000 5,369,173 .18
5 |Barclays PLC 2.791 | 2024 16 5,340,278 5,300,000 5,316,398 .17
6 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.800 | 2023 11 27 5,300,000 5,300,000 5,172,187 .14
7 |Federal Home Loan Bank 1.100 | 2026 20 5,500,000 5,500,000 5,079,347 .12
8 |Danske Bank A/S 1.171 | 2023 12 5,107,823 5,100,000 5,049,306 1
9 |UBS Group AG 2.362 | 2026 12 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,018,015 .11
10 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.830 | 2027 10 5,500,000 5,500,000 4,969,039 .10
11 |BAT Capital Corp. 3.222 | 2024 15 5,224,015 5,000,000 4,965,034 .10
12 |Ginnie Mae 0.899 | 2051 20 5,116,935 5,129,759 4,771,224 .05
13 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.960 | 2026 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,649,741 .03
14 |Boeing Co. 4.508 | 2023 4,725,915 4,600,000 4,642,834 .02
15 |Federal Home Loan Bank 1.050 | 2026 13 5,000,000 5,000,000 4,605,678 .02
16 |Ginnie Mae 0.899 | 2051 20 4,877,015 4,890,770 4,505,289 .99
17 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.850 | 2027 17 4,900,000 4,900,000 4,428,859 .98
18 |RESIMAC Premier 1.542 | 2052 10 4,428,620 4,428,620 4,401,919 .97
19 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.920 | 2027 26 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,078,186 .90
20 |HSBC Holdings PLC 1.975 | 2025 11 4,013,560 4,000,000 4,010,875 .88
21 |Nordea Bank Abp 1.657 | 2025 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 .88
22 |Federal Home Loan Bank 0.750 | 2026 24 4,300,000 4,300,000 3,965,082 .87
23 |Thermo Fisher Scientific, Inc. 0.797 | 2023 10 18 4,000,000 4,000,000 3,897,536 .86
24 |QNB Finance Ltd. 1.125 | 2024 17 3,999,118 4,000,000 3,820,000 .84
25 |Deutsche Bank AG 0.962 | 2023 11 3,570,667 3,700,000 3,575,558 .79
26 |Boeing Co. 1.433 | 2024 3,500,000 3,500,000 3,372,508 .74
27 |Wells Fargo & Co. 2.025 | 2026 25 3,300,000 3,300,000 3,301,643 .73
28 |Federal Home Loan Bank 1.100 | 2024 11 15 3,400,000 3,400,000 3,265,564 .72
Volkswagen Group of America Finance
29 3.950 | 2025 3,198,560 3,200,000 3,198,560 71
LLC
30 |NextEra Energy Capital Holdings, Inc. 2.064 | 2024 21 3,200,000 3,200,000 3,194,284 .70

2022

2022
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2022

24,770,876 3,433,987 101.50 14,071

2017 31
52,767,817 7,315,202 103.03 14,283

2018 31
109,790,959 15,220,321 104.87 14,538

2019 31
194,300,838 26,935,925 106.12 14,711

2020 31
357,325,045 49,535,971 108.33 15,018

2021 31
299,958,901 41,583,302 106.29 14,735

2022 31
2021 369,539,257 51,229,227 108.18 14,997
10 366,211,361 50,767,881 107.87 14,954
11 361,146,921 50,065,798 107.70 14,930
12 361,003,033 50,045,850 107.75 14,937
2022 350,545,552 48,596,130 107.67 14,926
346,821,900 48,079,920 107.26 14,869
322,817,412 44,752,178 106.47 14,760
308,643,840 42,787,296 106.37 14,746
300,572,852 41,668,414 106.29 14,735
273,452,417 37,908,709 105.75 14,660
271,871,418 37,689,535 105.52 14,628
266,458,681 36,939,167 106.20 14,723
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2,351,943,111 10,061

2017 31
8,298,729,600 10,050

2018 31
9,299,823,921 9,987

2019 31
6,173,046,183 9,902

2020 31
5,451,082,407 10,073

2021 31
4,516,768,886 9,852

2022 31
2021 5,518,706,440 10,054
10 5,591,682,193 10,024
11 5,384,893,516 10,008
12 5,155,639,063 10,006
2022 4,960,957,465 9,997
4,896,769,000 9,958
5,182,365,235 9,878
4,921,962,776 9,866
4,516,816,138 9,852
4,297,869,481 9,792
4,208,359,463 9,757
4,188,321,762 9,803
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2017 31
2018 31
2019 31 53,255,585 5,066,736 100.57 9,568
2020 31 67,759,817 6,446,669 100.86 9,596
2001 a1 75,852,669 7,216,623 102.77 9,778
2022 31 53,917,625 5,129,723 100.63 9,574
2021 76,213,189 7,250,923 102.57 9,759
10 74,149,838 7,054,616 102.27 9,730
11 73,111,444 6,955,823 102.11 9,715
12 73,803,053 7,021,622 102.10 9,714
2022 73,375,237 6,980,920 102.02 9,706
72,400,998 6,888,231 101.64 9,670
65,911,506 6,270,821 100.85 9,595
58,807,112 5,594,909 100.74 9,584
53,943,238 5,132,160 100.63 9,574
55,297,811 5,261,034 100.07 9,521
55,247,782 5,256,274 99.85 9,500
53,760,543 5,114,778 100.45 9,557
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100

10,000
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B EELEEOWR (20224885051

(=R U S HED (ERHEAE 0y (EMREALLE )
FEBERIEY 417% ¥ 32.1% HEN 100.0%
THEEEEY 2.88% o 108% | | A=RALSUPRL 0.0%
B =352 0025 Bx 4.7% b E Sl B 4P 0.0%
FEIHS AA Eay 4.3% AFURAIR 0.0%

257 % | |28 ~0.0%
0t ada% | | BEE -0.0%
ZOf - 0.0%

wEER JPROEBERTY. O
NERAIC.AISA~NZBN T
BHEFLEVARL. RELISZ
(o Zigail) Tz R FILTEUREILE

VDR~ TERLET,

GBS (2D 9—RUREHEe) R/ B UM *2)
AAA 55.0% WO weming BRI
A 7.1% 05% 1 ik e
A 36.1%

BBE 0.7%

BB 0.9%

BLE 0.1%
jiik i) 0.0%

G E (i ERil )

i SIS 2—#tv| mEs w79— @ | wee | pEes
1 | CHARTER COMM GPT LLC/CAP 443% | 20240201 | mmEtsm *E | BBB- | 21%
2 | ADZORA BANK SR UNSEC 105% | 2024/9/9 |  wAmH® 8% | Bee+ | 20%
3 | BARCLAYS PLC SR UNSEC FRN 4.30% |2024/5/16|  mAEGER mm | A | 20%
4 | DANSKE BANK A/S 144A 117% (20231211 mABEW | Fuv-7| A | 19%
5 | BOEING CO SR UNSEC 451% | 2023/5/1 | mARH® wE | eeB | 1.7%
6 | GNR 2021-122 FA SOFR 30ALIB+40BP | 2.46% |2051/7/20| E—7—JWE | *E | AAA | 1.7%
7 | GNR 2021.97 FA 30ALIB+40BP 246% |2051/6/20] E—4—-YM& | KE | AAA | 1.6%
8 | BAT CAPITAL CORP SR UNSEC 3.22% |2024/8/15|  BAEISEH mm | BEB+ | 1.6%
9 | NORDEA BANK ABP SR UNSEC 144A SOFR| 3.26% | 2025/6/6 | WRBEM | 743K AA | 1.5%
10 | HSBC HOLDINGS PLC SR UNSEC 295% |2025/3/11|  GAmHR mE | A+ | 15%

w1 NS, SEPH, L—Fa—3, JewFHOEOERSL, SAPHOREFETERLTUVET. ESHIC R EMTRnsE
HiEREEWEOEFRALTWEY. FOEtsR. T— 9B ERm T 77/ EFEH LT LS HEI SR SCESEREN =1
ERELIEOTHEY. 7P RICRSEREATESUES A TR, EBAEBEMELIC LT PIMCOOE AT HE L R M
BEERRNETCESBEICSATRELTLET.

#®2: R EARSSHESHCE TSNS TT.

83 MEEECHLT. —BEEEEES R FLVEV BRSSO R TEESYEUET. KR SRR REICHT
AHETY.

w3 ERSREESOEN EN0SERERRLTLET,
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319,663.840 75,612.492 244,051.348
(319,663.840) (75,612.492) (244,051.348)
474,545.275 206,442.167 512,154.456
(474,545.275) (206,442.167) (512,154.456)
1,122,566.281 587,802.245 1,046,918.492
(1,122,566.281) (587,802.245) (1,046,918.492)
1,501,616.986 717,612.501 1,830,922.977
(1,501,616.986) (717,612.501) (1,830,922.977)
2,869,597.921 1,401,978.287 3,298,542.611
(2.,869,597.921) (1,401,978.287) (3,298,542.611)
1,066,728.551 1,543,132.694 2,822,138.468
(1,066,728.551) (1,543,132.694) (2,822,138.468)
316,834.453 83,074.972 233,759.481
(316,834.453) (83,074.972) (233,759.481)
810,474.837 218,499.580 825,734.738
(810,474.837) (218,499.580) (825,734.738)
617,414.043 511,980.377 931,168.404
(617,414.043) (511,980.377) (931,168.404)
98,733.129 406,489.661 623,411.872
(98,733.129) (406,489.661) (623,411.872)
240,039.008 322,317.176 541,133.704
(240,039.008) (322,317.176) (541,133.704)
210,778.060 293,445.751 458,466.013
(210,778.060) (293,445.751) (458,466.013)
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() () ()

() () ()
530,693.000 1,162.000 529,531.000
(530, 693.000) (1,162.000) (529,531.000)
312,815.000 170,511.000 671,835.000
(312,815.000) (170,511.000) (671,835.000)
489,065.000 422,801.000 738,099.000
(489,065.000) (422,801.000) (738,099.000)
159,045.000 361,349.000 535,795.000
(159,045.000) (361,349.000) (535,795.000)
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4.7

10

4.7

USA USA PATRIOT ACT The U.S. Bank

Secrecy Act
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60

NYSE
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NYSE
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BMA
BMA

2001 100

31

5,000 1972 Exchange Control

Act 1972 BMA

75

100
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2020 2021 31
2021 2022 31

131

23 103

2022
31 UFJ 138.63
95.14
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2022 31
2022 31

481,769 66,788

0 0

644 89

1,159 161

0 0

2,824 391

0 0

27,445 3,805

TBA 557 77

275 38

1,631 226

0 0

516,304 71,575

18,845 2,612

25,856 3,584

346 48

1,162 161

9,482 1,314

TBA 1,115 155

1 0

1,620 225

4,151 575

0 0

0 0

123 17

0 0

0 0

28 4

152 21

0 0

104 14

62,985 8,732

453,319 62,844
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498,531 69,111
0 0
0 0
(20) &)
0 0
38,678 5,362
35,110 4,867
299,959 41,583
536
458
2,822
72.19 10,008
100.63 9,574
76.58 10,616
9,852
106.29 14,735
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2022 31

6,886 955
0 0
6,886 955
196 27

160 22
1,324 184
220 30

146 20
1,520 211
44 6

37 5

300 42

147 20

5 1
4,099 568
2,787 386
(4,667) (647)
0 0
7,046 977
(16,161) (2,240)
149 21
(13,633) (1,890)
(21,852) (3,029)
0 0

418 58
1,928 267
) €H)
(19,513) (2,705)
(33,146) (4,595)
(30,359) (4,209)

0 0
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2022 31
2,787 386

(13,633) (1,890)

(19,513) (2,705)

(30,359) (4,209)

0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0

. (96,952) (13,440)
(127,311) (17,649)

580,630 80,493

453,319 62,844
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2022 31

79.23 10,984
@) 0.26 36
(7.30) (1,012)
(7.04) (976)
72.19 10,008
(b) (8-89)
(© (2.08)
38,678 5,362
0.90
0.88
0.34
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2022 31

91.60 12,699
(a) 0.41 57
(15.43) (2,139)
(15.02) (2,082)
76.58 10,616
() (16.40)
© (2.19)
35,110 4,867
0.77
0.75
0.47

0.01
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2022 31

108.33 15,018
() 0.36 50
(2.40) (333)
(2.04) (283)
106.29 14,735
(b) (1.88)
299,959 41,583
0.93
0.90
0.33

0.01
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2020 FASB LIBOR
Accounting Standards Update ASU 2020-04
ASU 2020-04 2020 12 2022 12 31
2021 LIBOR LIBOR 2023
30 LIBOR
ASU

NYSE
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350 2,268
350 1,028
14,130 45,088
239 447
1,133 240
16,277 31,194
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5,000
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2022 31 2022 31 2022 31 2022 31
4 419 3 279 210 7,920
4,311 78,919
@3 (3,976) @)  (2.650) 73)|  (21,334)
(10,660)|  (194,595)
Gl 3.557) o) (2,371 (363)]  (13,414)|  (6,349)| (115,676)
2022 31 2022 31 2022 31 2022 31
52 2,883 33 351 257 5,417
140 3,913
4 290
20 1,337
8 470
234 2,062
18 575
(113) (6,260) @as2)| (1,937) 327)|  (6,836)
(205) (5,868)
(4) (327)
Q@ (1,800)
@7 (2,048)
(2,396)|  (28,876)
(53) (1,661)
(61) (3,377) (2,298)|  (31,933) 149)  (1,586) @0 | @,419)
2022 31
159 11,935
140 14,645
30 2,840
11 1,055
211 18,635
1,066 115,089
361)]  (26,926)
(250)]  (26,145)
@163)]  (14,550)
(22) (2,219)
9|  (25,393)
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(1,016)]  (96,952)
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US GAAP
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2022 31

HE s BE
CFuArh (4 RUfrh

L B0TE doe 10,25,/ 02002 Al ] 5 35

AerCap Ireland Capital DAC

L. 150% dwe 10./29,/2023 5 2,700 T B

1. B50M% doe 10,720,/ 3024 2, 000 I, 876

Air Lease Corp,

2. 7a0% dwe 01715/ 3023 ] 4%

Aircastle Lid

4. 400% due 09,725,/ 0023 1 B0l

B O00% dus 4,01/ 1, J0d 1111

Ally Financial, Inc.

&, 050% dwe 06,05, 3023 1, 200 1,201

Aczora Bank Lid

1. 0500 e 09,100, 2024 5. 700 B, 369

Aroundtown 5. A

4. B00% dwe 06,14,/ 2025 AL 200 142

Avolen lioldiegs Fonding Led.

. BI5% duwe 02/15/2005 i M0 obo

B, 125% dwe 10,/01,/2023 100 1)

B, 500 dwe 01/ 15,/2023 500 50

Banee Bilbao Vizeays Argentarin 5 A

0, 8754 duoe 0918/ 3023 )] Ti6

Banghok Bank PCL

&, 875 dwe 09,/27,/2022 00 201

Bank of America Corp.

1, B04% due O,/ 2006 1. GO 1, o2

2. B16% duoe 07/21/2023 B0 500

Barclays FLC

L B55% due 0615/ Al 1, DO T8

Z.790% duoe 05186, § &, 300 &, 316

ENP Paribas 5. A

3. 37E% due 01700,/2025 i o 378

. B00% doe DL 10,2024 1, 300 1, 305

BOC Aviation Led

2, 090% dwe 09,26,/ 2023 1, 000 1. 001

= 750% dwe 09,18,/2022 200 200

BOC Aviation USA Corp.

1. B25% doe 04209/ 2004 i) am

Brandywine Operating Partnership LP

& G50% dwe 02152023 500 A2

Canter Fitzgerald LP

4, BTSN doe 05012024 T 1,011

B, S00% dwe 06,/17,/2022 BO0 BOI

Citigromp, Inc.

& 245% dwe 10,/27,/2023 ALY 2, 500 2102

26448 due 051770024 ] 2, 500 2, 54

26000 due D6,/01,/3024 00 300

N0 Global Fundirg

L B50% doe 0006,/ 2025 el | ] 111

Crodit Agricole 5 A

L B84% doe 03/22,/2024 1, 400 I, 406

Credit Sulsse Groap AG

1. 355 due OF/08, M0 Al 500 358
i 1. GO0 1 807

1, DO 937

2 60T doe 12/14,/0003 1, 000 oy

Danske Bask ASS

L IT1% duwe 1208/ 5023 8, 100 &, 044

1. B63% due 09,712,200 00 o903

3. B75% due 09, 00 201

5 3TB% dwe 01,/12,5M024 1 716

Deutsche Bank AG

0, BOE% due 05/Z8/0024 (o) L] 474

0. 962% dwe 11/08,/2023 3, TO0 3, 576

2 112% doe 00/30/2003 Al A 287

2 600% due 11/16, 2 § 00 301

2. 780% doe 02/27/2023 7 T
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2022 31

Lo gL L]

CERLE [T #AE)
& S50 dwe 027272023 5 1. 100 3 1, 108
FS KER Capital Corp.
L. G5O duwe 10122024 400 372
G4 Global Punding Trust
L. B2E% dwe 00/15,/2006 400 65
Galdesn Sachs Group, Ine.
0, 925% doe 10721 2024 1, 500 1, Ha
1 20% duoe 12/09,/2026 600 SHS
2, 184% doe 07/24/2023 400 3549
2. 200% duoe 05,/16,/2023 Al 2. =0 1, 504
22568 due 02/23,/0023 4 1, DO i
2, S05% due 06,/05,°2023 1. 00D 1, B0
2. GEE% due 1028,/ 2027 200 202
Hana Bank
1. B53% due 06,13,/ 2024 500 501
L. G62% due 10/02,2002 1. 7O 1. 02
HSHE Boldings PLC
L 5754 due 03/11,/2025 4. 00 4,011
2 100% duoe 0218,/ 3024 AL 3. BCHY 2, 585
3, 003 doe 11/2/2023 5 L1 B00
ING Groep BY
1. 565 due 04012027 1+ 200 1, 176
2 196% due 0528/ 006 2,400 2,420
Intermational Lease Finamce Corp
5. 876N duee (8150022 1. 000 1, 005
JPlorgan Chase k Co.
I, Z86% duwe 09,/32,/2007 1. o0 1,251
2, 074% due 07./23,/2024 1. 200 1, 24
LensePlan Corp. NV
I BTEN due 10240024 600 BEZ
Lloyds Banking Group FLC
1, 480% dwe 03,/20,/3023 Al =, B0 I, 798
2 007% due 10/07,/2023 3 300 00
Mitsubishi HC Capital, Ime.
2 652% duoe 04190232 1. BO0 1, 302
Mitsubiski UF] Financial Growp, Inc.
L83 due 1001,/ 2024 Al 450 324
Mizuhe Finaneial Groep, Ine.
1. B25% due 09/11/2022 $ 500 anl
L. BET dwe 08/13,/2023 1, 500 I, 502
L. TEI% dwe 07192023 AUy 1, 000 T2
L ST due (7/10,/2024 5 500 B2
2. 154% dwe 05/25,/2004 2400 2, 39
Morgnn Stanley
1 BB2Y% duwe (4117/2025 1. 000 I, 001
Raticewide Building Society
&, THE% duoe 05,08, 2024 Ly (4]
RatWest Group PLC
L 516% duwe 06,/25,/2024 1. 000 1, DG
NatWest Markets PLC
1. 571% dwe 03,22,/0005 500 a2
Romura loldings, Inc.
L 850% due 07.16,/2025 B, 000 B, 614
3200 due 002273027 00 640
2, BB doe 01/16,2005 1. o0 I, 262
Nordea Bank Atp
1. BETS duoe 06,06, 2025 (b} 4. 000 4, b0g
2, 5384 due 08/30,/2023 1, 300 1, 308
DRIX Corp.
2, S00% due 07182022 781 TEZ
Park fercspace Holdimgs Led
4. 500% due 03./15,/2023 o0 300
525004 doe 08,15, 0002 3. 100 3, 107
Piper Sandler Cos,
B 2000% dwe 10/16,/2023 600 B
Q4 Finance Ltd.
1. J25% due 06/17/2024 4. 000 &, B0
ZOATE duoe 032150024 BOD B
ZHTS doe 025012013 Al G20 M7
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2022 31

WS i

(F i [T ML)
Santander Holdings USA, Inc.
00 doe 0L/ 18,2023 3 1. 50O 3 1, 503
Santander UK Group Holdiege PLC
1 CH0 doe 00/15,/0005 4, 100 2,007
E3T0% due 00505,/ I024 1. 100 1, 100
S84 Tower Trust
T BHO% duoe 10,708/2024 1, 000 1, 001
5L Groon Operwting Partnership LP
B, 2500 doe 10/15,/0002 1, 500 1,302
Societe Generale 5. A
LT doe 00,/21,/0006 2. 100 aoe
2, G25% doe 012253025 1. GO0 I, 540
T ETE% due 05,/28,/0004 50D 2]
4. 2500 doe 09,14,2003 500 B05
Standard Chartersd PLC
L710% due 102372005 & D00 2, 550
2. 3168 doe 0330,/ I006 1. 00 1,812
&.-T85% due 06/21/2005 300 19
3. BE5Y doe 08715,/2024 500 a0
Smitomo Mitsui Trust Bamk Ltd.
0, B00% due 06,16,/ 2024 500 471
UES AG
1, 595% due 02/26/ 06 ALD T A
UBS Group AG
Z362% doe 06/12/ 3006 § 5, D00 B, 018
Wells Fargo & Co
2. 025% doe 04/25/2006 &, 400 & B2
Woori Bank
. 156% dwe 02,/01,/3023 1. BO I, B4

142, GO6

T=Bleven, Inc.
0, 625% dwe 02102003 BDD TEY
0 B0 doe 02/10,/2024 (0] a7
Barry Callebaut Services NV
B, 5000 doe 06/15,/0003 B0 B3
BAT Capital Corp.
. 200% duoe 08/15,/2002 1. &G 1, 064
3 Z22% due 08515/ 2024 5, 000 4, 65
Bayor U.S. Finsnce IT LLC
1. EOEK doe 12/15,/0003 1, 500 1, 206
3 BIE% due 12/15/0023 400 L 11s]
Berry Glebal, Inc
[, 500 due 02,15,/2024 1. 00 1. 337
4, BTE% due O7/15,/0006 1. 400 1379
Beoaing Co.
LoAS3% duoe 0204, 2024 3. 500 3.373
L BIE% doe 06/15/2003 700 B9l
4. BOEN dwe 06013023 4. 1500 4, 543
O Industrial Capital LLC
1. 5500 dwe 07,02/ 0003 400
¥ Industrial KV
4. B00% due 08/15/3023 200 203
DAE Funding LLG
1. 5500 doe 08,/01,/0024 1. 300 I 11B
Pajmler Trucks Finonce Korth deerica LLC
L135% dwe 127514,/2023 1. D00 Eri]
L 24A2% doe 121372024 1. 00 G
Dell Intermational LLC
5. 450% doe 06/15,/2003 BOD 216
Enorgy Transfer LP
B 000K dwe 10,01,/ 2022 300 301
Ford Mator Credit Co. LLC
. 9759% due 08,03,/ 2002 1. 100 1. 101
& 0BT doe 00002003 pLL i) 108
FER doe 05,04,/ 2003 400 Kain)
3, 350% dwe 11,/01/2002 1. 600 1. 598
EET0N doe 1071750003 il i
4, 140% duwe 02515/ 2023 450 451
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4, 260 dwe 08/20,/2002
General Mills, Inme

G A10% doe 1015,/ 2022
General Motors Financial Co,, Ino,
L 52 dee 10/17/2023

3, 2600 dwe 01,/05,/2023

3 T00% due 0500,/2023

4. 150% dwe 06,°19,/3023

B 100% doe OL/17,/2024

5K Conmumer Healthcars Capital L5 LLC
& 02AR duoe 002470024

HCA, Inc.

B, DOO% dwe 0615,/ 2024

Hyatt Hotela Corp.

L. 300% doe 105012023

1. 637% dwe 10,/01,/2023
Brundai Capital Aserica

0, B75% due 06.14,/2024

1. 1508 doe 11710/ 2022

1. 250% doe 09,13,/2023

I 578 due 02/10,/2053

3. 000% due 06,/20,/2022

5. 750 duoe (4062023
rundai Capital Services, Inc,
3 000K duee (824,022
Inparial Brands Finance FLC
& 125% doe 07,/26.,/2024

& GO0 dwe 02/11,/2023

&, B00% due 0726,/ 1006

JOE Peat’s KY

0. B00% doe 08/24,/2004

Kraft Helnz Foods Co.

2, 2% doe 08/10,/2022

Lennar Corp.

d. 7ok doe 10152022
Magnllanes, Inc.

2. 258% due 0315,/ 0024
BB due 0315,/ 0024

F. TEE% due 03,/15,°2025
Microchip Technology, Ine.

0. 583% due 09,/01,/2024

Mylan, Inc.

4. 2008 doe 11/20,/2023

Nissan Motor Acceptance Co. LLC
1. BEEY due 0828,/ 2022

1, Gi1% duoe 0713, 20022

2. 6000 doe 09,28/ 002

& 876 dwe 09,/21/2023

NP BY

4. BTE% doe 05/01,2024
Pacific National Finance Pty Ltd
G, 000% dwe 45072023

FELY Capitnl, Ine.

& 500% duwe 03,/16,/2023

SARIC Capital IT BY

4, D00 dwe 10102003

Sabire Pass Ligquefaction LLC
5. 70 due 05/15,/2024

58 Hymiz, Ine.

L 000% dwe 011972024

SMAC Avistion Copital Fimsnce DMC
3. 000% due 0715,/ 0022
55500 doe 04150004

4, 126% dwe 07/15/2013

T 5YMEX Corp.

1. 25006 o 0800, 2024

Thormo Fisher Scientific, Inc.
0, T97% dwe 10/18,/2023

L 215% doe 10/18,/2024
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Vibware, Inc,
L 000 doe 08,715, 2024 5 1, D0 5 G46
Volkswagen Group of America Finamee LLC
& G50% doe 06/06,/2025 (b} 3. M0 3, 199
BS, 342
ATET, Inc.
L0 due 06190003 AT B0 |
Ausgrid Financs Pry Led
L FO2% doe 10,030,/ 2024 00 144
L GoE% doe 02505,/2024 B 304
& T50% dwe 10030,/2024 5O 356
5, B50% dae 06012023 § BOO0 503
CenterPoint Enérgy Resources Corp,
E110% dwe 00022023 T 746
Charter Commmications Operating LLC
I G06% due 027012024 5, ROO B, &87
Cloco Power LLC
L 326% doe 06/15/0023 500 e
ConocoPhillips o,
L-128% dwoe 03708,/ 20024 1, KOO 1, 780
Enel Finance International KV
I, 650% dwe 09,10,/ 2024 1, 120 I, 4
Iberdrols Internatiosal BV
B B10% duoe 03,15,/2025 200 213
Israel Elsotric Corp. Ltd
G, B76% duoe 062172023 A00 1]
Korea Scuthern Powsr Co. Lid
1. BA2% due 10730,/ 2024 AUy 3. 00 2155
NextEra Energy Capital Boldings, Inc.
Z.064% duwe 0G,/21./0024 5 3, 200 3, 194
OGE Energy Corp.
0. 703% doe 05,/26,/2023 B0 TE2
Pacific Gas & Elestric Co.
L 700% doe 11/15/2023 B0 485
& 250% dwe 06,15,/2023 {0 100
00 due 08515,/ 2024 200 196
3. Ta0% doe 02152024 ([L1) G
3. B50% dwe 11/15/2023 100 160
4, 250% doe 08,/01,/2023 0 02
Ssudi Arabisn 01 Co.
1. 250% due 11,/24/2023 00 195
SES B A
& 600K due O4/04,/2023 400 40k
5K Telecoa Co. Litd
£ TA0% dioe M16, 0003 1. GO0 L 7
Southern Californie Edison Co,
LAITE dee 04,01,/2024 1, D00 i)
Sprint Coomunications, Ime.
6. D00 dwe 11/15,/2022 400 A6
Sprint Corp.
T 125% dwe 06,15,/ 2024 1K 106
T-Mobile USA, Ine.
. B00% doe O415/2025 o0 208
Yerizon Commmications, Imc.
2 511% due 05,/15,/2025 0 302
S =
bin vinag 251, 638
(EefBINEE 3268, MT)
Dsuphin, Pennsylvanis, Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency Revenue Bonds, Serles 2006
L 314% doe 10,/25,/2006 01 194
bR e 189
(BRIReE $108)
Fannie Mas
1. BOE% duwe 03,/25/M038 EO 82
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LRy (T M)
Federal Home Loan Hapk
0, 7500 doe 02,24,/ 2006 % 4, 300 5 3, 965
0. B00% due 11,/27/2023 5, 300 B, 172
0L B30% doe 02102027 (f) o, o00 i, 969
0. 850% dwe 02/17/2027 4, 900 4, 429
0, 900% dwe D226,/ 2027 (b 6, 300 5, 703
0, 5208 doe 02/26,/ 2027 1. 500 1, 078
(0, 960% dwe 03,05,/2006 (f) B, (00 I, Gal
L 000% dwe 03,23, 2028 1. 365 I, 265
L. 000% doe O7/27/2028 3. 400 3. 137
1. 050% duwe 08132026 (1) o, (oD 4, 606
L100% doe 11152024 . A00 3, 266
L. 100% due 08203006 (1) 5, bog B, 0749
Froddie Mac
0, RO e 10,27/ 2026 1. 500 1, 368
0. B05% dwe 03/15/2007 b6 557
0, B55% dwe 01,/15,/2040 376 aTa
Z 5000 doe . 10,25,/ 2048 157 150
&, D00% dwe 09,/25,/3045 ] et
Ginnie Mao
0. e duoe 06,/20,/M0561 4, tal 4, 505
0, BO9 due 07202051 5. 130 4,771
0, S18% due 03,20,/ 2061 47 7
LTS dwe 11,20,/ 2067 BG5S G5
1. 138% due 08,730,/ 2066 G2 62
L 245% due 06,/20,/2051 2707 R 5]
1. 2388 dwe 07,/20/2068 53 a3
1. 288% doe 11/20// 2068 12 2
5000 doe 01,/20,/2049 Gl 54
T 500% due 10,/20,/2049 ¥l 67
Ginnie Mae, TBA
L B00% dwe O7/21/2062 (bi 00 B2
SBT3 e
(eI 571, 800)

& EEMR 1
510 Asset-Backed Trust
o 240% dwoe 06,/25,2061 750 713
ACE Securities Corporaticn Homo Equity Loan Trust
1. 786% duoe 04,/25,/2004 265 253
AREIT Trust
1. G554 due O7/17,/2026 2, 000 1,538
2, 166% doe 0914/ 2005 (BE] 11
3 150% dwe 04.15./2037 -7 &0
Atrium Hotel Portfolio Trust
1. B25% doe 06/15,/20035 T00 BE2
Avon Finance Mo, 2 PLC
LG4TS due 09,20,/ 2048 G 1, 683 1, 585
BAMLL Cosmorcial Morignge Securities Trust
1. 925% due O4/15,/2036 i 400 502
T 075% doe 0315,/ 2034 b e
Boar Stearms Adjustable Ente Mortgnge Trost
2, 612% dwoe 0425,/ 2033 1 4
2 6434 due 08/25/2003 16 15
Bear Stearms Asset-Backed Securities I Trust
0, 790% dwe 09,25, 2004 it | HRL)
Benst Mortgage Trust
L. 525% due 03,15,/ 2038 2, 000 1, 841
Brass No.8 PLC
S010% dwe 11006,/ 3068 a9 L)
BUAY Mortgage Trust
1254 doe 09/15,/2036 500 451
BX Trust
L. 575% due 01/15,/2004 2. 400 2,334
Canterbury Finance Ko, 1 FLC
I 200% doe 05,16/ 20565 GHI® T46 943
CLKY Trust
I 004% dwe 11/15,/2008 § 400 .
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AR i

CFERLE Ea Lok
Commercial Mortgage Trust
LoAT3% duoe 0310,/ 2046 5 32 § 32
Countrywide Asset-Backed Cortificates Trust
1. 586% duoe 08,25,/2006 48 17
Cradit Suisse Mortgage Capital Trust
L. 085 dwe 07,/25,/2058 445 427
L. G25% dwe 07,15,/2002 o0 263
1. TOE% dwe 12/27/3060 938 B
2, 688% dwe 03,25,/2069 BO1 T8
Dilosk RMBS No.4 DAC
0. 382% due 02/30,/2060 EUR 272 2, B3
Earopean Loan Conduit No. 36 DAC
L 000% due 02/17,/2030 L0 I, 062
Extended Stay America Trust
1. 855% doe 07./15,/2008 i 2. 183 2,72
Finance Aserica Mortgage Loan Trast
1. 831% dwe 08./25/0004 133 I3
Finsbury Square PLC
1. 528% due 03/16,/2070 Lrii 1, 7o 2. 2508
L. 738% due 12./16,/2069 (i) B4
Firstmac Mortgage Funding Trust Mo 4
1. BAZ% due 06082049 i a7 a7
Fremcot Home Loan Trust
L 741% due 01,/256/3005 ] 157
GCAT Trust
L 001% doe 05,725,/ 3006 1, 000 25
Z. 55 dwe 12/27/2066 1. 8 I, 018
GCT Commercial Mortgege Trust
L. G75% duwe 02,/15,/2038 B0 L]
G5 Mortgage-Eacked Securitiss Corp. Trust
L 7505 doe 12/25, 2060 & 104 2, 024
G5 Mortgagoe-Backed Securities Trast
L 434% due 12,/25,/2051 370 351
L oE34% duoe 02/25/2062 w18 871
Hawksnoor Mortgage Fundieg FLC
L 703 doe 06,25, 2063 oy B20 i3
Hemoward Opportunities Fund 1 Trast
1. 65T due 03,725,065 5 41 44
LY Trust
L. B7E% doe 11,15,/ 2008 310 302
Impac QB Trust
1. 256% due 05,725,/ 2035 Tae 748
I, 6468 dwe 03/25/2005 100 06
Jrorgen Chase Comsercinl Mortgage Securities Trust
2. 4500 dwe  12/15,2031 212 210
2 5605 due 06,15,/2035 155 73
4. 128% doe 07,05,2031 1, Don LE
JPilorgen Mortgage Trust
L. 434% doe 02,25,/ 2052 5 338
3. 3004 doe 05,/25,/2050 114 110
Legacy Mortgage Asset Trust
L B75% de 10,25,/ 2068 o0 a7y
2, 2500 dwe 07,/25,/2087 351 342
Lemdon Wall Mortgage Capital FLC
0. 952% dwoe 11/15/2049 GHP A |
Leng Beach Mortgege Loan Trust
L SB1% doe 04252035 § 517 El2
LIXE Trust
1. B55% duwe 1115/ 038 2. 500 2, BO3
WASTR Asset-Backed Sscurities Trast
L T06% doe 09,725, 2004 121 116
WF1 Led.
2 0454% doe 07/15/2005 134 132
WPl Maltifesily Bousing Morigage loam Trast
L, T60% dwe 07,15,/2008 1, T84 I, 770
WFA Trust
1. 131% due 07,/25,/2060 1, 634 I, 527
L. 381% doe 04,25,/ 2065 152 137
LATSHS doe 03,725,/ 0005 315 06
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AR i

CFERLE Ea Lok
Mill City Mortgage Losn Trust
1. 125% dwoe 11/25/2060 5 BiG 5 853
Z.750% dwe 08,25,/M058 quz B2
Morgan Stanley Asset-Backed Securities Capital I, Imo. Trust
L 906% due 06,25, 2004 pix] Fir o]
Morgan Stanley Capital I Trust
L. BiE% due 0515/ 2006 00 B9l
Morgan Stanley Residential Mortgage Loan Trust
1. 135% doe 09,725,061 54 345
New Residential Mortgage Loan Trust
0L 840% due 10252068 68 456
2, Ta0f oo O7/25/2089 1, 737 1, 691
2, 7508% due 11,25,/ 2069 1, 449 I, 403
3. 500% duwe 12,25,/ 3057 (] 68
ik D00 due 05,25,/ 2058 131 132
NovaStar Mortgage Furding Trust
L. 666% dwe 0125,/ 20038 i85 182
NIMT Loam Trust
L. GI0% due 08,25/ 2061 T G50
N0 Commercial Mortgage Trust
L 970% due 11/15/2038 1. 00 1, 532
FFP" Litd.
L T25% doe D4/14,2008 11 34
L. S25% dwe, 0414,/ 3007 B -7
Palaris FLC
2, 065% doe 05,/27/2067 (Fi 5] B43
Precise Mortgage Funding FLC
L. B70% dwe 10,16,/2058 BS0 T
Protios Mortgage Crediv Parteers I LLC
I240% doe 0027060 5 £ 135
Protios Mortgage Credit Partmers LLC
1. 592% doe 0225,/ 206] S RN
Residential Mortgege Acceptance Corporetion PLC
0, 795% due 06/12/2046 i J 378
Fesidential Mortgage Securities 52 FLC
L B4R dwe 06,/20,/2070 =T ]
RESIMAC Premier
L 542% due 07,10,/2052 5 4,420 1, 02
Stratton Mortgage Funding
L. TO6% doe 07,720,/ 2060 Gae 403 &G
Stratton Mortgage Pusding PLC
L. G20% duoe 03.12/2052 A0 503
1. B53% dwe 05/25/2056] 36 24
Structured Asset Investeent Loan Trust
I, 5564 duoe 09,725,/ 2034 i 1, 693 I, 578
Teurzs UK DAC
L8 duoe 05/17,/ 2031 GBF 1, GS§ 2 08
Theraldscn Hotel Portfolio Trust
L BG5S due 101152004 5 E10 TH4
Tewd Point Mertpage Fonding
L. 361% dwe 07,/20/2045 R I, e I, x20
L E2TR dwe 02,/20/°2064 416 B4
Teowd Point Mortgage Punding Auburn 14 FLC
L. B0 due 052052045 BAT 1, D65
Towd Point Mertgage Funding Granited FLC
L. 561% dpe 10/20,/3061 147 185
Towd Point Mertgage Trust
L. B3E% duoe (425, 2060 E 2 BT Z, 340
Z 006% due 05,/25/2068 141 4
2 006% due 10.°25,/2069 91 287
LT10% doe 0125,2060 526 BO2
3. 7500% dwe 05,25,/ M58 14 s
Tudor Rose Mortgages
L 347% doe 06,/20,/2048 GBe S0 112
[B5-Barcleys Commercial Mortgage Trust
L EFE doe Q0102046 ¥ 231 280
VWC Financo LLC
L. 957% dwoe 09,15,/2006 140 13
T (6% doe 0616, 20038 1, 403 1, 355
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Tells Fargo Comsercial Mortgage Trust
L T04% dwoe 32133031 3 500 5 42
L E3T% doe 07/ 15,2046 218 218
4. 216% doe 07,/15,/3046 400 o2
WFRES Cosmercisl Morigege Trust
L 6I7% dwe 12/156/2045 124 13
E— it Ay B 77, 45
(IS 300, 811)

Tdr o b sl & EER UG, 6%
A0 Bridge Asset Financimg LLC

Z020% due 08152040 qa7 i ]
AMMC CLOD 16 Led.

I, 018% dwe O414,/3029 BT 542
Ancherage Capital CLO 6 Lid

2 004% due 07,15,/ 2030 2. 900 I, 880
AFES L CLO Ltd

2 064% due 01/15/2092 a0 il
Atrium XI1

L GEEY duoe (02200007 BT 241
Birch Grove CLO Led

L. 956% due 06,/15,/20031 1, BO0 L. 484
Black Diasond CLO Designated Activity Cou

Z012% dee 1003/ 2009 gk 118
Cajrn CLO IV DAC

0, GO0% due D4,/30,/2031 EUR 1, oen Z/118
Commercinl Industrinl Fieance Corporstics Pumdimg Ltd.

2 134% due 10024,/ 2030 3 2. 500 2, 463
Contego CLD IV MG

0. BA0% dwe 01/23,/2000 EUR 400 L ]
ECMC Group Student Loen Trust

L. T56% due (22772068 5 167 150
2 056% due 05/25,/2067 B B58
EFS ¥olunteer LLC

4% doe - 10,25,/ 2005 B2 61
ELFI Graduate Loan Prograa LLC

L, 5300 dues 1226046 2. 22 2 4B
Firstioy Howes Trust

L. 266% due 10,19/ 3037 1, &% 1, 655
Ford Cradit Floorplan Master Owner Trust A

L A75% dwe 09,15,3024 GO0 GO0
Gallatin CLO IX Ltd

2 148% due D1/21,/2028 617 Gl
GPNT Led

2 310% doe 127157006 1. B0 1, 157
IERA Comsercial Mortgage Lid

L. 5aE% dee 027183038 pal i} %7
Irvesco Bare CLO T DAC

0, G50 dwe OF /15,2001 R L1} 627
Jabilea CLO DAC

0, G10% duwe 044 15,/2000 2 000 2118
0. G50 dwe O415,/2031 1, 000 1, 056
LL Assot-Backed Socurities Trust

1, 070% doe 05/15/ 2029 4 120 117
LesnCore Tssuer Lud.

2 005% doe 0515/ 20036 Bl i
Man GLG Buro CLOD ITI DAC

0. G30% doe 10,/15,/2030 EUR i) 942
Marathon CLO ¥ Ltd

378 due 11,/21/2027 5 119 118
Marble Point GLO X Ltd

I, 084% dwe 10,/15,/2030 3, 000 2472
Master Credit Card Trust II

LoABA% e O7/217 0024 500 B0
WidOcean Crodit CLO IT

I, 269% doe 01,/29/2000 2, 128 2., bod
Midocean Credit CLO VITI

= 526% due 02,20/ 2031 1. o0 1, 633
Wountain View CLO LLC

2 134% dwe 10416,/2029 B30 673

156/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 31
WS X
DR Ea Lokl

Mountain View CLO X Led.
L BAN% duoe 10132007 ¥ 5[ 3 313
W CLOD VII Ltd
L. G34% doe 10,18/ 2008 2,451 2430
Havient Private Educatice Loan Trust
L. B7E% dwe 0415,/ 2069 1o 342 I X258
2 6000 due 1271552028 2 3
Ravient Private Educatiom Refi Loan Trust

70 & 448 &, 184
LIT0% duoe 08/ 16/ 065 02 288
1. 2108 due 01,715,/ 2068 T T
1. B0 due 05,15,/2069 = 1,30
Relnat Student Losn Trust
1, H68% doe 09252065 100 a5
L. TOE% due 09/27/2038 I, 445 1,417
L. BOE% due 08/25,/ 2067 647 B35
L. BSER duoe 0225/ 006 1. 487 1, 481
1. Q0% doe 0627/ 2067 1. 166 1. 162
DAX Hill Buropsan Credit Partners VII DAC
0, 740% duoe 10,/20,20031] EUR 1. GO0 I, G838
0P Bure CLO DWC
0. B80% duwe 06,22,/ 0054 2,400 27
Paleer Square European Loan Funding DAC
0, T80% due 04153031 ] 59l
Peppar SPARKZ Trust No. 3
LA doe 081772028 Al T35 527
PFS Financing Corp.
0, 5008 dwoe 08,15,/ 2024 3 400 L]
SLC Student Loan Trust
0, E35% duwe 03/15,/0027 126 146
L% doe 05715,/ 2009 el 1
SIM Student Loan Trust
L 208% dwe 12515/2007 3 3
2B due (4252003 133 132
SMA Private Educatios Loan Trust
Lo 340% doe 037172063 437 18
L. BOC% due 08,15,/ 2064 450 415
L S78% duoe 07152053 738 T30
SoFi Professional Lean Program LLC
L. G5E% duoe 00/25,/ 3009 il 11
Sound Podnt CLO XIV Led.
ZOATA% due 01,23/ 0000 ] 1, 64
Sound Point CLO XV Ltd
o 8% due 01/23/3029 2. 629 2 611
Sound Podet CLO XVI Lud.
2 164% dwe 07,/25,/0030 2,400 2 3049
Stonepeak Assot-Backed Securities
2 300% due 02/28/2003 7 256
Symphony Static QL0 T Ltd,
2 0148 due 102550000 131 35
Thoorem Funding Trust
L 210% doe 12715/ 3027 14 210
THL Credit Wind River CLO Ltd
2.020% due 0415/2031 2,900 2,840
Towd Point Assot Trust
L. B27% dwpe 11/20/I06] (v ] G2
TETX Issuer Led.
& 060 doe 10515, 0004 Bin 574
Venture 3§ CLO Ltd
219058 due (4202002 2. Ton 2, 658
Yenture XVII CLO Led
L SR doe 015,027 b 761
Venture XXVT CLD Led
1635 due 00/20/2029 a8 G
Tz k- Ay B 70, 625
(e fRmeE 373, 502)

Export-Import Bank of India
L.505% duwe 08,21,/2022 2050 2, 358
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(FR { T M)
Intersmtionnl Bank for Reconstructice k Developsent
0, G50 dwoe 0210,/ 2026 ] 1, 500 5 1, 551
0, B50% dwe 02710,/ M027 3. M0 X, By
U RS 6, 83T

(A $7, 045)

Crown Castle International Corp.

1. G53% duwe 067140002 {c) 2,000 2, 209

International Flavers & Fragrances, Inec.

1, 625% doe 06,/03,/2022 {d) 3, 000 ik, 00
5, 200

Australis end New Zealond Bapking Group Ltd.

0, B00% duoe 06012002 5 19 19

BEank of Nowa Secotia

0, 400K doe 06701,/ 0022 I8 278

ENP Paribas Benk

{0, T80%) due D6,/01/2022 ELR 11 12

{0, 620%) due 06,/0]/2022 WK 2 0

0. 410%) due 06012032 ¥ 24 3

0, J00% due 06501, 2022 3 12 22

0, B00% doe 0G/01/ 2022 N 1 5

Citibank N A

0, 00 ahoe 06013002 5 143 143

D85 Bank Ltd

O 00 doe 06,/01,°2022 5 285

BSHC Bank FLC

(0. 7806 due 06012022 ElR 30 32

0, 4208 dhae 06,01 2002 GEP 3 4

JPorgan Chase Bank N A

0 400% due 06,701,/ 2002 3 355 288

Roynl Bamk of Canada

0L B00% o 0601,/ 2022 [} [

Supitomo Mitsul Banking Corp.

{0, TE0R) due 06,/01,/2022 EUR 19 20

0, B00% duoe 06701/ 2002 1 11 11

Sumitoms Mitsui Trust Bamk Ltd.

(00 TR0K) doe 06,/01/0002 EL® 3 3

(0. 400%) due 06/01/2022 ¥ 39 0

O, B0 dhoe 06,01/ 2002 5 14 144

0,20 doe 065012022 GEP 137 172
1,444

T AR 0. A%

(0, 005%) doe 08/00/3022 {(d) I3 B, 100 I, B31

S i £ T 8,574

(efRISE 36, 638)

ERIEESSH (o) 106.3% 3 481, TEa

(efRIE 3464, 531)

ST F s TR

(g {i) B.1% 2695

(RIS L 2 7 A, S $020)

TodhoiRis Lo, M 6 a0 (28, T45)

BT 100, 0% H 453,319
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGARIZATION

Each Fund disoussed in this repart {each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds” ], which atso indwdes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class” and coffectively,
the “Clisses”™), 1 a series rust of FIMCO Bermuda Togst (the “Teowsa ™), an operrended unil tngst establshed undet the L af Bermrada a5 & mulli-Senes wus o e
1o & trust deed executed by Winchester Global Trust Compamy Limited on Auqust B, 2001 (25 amended from tme io ume, the “Trust Deed”™) Efectve & of the dese
of business (Eastern tme) on September 29, 3017, Maples Trustee Sendces {Bermuda) Limied (the "Trustee™) was appointed a5 trustes of the Trust. Pacdic Imeestment
Management Company LLC ("AIMCO", the “Manager™ or the "Imestment Adviser” ) i the sponsor of and was responsible bar stnucturing the Trust

Beoven Ercthers Hameman & Co. {"BBH"] has entened snlo an agreement wath $tate Stret Cosporation {5tate Street™} under which State Ssreet will aoquire BBH's
Imvestor Sennces bumimess: which indudes 1ts austody, Tund accounting and administrabon, ttansfer agency, depesany, faregn exchange, trustes and secunties lending
senvices. The completion of the transaction & subject to Customasy dosing conditions and requlatory approvals

The Towst is subject to regulation and sopenvesion as provided for in the Imestment Funds Act 2006 and related nules relating 1o standard funds.

The terms. of the Trust Deed conder upon the Trustee, with the consent of the Manager, the powes, in the future. to establish Turther funds in addition to the Funds
curnently In operation as of the date of this et

References 1 wnitholders (ach, & “Usitholder™, aed collecthvely, the "Ursthelders™ ) i, o units of (or an imeestment in), the Fund dhall mean Unithalders of the Fund
who hold units, or dlasses of units (a5 applicable), which are atiributable to that Fund

The Funds peesented in this report e listed below

Fund [ffared tn
| AME0 Bermests Foregm Low Deraton Ford Dritared ondy in bonds wish & Fond of Fonds " vnacnem, a5 dedeed i (he rades ol e Invesomans Trom
AMC] Berraals U 5. Low Durateon Fusd hizoartun, Japan, of 13 eads wih 8 pesler sirctors m sy ather pradcien

AMEC0 Ervarging Markoes Sorad Fund LATF
AMCD Emergng Markets Bored Fund [V-sedged|
| ANCD Erirgeg Madkti Bused Fosed |

AN Ew'a Tatal Ratwin Fendl [Hfwresd 1o tetad sertons i Japan by vy of pubiic abieang thioogh & duinbater m . Japan, aad iy
AMED Rl Atom Foeel b EfTared 10 ek ety o thay detrmtinn of the Rlasagr
| AMDD Shedt-Terms Srasigy” Oftpind 16 dotad crpibins o Ja pas by ey of public ofesng [hroogh o utribgtal asdied & fals
| haning company I Jpan, #ad ey by ofered o other et 4 the ceceeien of the Masager
| ANED Emargeng Markts Bond Fosed (Wi DHptne aaly to ot Fundh 12 arve it 00 oo byng, et trsie! vtme b ot g Ry
| - 7 w “ v . > T Eo| o r " ~ oy e ™

e i v Ja oy UML) et Tars Seatepy d vy b it et o

n st LB Beod o Stearuy i oy i ot i B e e ek g AeE

Units of the PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund, FIMCO Real Retum Fund, and AUD, P, and USD Classes of FIMCO Short-Term Sirateqy have been registered under the
Fnancial Instruments and Exchange Law of lapan Units of each of the remaining Funds and the C {USDY, 1(#Y), and ) (USE) Classes of PIMCO Shen-Term Suategy
hariee it s and e nod ustently expeciad S0 53 registirid under the Financal Insteuments and Exchange Laww of Japan Accordingly, such Unity al thiste Funds Ry
nothe, directhy of indirectly, offiened in Fapan or 1o amy resident in Japan, excepd in compliance with applicable lapanese laws and requlatians

2. EIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The fellowing is a summary of sigrifcant accounting policies corsistently Tollowed by the Teust in the preparation of its financial statements in conformity wath
accounting prexiples generally scoepied in the United States of America ("5 GAAP®) Each Fund & treated a5 an imvesiment company under the repotng
requeements of U3 GABP The preparatcn of financal statements in socordance with U 5 GALP requeres mansgement 1o make estmates and assumpiions thag
affect the reponed ameunts of assets and Babilites and disdesure of contingent assets and labilities ag the date of the financal statements and the reponed amounts
of increases and decreases in ned assets from operations during the teporting peried. Actual nesults could differ fram these estimates

la] Acwmired Fumds The Trustes and the Manager miy spply all ar & portion ol the mser of FIVMCD Emaging Markets Bond Fynd (ITF), PIMCO Emenging Makats
Band Fund ['I'l:ﬂ'H[‘\dql:d:l_ and P'I?\H:I:}E-'!&c'glru; Markcets Bond Fund I feach relenad no herein a5 3 “Fund ol Funds® or the '.ﬂu;r;.. al Fursd® which ewests in cther
Funds) 1o the repecte credi of the PIMCO Emenpng Markeds Bond Fund (M) (relemed to hensin & an “Aoquined Fund{s) ™) Ay assets 20 splied wall be held m such
Mpgueed Fund(s) as i recenved diredtly, Where 3ssets are 5o applied, the Aoguzed Fund(s) will recond the issuwe of urits to the relesant Acguaning Fund at the issue prce
per unit of susch units and will repurchase such units at the repurchase price per unit of such units at the time of repurchass:

Ranos showm in the Fmangial Illthlth-:. do ngl inclyde apendes al the Acgued Fundis] See Nate 2 Fees and Expendes, for Burther information regandng fund lees,
a5 appiscable

[t] Securitins Transactions and Investment lacoma Secunties ransactions ace recotded as of the trade date for Snanoal reparting purpeses. Secunites purchased ce
sold on a when-issued or delayed-delivery basis may be settied beyond a standard settlement penicd for the security afier the trade date. Realized gains and losses.
from securities sold are recorded on the identified cost basis. Dividensd intome is tecoeded on the ex-daidend date, except cevtam dridends from foseign secunties
whede the ex-drdend date may have passed, whach ae receeded a5 soon & a Fund is informed of the ex-daadend date Interest income, adjusted for the accrersn of
discounts and amwoetzation of premiums, is recordied an the acorual basis from setthement date, with the exception of securities with a forward starting effective date,
where intenest income & recoeded on the accrual basis from eflecive date. For comvertible securities, premiums atinbatable to the comversion Teatuee ane nol
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fNotes to Financial Statements co

amortined Estimated tax lisbilities on certain foreign secutities ae recondied
oit a0 sccrual basis and are rellected a5 components of interest income of hiet
thange = unrealized appreciation [depreciation) on investments on the
Statements of Operations, as appropriate. Ta liabilites realized as a result of
such seaity sabes ane reflected a5 3 component of net realeed gain Dossh on
imeestments on the Statements of Operations. Pagdown gairs and lesses on
morigage-refated and other asset-backed secunities, if amy, are recoeded as
compranents of intenest income on the Statements of Operations. Debt
whligatans may be placed an nea-accnesl status and related intetest ingome
may be redwoed by ceasing cument soouals and writing off interest recenable
when the tollection of afl or a partion of interest has become doubtiul based
on commtently soplied procedunet. A debt abligation 15 removed from non-
acaual stabus when the kssuer resumes intenest payments of when
codlectabibity of intesest s probable

Ie) Cash and Forelgn Corresey The fnanoal statements of each Fund are
pregeniied g thi curiéndy of 1he Py B{ORGTES Sinaron ment in viehsch 1
operates (the "functional curency”™ ). The functional cuerency Bor each of the
Funds 15 listed in the below table

The market valoes af foreign securities, owrency holdegs and other asets
and lianilives ace trandated se each Fund's funceanal O ey baxbed an the
currendt enchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of secunties
and ircome and expense iberrs denominated in foreign curences, if any, ze
translabed into each Fund's tespective functional cummency at the exchange
rate in effect on the transaction date The Funds do not separately repo the
effects af changes in boreign exchange rates from changes in market prices en
secunines beldd Such changes are includied! in ned readaned and net :ha‘gﬂ. i
unrealized gain or loss. from imestments on the Statemernts of Operabions

The Funds may imvest in foreign curency dencminated sequwities and may
engaqe in foreign curency transactions either on a spot [gash) basis at the
e prevailing in the currency exchange markel o the time o thiough 2
Fearward foregn currency contract. Realized foreign exchange gains of loses
ansireg from safes of spot foreign currencies, curency gains or losses reakized
between the trade and settlement dates on secunties transactions and the
difference between the recorded amousts of dradends, interest, and foreign
wathholding tades and the functional aamency equivalent of the amounts
acsually recenved of paid ace included in net reatcred gain or koss on foeesgn
CuReny ramachorn on the Statements of Operatons. Net uerealoed faregn
exchange gains and losses avsing from changes in foeeign exchange rates an
feeeign dencemnated assets and habdites other than investments in secueities
heeld e the end al the |('p-¢r!i|v:l| pruid aré wchudid 10 Ret l;h;ngr i
unrealzed appreciation of deprecation on fareign currency assets and
ligbikties on the Statements of Operations

The Het Asset Value ["NAY") and total ceteens of cortain Fumds {or Classes
theemal, a8 apphcable) are presented in 1he :_um.u'l:.',-1m whach the HAY i3
reparted (the " NAY currency”) as detailed in each Fund's Offening
Mesmarandum {the " Crifering Memarandum™). For the pupeses of the
presentation of the KAV and the total neturm in the MAY qumency, the
beginning and ending NAVS are comerted using the penod beginning and
ending exchasge rates, respecively, and daimbutions are comverted wsing the
exchange rate at the time of the distnbution. See the following table for the
NAY cumency of each respective Fund

Functonal
FundfTamr RAY Carraney o
| ML Bermsds Fesgs Low Dhaetion Fusd Sagana yan LA 5. dofai
|- PIACT) Bermada U 5 Loww Dication Fund bazanem yan 125 dolar
PSMCT) Exmargeng Markots Bl Fund LITH Jazanem yen LS. dodar
PSMCT Emergmg Markts Bondl Fund (RS 5. dofar 125, dollar
LI |

ForeChe WAy

PIMCD Ermenging Mackets Bord Fond [¥en-Hedped| Japasese yen UE doflar
PIMED Ernecgng Markets Bord Fand B Jepanese yen LS dolls

nJiBR

. J e

= IR

Ik

= JITRY]

L L]
PIMED Fues Total Return Fund fira Furg
KD Real Retorn Fuad US della IS doflae
PMCD Short-Term Strategy

= A Fezatraean defar U5 doflar

a CHED U% dolte U% doll

= JUP Japreese yen U5 doflar

= S Jpaneme ymn 115 dabar

. JF Japanene yen U5 dollar

L U dollar U5 doflar

4 Mubticluss Operutiona Each Class of a Fund offered by the Trust has
righas to the awsets ol the Fund equa to that of other Classes of the same
Fund, a5 spphcable, except for specific sssets and gaing a0d losses designated
1o @ Class relating 1o curency hedging operations. Income, non-Class specific
expenses, and non-Class speciic reakzed and wnmalized capstal gains and
lerises ane allocated to each Class of units bursed on the relatne net assets of
each Class of the respectve Fund, a5 applicable Class spedific expenses
curzently indude management, advisory, administrative, agency, and
drirbunon fees, when apphcable

o} Distribution Poliey The dollowing Labile shoves the anvcpated frequency
ol dstnbutions for each Fund Desirbutices Tram each Fund may be diclaed
and distributed to Unitholders anly opon the authodization of the Manager,
which authonzation mey be withheld at the Manager's disceetion

Declared Daily and Paid Mosthly:

PNCD Ewn Tatal Return fusd

Declared and Paid Musthly:

PIMCD Emerging Markess Bond Fand LITA
PINCD Emerprng Maskets Bond Fund fen-Sadged]
PIMC Emerpeng Markets Bond Fand 1l
PN Sters:Ferm Sirategy
" UM
- JHLSD)

PINCT Bermeds Fosmge Low Dusminn Fund
PNCD) Biarmads U S Low Durartion Fond
Daclared and Paid Annually:

PINICO Rl Rastern e

PMCD Shors-Term Stranngy

"
= Cjusm
LR |
L ]
The Masager does met sxpest 1o declass dhitribetions with respest to this Fund
o Clazzes thereol, il applicablel but may, in its ditcretion, declare and pay

ki 1 it s ot any time,

PIMCD Emerpang Markets Bordl Fond i
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Distributions, if any, will generally be made from the refevant Fund's [or
Class's. o applicable) net imvesiment income In addgion, the Manager may
authoree the payment of red realized capital gars available for distrbution
Additanal distributions may be dedaned a5 the Manager deems sppropeiate
Distribusions pasd with respect 1o any Fund (or Class thereal, if apphcable)
wall reduce the AV of such Fund [or Class thereal, if applicable). A2 the
discretion of the Unitholders, cash distedbutions from a Fund (or Class thesod,
il applcabile] may esther be remvested in addmonal unats of a Fund (or Class
thereaf, i applicable) or paid to a Unitholder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid in the NAY cumency of the Fund Each Fund (or Class thereof, if
applicable) may dedaee further distibutions i corsadered necessary i onder
ta maintain a reasonable level of distribations for a Fund for Class thereaf, i
applicable) In the event that there is inadeguate net income and net realzed
capital gains w pay a distribution of a Fund (or Class thereal, if spplicable)
requized bey the Offering Memarandum, the Manager may pay a distrbutian
comsisting of a portion of the capital of siech Fund (or Class thereal, if
applicable) Dismbutions not collecied wathin s years. from their due date
woill Lagrie and wall acerue to the bimehit of the sebevant Fund (o Class thereal,
il appleatile]

[f] Newr Aczounting Pronsussemants and Regulatory Updates (o Warch
2020, the Finanaal Accounting Standards Board ("FASE™) sued an
Accounting Standands Update ("ASU”), ASU 3020-04, which provides
opticnal quidance 1o eie the potental adounting buiden asocated with
ransitaming away from the Lendan Intesbank Offered Rate ("LUBOR™) and
other reference rates that ane expecied to be discontinued ASU 202004 i
effective for ceimam eference rate-related contract madificazions that ogos
during the penod March 12, 2000 theough December 31, 2022, 1n March
2021, the admiristrator for IBOR anncunced the extension of the publication
of a magority of the USD UBQR settings %o June 30, 2093 Management is
continuoushy evakaating the petential effect a ducontinuatoan of LIBOR could
hawe on the Funds’ irvestments and has determined that it is unBitely the
ASU's adoption will have a material impact on the Funds” financal
SLAlLMEnts

3 INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

|a] Investment Valuation Policias The prace of @ Fund's urats & bhated oa
the Fund's MY The MAY of aFurd, or each of its Classes, as applcable. is
determined by disiding the tatal value of portictio mvestments and othes
assats atirbautable to that Fund or Class, ket amy habilines, By the 1oal
nurmbser of units outstanding of that Fund or Class, On each Fund's Dealing
Diary (as described in the ourent Offenng Memorandum of the

Trest), Fund units ane onfinarily valued as of the cose of reqular rading on
e Mew York Stesck Exchange ["NYSE Close”) Information that becoees
known bo the Funds of their agents after the time as of which NAY has been
caboudated on a particular day will nes generally be used to retmactreely adjuit
the price of & wecutity or the BAY determaned eathier that diy Each Fund
resenves the raght 1o change the time a of which its MAV & clodated il

the Fund doses earbier

Far purpeses of caloulacng WAV, portdolio secuwitues and other et for
which market quotes ae readdy available are valued at market value Market
walue is genenally determinad an the basis of official dosing prices or the Last
O Sales preoes, of il ro sabis are ceported, Based on quabes chlaned
fram established marker makers or prices (including evaluated prices) supphed
by the Funds™ approved pricing senvices, quotation reparing systems and
other third-party sources (logether, *Pracing Senices™) The Fands will
nermally wse pricing data for domests equity seouites recened shomly aler
tie WYSE Close and do mot nomially take into account trading, dearances oo
satthements that taxe place after the NYSE Close M markes value NG
wiad, & Toeengn {man-U S ) equany secunty oraded an a foreign exchange o en

more than ane exchange is typically valued wsing priang information from the
exchange cordadeced by PIMICO 1o be the primary enchange. A Toresgn (ron-
U5 ) ety sevcurniny will Be valued o of the dese of vading on the Teeelgn
exchange, or the NYSE Closa, if the NYSE Close cocurs before the end of
trading on the freign exchange. Domestic and faneign (non-U 5.) lined
imcome seculitees, non-exchange traded derratives, and equity options are
nommally valwed on the basis of quotes ohtamed from brokers and dealers ar
Pricing Seraces using sach dna reflectng the poncipal markets for those
secunties. Prices obtained fram Pricing Sennces may be bised on, amang
other things, information peovided by market makers or estimates of market
values cbtained fom yield data relating to imeestments co secuities with
sy chatacieistics. Cemain feed income secunties purthased on 3
detayed-dalvery basis are marked to market daily wntil settlement at the
forevaed settlement date Exchange-traded apticns, except equity options,
futures ard options on Tutunes aie valosd o1 the settlement price determened
by the relevant exchangs, quotes ohtained from a quatation repoming system,
established market makers of prcing senices. Swap agreements are valued
on the basis of market-based prices supphied by Pricing Services of quoies
ciitaired from brokers and dealers. A Fund’s imestments in opsen-end
manajement imvesiment comparses, ather than exchange-traded funds
(7ETFs™), anevaluisd at the RAYS of weh imesiments

W a Bareign [nan-Ul 5.3 equity security’s value has matenally changed aftes the
close of the secunty’s pnmary exchange of principal market but before the
NYSE Close, the security may be valued at far value based on procedurnes
eitablished and approved by the Manage: Focesgn [Ron % ) equsty
secunties that do not trade when the NYSE & open are also walised at fair
value With respect to forsign (non-L.5.) equity securities, a Fund may
dAetpimane e L vilos of imiments babed an infaimanan poimacked bry
Pricing Senvioes and ether thind-party versdors, which may recommend fas
value or adjustments wath reference to other securities, indices or assets In
congidersng whether Bar valwation is requined and in determining Lai

values, & Fund may, among ather thengs, cansider sgnificant events (which
may be considened to indude changes in the value of U5 securnities or
secursties indices) that cocur alter the close of the celeant market and before
the NYSE Close. A Fund may utikze modeling tpols paoided by thind-pary
vendoes to determine Far wabues of foreign (non-L.5 ) securties. For these
puipses, any movement i the appdcable reference indik or intrument

(" zeto thggee” ) Between the eaclier close of the apphicable fansign masket
and the NYSE Close may be deemed 1o be a significant event, prompting the
application of the pricing model (effectively resultmg in daily far

valuations). Foregn enchanges may persif trading i Toeeign (mon-U 5 )
exquity securithes on days when the Trost is mot apen for business, which may
result an a Fund's portfolio investments being affected when Unitholders are
unabihe 10 buy of sl uets

Senior secwred foating rabe foas for which an adive secondary market exists
1o a reliable degres will be valued 31 the mean of the last avalable bid/ask
prices in the market far such loans, a5 provided by a Pricng Senvice Senior
secuned Tloabing rate loans far which an active secondary macket does not
exish 10 a meliable degree will be walued at fair value, which is intended to
aproximate matket value. |nvaluing a sensot secured floating rate daan at
Tar value, the Tactors consadered may include, But ace not limited 5, the
followang: (2] the credtaanhiness of the borgwer and any mtermediate
particpants, (b the terms of the loan, {c) recent peices in the market for
amiar loans, i any, and (d} recent prices o the market for irstruments of
semilar quality, rate, period wiil nesdt inbesest rabe reset and matuity

Ierestments valued in currencies other than the functional cumensy

ol & Fund are comeerted o the Tunctional CUMiEncy UsIng éxchange rates
citaired from Prcesg Services. As a result, the value of such imestments and,
in tuen, the MAY of the Fund's urits may be affected by changes in the valus

vl R | My 31, 202

174/369



EDINETOOOO

OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)

fNlotes to Financial Statements co

Ooooooooooooooooooad

of currendies in relation 1o the functional curmency. The vatue af imeestments
Iranded iy ‘.‘H:ﬂp‘: markels of denominated in ourendiEs ifs than

the functional currency may be afiected significantly on a day that the Trust is
notopen for business. As a result, o the exnent that a Fund heodds foeeign
{reori- AP 5 ) imvestmendts, the value of those imestments may change at times
when you cannot purchase, redeem of excharge units and the value of such
imvestments will be reflected in the Fund's next calodlated HAY

Imvistmanas bor which markes quotes or market-based valuations are not
readdy mvalable are valoed at fair value 5 determined in good Ewh by

the ddanages or persons acting at theer direction. The banager has adopted
mathods Ror valuing securities and other assets in crcunrstances where
marked quites ane ot readily ivalfable, and had delegated to PIMLO the
respansibility for applying the far valuation methods In the event that market
quiotes or market-based waluations are not readly available, and the security
of asset cannol be vilued puriuant 1o a Manager spproeed valaation

mithod, the value of the secusity of Zset will be determined in good faith by
the Valuzation Committes Mariet quotes are considered nat readily available
in arumstances whese these is an absence of curnent o reliable markes-
based data (e g, trade infoimation, bediask infarraation, indcative market
quictatices " Broker Quates ™), Pricing Services’ prices), induding where
eeents cocur alter the clase of the melevant market but priar 16 the NYSE
Clase, that muatemally affect the values of the Fund's seountes of aseld
addition, market quotes are considered not readdy available when, due 1o
extracedinany drourrslances, the exchanges of markiess on which the
seamhed fade da not opiEn e |r.1d|:|:_| Tee thi nbine dig and 0o aither
market praces are avallable The Manager is responsble for monitonng
significant events thad may materially atfect the values. of the Fund's secunties
of sty And fai dieim riry wehither the viluie of the appheatle Secunbied of
assets sheuld be reevaluated in gkt of such significan evenis.

‘When a Fund uses L valuation to determine the valee of a portiolio seounty
of other aseet o puspodes of calculating rts MAY, such mestmens will not
be priced on the bass of quates from the primany market in which they ane
traded, but rather may be priced by anather method that the Manager o
persons. acting 31 their direction believe reflects fair valse: Fair valuation may
requse subjecive determinations about the value of a secunty. Wide

the Teust's poficy is intended to resuit in 3 caboulation of a Fund's MAV that
Fairty refects security values as of the time of prigng, the Trust cannat ensure
thart o vaboes determined by the Manager or perions acting af their
direction would acowtately reflect the price that a Fund could obtain for a
security if it wene to dispose of that security as of the time of pricing {Bor
instaerce, i & forced of distressed sale) The prases uioed |.';r & Furnd may d Hay
Tram the value that would be reakzed if the securities were soid

[t] Fair Value Hisrarchy L 5 GAAP desoribes fai value as the prce that

a Fund woubd receive 1o sell an asset oo pay to transfer a hability in an ondecly
transaction Between market particpants at the mexuntment date I
establshes a fair value kieratchy that priortzes inputs to valuation methods
and requires disclosure of the Bair value hierarchy, separately for sach major
catRgany of aveets and liabidaes, that G BN [air value measueements inle
leveds (Level 1, 2, or 3) The inputs o methodelogy wed for valuing securities
ane not pecessanly an indication of the risks assoniated with imeesting in those
securities. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierarchy are defined as doliows

= Level 1—{ugted prices in active markets or exchanges o identical assets
and linlites

= Level —Signilicant other chiservable inputs, which may indlude, but are
nod limited 1o, quoted peicss for samilar assets o habilties in markess that ae
active, quated prices for idertical oo similar assets or labilibes in markets that
ane ol active, inputs osher than quoted prices that ae observabile Tor the
assets of babdite (such a3 inbesest naness, weld cunves, volatiktes, prepinrmn]

speeds, lous sevenities. cradit risks and default rates] or other market
comoborited mputs

B Level 3—Sigrsficant unobsercable inpuis based on the best infarmatian
availdble in the droumstances, to the extent cbsenvale inputs ae nat
available, which may inchode assumptions made by the Manager or persons
actinng o their deectian that ane used in determining the Lar value ol
restmEnts

I accondance with the requeements of U5 GAAP, the smounts of transhers
w1 and ot of Level 3 matenal, are disclosed in the Notes 1o Schedule of
frevestments for each respectre Fund

For Fair valuations wseng sigrificant unobservable inpats, 115, GAAF requires
16 deaclose bransbers mio and out of Level 3 ol the Fair value hieraechy and
purchases and msues of Level 3 assets and habilites during the pernicd
Additionally, U5 GAAP requres quantitathe information regarding the
1~qn||||.ar1 unkigarable snputs wied i the determinatan of T walue of
Fusets of liabilines categorzed as Lesel 3 in the Ear value hiscarchy Bn
acooedance with the tequirements of U5 GAAP, a fair value hieranchy, and
materal, detaiks of significant wcbservable nputs, have been indeded in the
Motes 10 Schedule of knestments Tor gach respectie Fund

{g] Waluation Technigees and the Fair Yalun Hisrarchy

Lavel 1, Level 2 and Loved 3 trading assats and trading liabilises, at

fulr vabes Tha valuation methiods o2 “techrigues”™) and significant inputs
used in determining the fair walues of portiolio secunities of other assets and
fabilives categoeized as Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 of the far valee Meranchy
ae as ollows

Fined miome secuntaes evcluding coipangte, cofvertible and mumapal bends
and netes, U S gowesnment agencies, U5, reasury obbgations, soveteign
rsues, bank boans, oomeertible prefermed securities and non-U 5. bands are
namealy valwed on the basis of quotes obtamed from brokers and dealers or
'~‘:u;|r1 Sevooes that e broker-dealer quatations, ieported Jrades or
valuation estimates feom thelr intermal pricing models. The Pricing Sennces’
irtemnal models use inputs that are cbservable sudh as issuer details, enterest
rabes, pekd g, prepayment spends, onidit nikatipnesd, defauds ranes and
quobed prices Tor similar sssets. Secuntes that use smilar valuatian
techriques and inputs a5 desoribed abowe are categonzed as Level 2 of the
{ar valye h|m.1r-.'h:|-

Fixed income secunities purchased on a delayed-delvery basisor as a
repurchase commitment im a sale-buyback trarsaction are marked to markes
daily unsd settlernent at the forward settlement date and are categorized as
Level 7 of the far walue hetrandy

Mervgage-related and asset-backed secunties are usualy osued 3 separate
tranches, or classes, of securitios within each deal. These securties are also
noimally walued by Frscing Sennces that ube brake -deafer quotabond,
reported trades o valuation esbmates from their infemal peicing modets. The
pricing madels for these saowites usually consider tranche-leved attributes,
cunent market data, estimated cash flows and market-based yield spreads for
exch ranche, and incorparate deal collateral performance. as available
Mertgage-related and asset-badoed secunities that use smslar waluaton
techeagques and inpuls o desorbied abowe ane categonzed a3 Level 2 ol the
Hair value hierarchy

Cemmon stocks, ETFs, exchange-fraded notes and finanoal dervatme
irstruments, such as futures conteacts, nghts and warrants, o ophions on
fubures thar are traded an a national sequrities exchange, are stated a1 the
st reporied sale of settlemnent peice on the day of valuation To the extent
s securnties ane actvely traded and valuation adjustments ace not applied.
thiey & categorned a5 Level 1 ol the Tair value hieraechy
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Investmends vakied {dencminated) in currencies ather than the functional
|.|.n¢r{,'|:-‘ a Fund aee comvered 1o the functienal CUIMBACY Uking e h.mqr
rates [oumency spet and Sorwaed rates) obtaned from Pricng Senvices. As a
resuft, the NAN of a Fund's units may be atlecied by changes in the value of
urrencies in relation to the functional cumency. The value of secunities traded
in feresgn markets o denaminated im currences ather than the funcional
rurrency may be afected significanthy on a day that the Trust is not open for
busingss. Valudtion adssiments may b applied 5o oertain securities thad ane
solely traded on a fareign enchanges 1o accoum for the markey movement
between the dose of the foresgn markes and the NYSE Close. These seouities
are valued using Pricing Senvces that consider the comelation of the rading
patterers of the Bareign security bo thee intraday tradng in the U5, markets fo
imvestments. Securities wang these valuaton adjustments are categorized as
Lewved 2 o the fair value hierarchy. Preflerred secunties and other equities
traded on it markess of valised by relrance 1o srmelar mibiuments ane
abso categorized as Level 2 of the fair value herardy

Equity-tinked securities are valued by referencing the last reported sae oo
setthement price of the inked referenced equity on the day of valuaticn
Fareign exchange adjustments are aoplied 1o the last repaned prce to
corwvert the bnked equity’s trading curency to the conbract's settling curency
Thesse irmvestments ane cabégorized o Lovel 7 of the far vabue Hmerdichy

Invesments in registered open-end investment companies {other than ETFs)
wall be valved based upon the MAVs ol such investmenits and are categonzed
as Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy Imvestments in wniegistered open-end
imegstment companees wall be caloulated buted upon the Ay of such
imeestments and are considered Level 1 provided that the NAYS are
chservable, caboulabed daily and are the value at which both punchases and
wabies will B condutted

Valuation adpstments may be applied 1o certain exchange traded Tutures and
cptions to accound for markel movement between the exchange settlement
and the NYSE chote Thesr securtics are valued wing quates obiained Trom 2
quetation (epestieg srstem, established macket makers of pricing senace
Finandial dervatives using these valuation adpusiments are categonzed a5
Level 2 of the {air value higrarchy

Equity exchange-rraded options and over the coumer financeal derrative
instruments, such as foewand fareign curency contracts and options contracts,
dertve their value from underying asset prices, indices, mfenerce rates, and
oshis inputs of & dombindtion of these factars These comracty am ncmally
walued on the hasis of quotes cbiained from a quotation reparting system,
established maret makess or Pricing Sendces (normally determined as of the
NYSE Chose). Depending on the product and the terms of the transaction,
fimamcial dervatie instruments can be valued by Priang Senices using a
senes of techniques, mduding simulation priong models. The pricing models
use inputs that are cbserved Trom actiely quated markets such a5 quated
praces, rssuer details, mdsoes, bidlask spreads, inberedt rates, implied
wokatibties, yield ourves, dnidends and exchange rates Finanoal demvative
instiuments that use similar vialuation teckeiques and nputs as described
above are categorzed as Level J of the fair value beerardny

Centrally deared swaps and over the counder swaps derive their value feom
underlying asset prices, incioes, reforence rates, and oshes inputs o @
cormbunation ol these factors. They e valoed using a broker-dealer bud
quetatcsn of on marker-based prices prenided By Pricing Senaces (normally
determined as of the MYSE Close) Centeally deared swaps and over the
counber swaps can b valued by Pricing Sendoes using a secies of techrigques,
inclisding simulaben priceng madels The prioing models may wse inputs that
are clserved from actvely quoted markets such as the ovemnight index swap
e (TO187), UBOR Toradsd cate, mvtereit rates, yvield curves and creds
spreads. These seoutities are caleqoneed as Level 2 of the Tair value hisraschsy

When a fair valsation method is applied by the Manager that uses significant
unobsernabile inpats, avvestients will be poiced by 2 method that

the Manager or pessons acting at their direction believe reflects fair value and
are categonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hieranchy

Pecory pricing procedunes st the base price of 2 Tived income secunty and
subsequently adjust the prce propomonally b markes vabue changes of a pee-
detarmned sacurty deemed to be comparable in duraton, generalya LS
Trearsury of sowediign nodie based on country of issance The base poice may
bee & broker-dealer quote. transaciion phice, of &n memal value a5 derved by
analysis of market data The base price of the secutity may be reset on a
penindic basis based an the avalabilty of market data and proceduies
appioved by the Valuation Owversight Comratiés S.ujr." cant chandgis i the
unohsersable inputs of the prooty pricng process. (the base paice) would resull
in direct and proparional changes in the far value of the secunty. These
securities abe calegorzed a5 Livel 3 af the Lar value berancky

H third-party evaluated vendor pracing is mot avadlabde ar not deemed 1o be
indscative of Law value, the Manager may efect to chiain Broker

Queses directly from 1he broker-dealer o pavsed-through Broker Quate from
a third-parmy vendar In the event that far value is based upon a single
sourced Broker Quote, these securities are categorzed as Level 3 of the fair
valug h'.rlarrh:ll gk Quotes ane Sypicalby recenied Trom establahed market
partiopants, Although independently tecetved, the Manadger does rot have
the transparency to view the underbying inputs which support the market
quotation Sigrificant changes m the Brober Quote would have direct and
pecpartional changes in the Tarvalue of the secuiity

Refererce instrument valuation estimates fair value by utilizing the comefation
of the security 1o one or mone binad-based securities, market indices, andiar
ather linancisd irstruments, whese pricing information o readily evalable
Unobsensabbe inputs may indude these used in algoritken Tormulas based an
percentage change in the relerence instruments andlor weights of each
reference instrument. Significant changes in the uncbsenvable mputs would
eesudt an diret and propomianal changes in thie Tair value of the secuney
These securities ane cateqorized as Level 3 of the fair walue heranchy

Shart-fem delbt nstraments (such 33 commencial paper) having a remaning
maturity of 60 days or ks may be valued & amortized <ost. so lang as the
amanized cost value of such short-term debit snstrumenss is approamately the
same a5 the fair valwe of the satrument as determined withaut the we of
amanized cost valuation These secuiles aoe caneqaiined i Levid 2 or Level
3 of the far value hierarchy depending cn the source of the base price

4, SECURITIES ARD OTHER INVESTMENTS

fa) Dalayud-Dalivery Transactions Certain Funds may purchase o sell
securities on a delayed-delivery bases These ransacticns irvolve a
commeitment by a Fund 19 purchase of soll Securties LY peadateriunid prace
o yiehd, wath payment and delreny tating place beyand the qustamany
setifement pernad. When delayed-delvery transactions are outstanding,

a Fund wall designate of receie as collateral liquid assets in an amount
sulfscsent ta meet the pusrchie price of respectnae obligations, Whin
purchasing a security on a delayed-deliery basis, a Fund assumes the nghts
and nists of ownership of the secunty, including the risk of prioe and yield
Huctuations, and takes such fluchuations intoe account when determining its
HAY A Fund may dispose of of renegatiase a delayed-delreery transaction
after it is endered into, which may result in a reafized gain or boss. When

a Fand has sold a secunity on a delayed-Celivery basis, the Fund does not
paiticgpate in futune gang and losses with nespect 10 the secutity

) Inflation-Indazad Bonds Certain Funck may evest o inflaban-indexed
bands. Inflaton-indexed bonds are fued income seowities whose principal
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walior is pevicdically adjusted by the rate of inflation The interest rate cn
e Bandd 5 i;t'lu'l.ﬂ:,' fooed &7 issuance a1 a fabe howes than il bords
e the life of an inflation-irdexed bond, however, interest will be paid
based on a principal valee, which is adjssted for inflation. Ay increase or
decrease in the princpal amouns of an inflation-indexed bond will be mduded
a5 inferest income on the Satements of Operations, even thewsh imestors do
not receve their principal until matunity. Repayment of the onginal bond
prircgal upen manbaity (a5 adpsted for inflanon} is puatanteed in the e of
U S TIFS For bonds that da net provde & umidar quacantes, the adjusted
privcipal value of the bond repakd at matunity may be less than the original
prrspal

Ied Loam Participations, Assignments and Oviginations Certan Funds may
imoest i dhrect dedl instruments which are @ienests in amounis owed 1o
lenders or lerahing syndicates by ooporate, governmental, or other bormowsers
A Fund’ s smaestments in Joans may be in the fem of participasions in boans or
.'|wu_',r|-1-.'|lx nf.‘ll| & a pedligh q| I ||c||n thurf Pt OF il i O
oiginations of loans by the Fund A loan is often administered by a bank or
other Enandial institution (the “lender”) that acts as agent for all holders. The
agent adminmbedd the teems of the laan, & '.[.'-l"v:||mJ iy thit loan agrbement

A Fund may imeest in muliple senes or sranches of a loan, whech may have
warying terens and camy different assoniated risks. When a Fund purchases
aspgreenly e Dindbe s 1 atares dinect .'||_||1I:. agnns the bamoveen al thee
lpans. Thi=e loans may include particpations o brdge kaans, which ane lpans
taken out by boanowers for a short penod {yypically less than ane year)
pending arrangement of mane permanent finanang theough, for example, the
tsspance af bonds, frequently bugh yeld bonds issued for the purpese of
BOUETIONS

The types of kaans and related rvestments in which the Funds may imest
inclisde, among ahers, demor lang, subordmated logns {including tecand
liem boans, B-Notes and mezzanine loans), whole loans, commerdal real
estate and other commeroal loans and structured loans. A Fund may
orsganat loans or axquing deedt inbenests m Bans hlu,}qh primary laan
distributions andfar in private transactons. In the case of subordmated foans,
theee may be significant indebiedness ranking ahead of the boerower's
ohhgatsan 1 the holder of such o loan, mchuding in the svent of the
borrower's inscheency. Mezzaning loans e typically secured By a pledge ol
an equity interest in the morigage boimower that owns the real estate rathar
than an interest in a morigage

Imvestmends in koans may include unfunded loan comeitments, which ace
coniracheal obligations for funding. Untunded Baan commetments may include
revahing credst fachties, which may chiigate a Fund ta supply additonal cash
1 thee Beirovesr on demand Unfunded loan commitments cepresent & future
obligatan in full, even though a percentage of the committed amount may
not be utized by the borrower. When investing in a lean pasticpation,

A Fund ks the '||:||". 10 nECETe Py maenis :-‘punc-;!nl_ mbetest and .|rr§,-’.|-r:. (2]
which it is entitled anly from the lerder selling the loan agreement and only
upion receipt of payments by the lender from the bormower A& Fund may
receEnve a cormeritmens fee baded on the undrawn pochen af the unGethIng
line of credit portion of & loan In cerian aroumstances, a Fumnd may recene &
penalty fee upon the prepayment of a loan by a bomowes. Fees samed of
paid are necoided a6 a companent of infedest income or infenEt expense,
nespeiscinvedy, o the Statements ij”:?_,ﬂ"'ld:h’,lll:. Unfurded loan commitments
are reflected a5 a liability on the $atements of Assets and Ligbilities

[d] Musetgage-Related and Othar Assat-Backad Seemrities Cedan Funds may
imees1 1n mostgage-relited and other asdef-backed securies that deectly o
indirectly cepresent a pactiapation in, o se secuted by and parable fram,
loans on real peoperty. Mortgage-related secunties are ceated from pooks. of
resadenttial or commeercial mortgage kaans, including mortgage loans made by
saniregs and hoan instlutadns, momgage bankeds, commevcal banks and

wothers, These sequrities provide a monthly payment which consists of both
et and prinGipsd Enteneil midy be determined by Troed e adpustable cates
The rate ol prepayments on underhing morigages wil afect the price and
volatility of a morigage-related sacurity, and may have the eflect of
shartening or extending the effective duration of the security relative 1o what
wi antopated a the time of purchase. The timely payenent of prncipal and
imterest of certain mortgage-related senuities is quaranteed with the full Taith
and credit of the U 5 Gevemiment. Pocls created and quacanteed by non-
gevernmental Bsues, including governmen -spoansaned corporations, may be
supported by various Torms of insurance or quasantess, but there can be no
assurance that parvate insurers or quarantors can meet their obligations under
the infurance palicoes of quarsntes a rangements Marsy ol the miks af
imvesting in mortgage-related securities seoured by commercial mongage
Boams reflect the effects of local and other economic conditions on real estate
markers, the abdiny of tenants to make lease paymints, and the ability of a
propsety o attract and retan tenants. These seounties may be less boud and
may exhibit greater prioe volatiity than other fypes of mortgage-related or
other assat-backed secunities. Other asset-backed secunties ane created Trom
marry Types of assets, indluding, but not limited 1o, auls kans, aocounts
eeivable, such as oedit card recerables and hospital account recervables,
hame equity loans, studert loars, boat loans, mobile home foans,
eecreational wehicke baan, manulactured housing loans, secraft beases,
compiter lBases and syndicated bank loans. The Fund may imest in amy level
of the capital structure of an Bsuer of mortgage-backed or awset-backed
secunties, includang the equity of st lods " mranche

{a} Collateralized Mortgage Obligatiens [*CL!0") are debt cbligavens of a
Iegad entity that are collaterahized by whole marmgage loans o private
marigage bonds and drded inte davses. ChOs are structuned into multiple
clisses, often seferced 1o as “tranches”, with each dass beaning a ddferem
stabed maturnity and entitied & a different schedule for payments of principal
and interest, mduding prepayments. CM0s may be less bquid and may exobat
qreater price wolatilty than other types of morigage-related o aset-backed
LeCunlies

i Stripped Mongage-Beched Secorities ["50B5 7] e devative multi-dass
morigage sequnities. SMES are usually structured with twa diasses that recesve
diflerern peopostaces of the inferest and pancipal dstnbations on a poal of
mongage aseets. An SMES wall have one dass that vall recenve Jl of the
imterest (the intesest-only or "107 dass), while the other dass will recenve the
erflire peincipal (the princpal-only or "PO" class) Payments recetred for 10
ate included im inferet income on the Statements of Operations. Because m
princpal will be recered at the maturity of an 10, adustments ane made to
the cost of the security on & monthly basis wntil maturity, These adusiments
e inclipded o amtener income on the Statements of Opeiatians Paryments
received for Ps are treated as redudtions to the oost and par value of the
securties

g Collataralized Dabt Obligations (" C00s" ) include Collateralized Sond
Obilganees {*CB04"], Collatealired Loan Obfgatand ("CLOS™) and other
samilarly structeed seomites CBOs and CLOs are types of asset-backed
secureties. A CBO is a trust which is backed by a deversified pool of high risk,
Eselenw Emaestenent grade foud income securities. & CLO i3 4 trust typecally
collateralized by a pool of loans, which may include, among othees, domest:
and feaeign senice secured loans, senior unsecured loans, and subordinate
coiparate loans, mcluding loans than may be rated bislows imaesimens fjrade or
equivalent unrated loans The risks of an imvesteent in @ COO depend langely
on the type of the collateral sensities and the class of the COO i which

@ Fond imvessts. In addition to thie naimal risks associated with fed imcome
secunties dicuised elsa®use in this repoit and the Funds L'II"-m:n]
Memorandum (e ., prepayment risk, cedit sisk, hquidity nsk, market sisk,
structural risk, lagal nisk and interest rate risk {which may be exacerbated if
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I mteresd rate payabde ona stnactured fingncing changes based an
gl -:lfl;-.‘l.]:r.‘lp:"i I irres fates OF imersiy fo changiss in inberist
rates)), CBOs, CLOs, and other CO0s camy additional risks induding, but not
limited 8o, (1) the possibility that distibutions from collateral securities will not
be adequate ta make interest o cther payments, (i) the quality of the
cofaseal may decline in vafioe or defaull, () the risk that a Fumd may invest
in CBOs, CLOs, or other {D0s that are subordinate to other dasses, and (v}
the complex structure al the seourity may nat be fully waderstood 2 the time
of wrrestment and may produce dspates with thes suer of unsspiected
imvestment resuits

[h} Payment bn-Kind Securities Certam Funds may imeest in payment m-kind
securities (TP} PIKS may gave the ssuer the oplion a8 each intenest
payreenil date of making inbenest payments in either cash andier addtianal
debt securities. Those additional debt securites usually have the same terms,
including maturity dates and intenest rates, and assodated risks a5 the
opnal bonds The daly marke] qudtatadns ol 1he anginal bomds may widude
the accrued interest {refierred 10 3s a "dirty pice” ) and require a pro rata
adjustment from the unrealized appredation or depreciation on imvestments
18 antefest recenable on the Statements of Adsets and Laabdites

[T} Resstricted Secwrities Cenan Funds muy bald mmestments (hat ane subject
to legal or contractual resinctions on resale. These securities may be sold
privately, but may be required to be registered or exempted bom such
regstration befane being sold to the public Private placemens securities ase
generally consafiered 1o be restncied Dvsposal of restricted imvestments may
imvcdve time-consuming regotiabions and expenses, and prompt sale at an
acceptable pooe may e difficih 1o ackerer Rencted imvestments keld by
the Fureds at May 31, 2022, & applicable, ace dischosed o the Motes 1
Schediufie of Imesiments

0} Strwcturwd Motwa Ceortain Funds may smoist in structured notes and other
refabed mstruments, which are privately negotiated debi obligations in whach
the prinapal andl of interest is determined by reference to the perfarmance of
a benchmank seel matkel oF infedest fate Lan embeddied index | such a8
selected secunties, an index of sequrities or specfied inferest rates, of the
differential perlormance of two assets ar markets, such as indiexes reflecting
bonds Structured instruments may be rssued by cosporabons, induding
banks, & well & by governmentd agendes The teems of sudh stuchued
instraments nesmally provide that thesr principal andlor interest payments are
1o b adjusted upwands of downwands [but cedinanly not betow 2eral to
refiect changes in the embedded index while the structured iestruments are
sustanding. As a resuly, the interest andlor principal payments that may be
made on a stuctured product may vary widely, depending on 2 vaniety of
Factoes, inchading the wolazihsy of the esbedded index and the effecy of
changes in the embedded index on prindpal andfor inberest payments

[kl L5 Gevernmant Agencies o Gavernmant-Sponsed Eaterprizes

Casitann Funds may imasgt in wecunies of U 'S Govemeaen IR, af
government-sponsoted enteipeises. U5 Government secuities ace
chligatans of and, in certain tases, guaranteed by, the US. Government, ds
agenoes of ingtrgmentalities. Some U5 Govemment securities, tech o
Treasisy bells, notes and bonds, and securities quaranteed by the Governmen
National Morigage Assooiation | "GHNMA™ or "Génnie Mae"), are supported
by the Full faith and credit of the U5 Government; others, such as those of
the: Federal Home Loan Barks, ane supported by the right of the istuer 5o
boerow froen the U S Depariment of the Treasury {the "US. Treasury” ) and
others, such as those of the Federal Mational Mortgage Assocabion " FNMA®
of “Fannie Mae" ), are supparied by the deoretonary authornity of the (5
Geverremnent 1o purchase the agengy's obligations U 5. Govesnment securities
may include zero coupon secunties, which do net distribuse inferest on a

curtent basis and bend to be subject 1o a greater risk than intenest-paying
securties of simdar matunitss

Gimvernment-selated guarantors {1.e, ot backed by the full faith and oredit of
thia LS. Govemment) indude FbA and the Federal Home Loan Mongage
Covposation | FHUMC™ o “Freddie Mac™) FNMA i a govemment-sponsond
coiporation. FNAMA puechases corventonal (e, nat insued of quaranteed by
any goverrenent ayency) residential morgages from a list of appeoved
seflersseracers which mclude state .m-‘.ilrdl-:dl‘,- chanieied sxnngs and loan
Essocianons, mulsal drangs banks, commerncsal banks and credit unions and
mortgage bankers. Pass-through secuntes issued by FNMA ae quatantesd a5
1o timely payment of prncipal and iterest by FRMA, but 2t not backed by
the full faik and credi of the U5 Govemment. FHLMC rsues Particpation
Certificates (" PCs" ), which are pass-thisugh securites, each represanting an
undivided anferest in a pool of residental mortgages. FHUMC guatantees the
nmmiely payment of inteest and ulomate colfection of prancipal, but PCs aee not
buacked by the full faith and credit of the U 5. Government

fn fune 20719, FNMA and FHLMC started issuing Uredorm Mortgage-Badced
Secunties {UMBS" ) in place of thewr current offerings of TRA-elgble
securities (the " Single Security initiative” ) The Singfe Seouwity | nitiacke seeks
1o support the overall liquidity of the TBA market and aligns the
charactermbos of FHAMA and FHLMC cemdicates. The effects that the Singhe
Secunity Initathe may have an the market for TEA 30d ather mongage-
backed sequities ae uncertain

Roll-timing strategies can be used whene a Fund seels to extend the

S ahon 6f m.l'.ull?,'b‘ i pedanion, such ik THA secunty on an underhyng
asset, by dosing eut the position belore expiration and opening a new
pasition with respect to substantially the same undedying asset with a later
expiration date THA secunties purchased of sold are reflected on the
Snaterments of Assets and LisbBtes a5 am asset of lisbility, tespeatively

] When-lsseed Transsetions Cestan Funds may purchase oo sell secunites
on awhen-issued bass. These tansactions are made conditionally because a
security, although authonized, has not yet been issued in the market
Tramiachond 1o puichase of Sl Secunties on B wivn-rdosd bids vk

2 comeitment by & Fund to purchase or sell these securities for a
peedebermined peice of yiedd, with payrment and delivery taking place beyond
the custamary settlement periad. A Furd may sell whenritsued fecunted
Eedinre they ae delhoened, which may nesalt in a cealzed qain of loss

{m) Bank Obgatiems Eank cbligations inwhech a Fund may imeest indude
certificates of deposit, bankers” acceptances, and fixed time deposits
Cortifcates of despost ang rﬂ:ll.lhlru:fllf&r.alm dued against Turds
deposited sn a commercial bank for & delinie period of tre and eamang a
speahied return. Bankers' acceptances ane negotisble drafts or bills of
exchange, nonmally drawn by an smporter o exporter 1o pay bor speaic
mischandie, which ane “accepted” by a bank, meanang in efiect, that the
bank uncanditionally agrees to pay the face value of the instument on
maturity Fioeed time deposits are bank obligations payable at a stated
maturity date and beanng nteneit at a hxed rane Froed tene deposits may be
withdrawn on demand by the imeestoe, but may be subgeet 1o early
withdrawal penalties which vary depending upon market conditicns and the
maining maturty al the obligation

5. BOAROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

The lolipeeng dischosunes contamn informatson on the Funds’ ablty to lend oo
Esoirow carsh o Securities bo the extent permitted under the Oiffiering
Memorandum, which may beviewed as boriowing oo Fnancing transactions
bey the Funds. The bocaticon of these instiuments is descnbed below Fora
detailed description al credit and counterpamy ersks that can be associated
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with bamawings and ather inanding transactians, please see Note 7,
Prancipal and Qther Retks

|a] Rapurchase Agreamants Certan Funds may engage in repurchase
agreements. Under the terms of a typical repunchase agreement,

2 Fund purchases an underlying dett abhigation {oollaberal} subject 1o an
oblkatxn of 1h seller 1o eepurchase, and a Fund to resell, the obigasan ag
an ajpeed-upon price and fime: [n an open maturty iapurchade agreement,
there is no pre-determined repurchase date and the agreement can be
erminated by the Fund oe counterparty al any time. The macket value of the
collaneal mist be squal 1o of enceed the total amount of the repurchase
chligatians, incuding inberest. Repuechase agreements, induding acoued
interest, are indsded on the Statements of Assets and Liabilities. interest
earmed o recorded & a component of intenest incame an the Satements of
Opetatiens. In periods of increased demand for collateral, a Fund may pay a
fee for recespit of collatesal, which miy eesult i interest expense 1o the Fund

[b] Revarse Repurchase Agroaments Cimain Funds sy ente inta nesege
repurchase agreements, In & reverse repurchase agreement, a Fund delivers a
secuity in emchange for cash to a financial stituton, the counterparty, with
a simuitaneous ageement 1o repurchase the same oo substantialfly the same
secuE ity at a0 agresd ppon price and date. 15 an open Mttty resee
reputchase agreement, thede is no pre-determined repurchase date and the
agreement can be berminabed by the Fund oo counterparty at any time

A Fund is entithed o recene principal and intenest payments,  any, made oo
the security delivered o the counterparty durmg the term of the ageement
Cash receiad in exchange for securities delivered plus aommoed interest
payrminls. to b mnade by & Fond 10 coumerpaitss an reflected 26 4 lab ty
on the Statements of Assets and Liabilibes Interest payments made by a Fund
to counierpartes ate recorded a5 3 component of interest expernse on the
Statements of Operations. In periods of increased demand for the security,

a Fund mary recenve a fee for use of the security by the counterparty, which
may eesull in interest income to 3 Fund A Fund will seqregate assats
determined ta be liquid by PIMCD o will othersise cover its obligations
UTET vl P unG hage P

k) Sals-Buybacks Ceman Funds may enter into finanong mansacnons
refierred 1o & “sale-buybadks” A sale-buyback financng transaction consists
of 4 sale of a secunity by 3 Fund 1o a linancal institution, the countenparty,
with & semultanesus sgresment to repudchase the tame of substanbally the
Same seculity at an agreed-upon prce and date. A Fund & nof entitled 1o
recedve prnopal and interest payments, if any, made on the secuity sokd 1o
thit counpty :Jl.rl:lu thee term of the ipemien] The agmed-upon
procesds Sar wecunitse 1o be repuechased by a Fund are reflected s a liabibty
on the Statements of Assets and Liabilibes. A Fund wall recognize net income
represented by the price differential between the price received for the
transferred securdy and the syreed-upon repurchase paice. This i commanly
refieered 1o s the “price drop”. A price drop consists of (1) the foregone inberest
and inflaticnary income adjustments, if any, a Fund would have otherwise
eceneid had the sectty not heen sold a0 (i) the Aegetialed |:|'|.'||'n:|r-g i
bepaeen a Fund and counterparty. Feeegone interest and inflationary income
adjustments, if any, are recoeded a6 components of inberest intome cn the
Statements of Cpeiatans. Intensit paysents bated upon nigotated fmanang
terms made by a Fund 1o counterparties aee recorded a5 a component of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. in periods of ncreased
demand lor the secunty, 8 Fund may receive 2 Tee Tor use of thie weeunty by
the counterparty, which may result in imerest income 10 3 Fund. A Fund well
segregaie assets determined to be liquid by PINYCO o0 will athersise cover its
obligatians under sale-buyback transactions

[d] Bhort Sales Cortian Fundd may enter anlo thon saes trasactons. Shod
sales ane traniactions in which the Fund selk a sequrity that it may pot cen
A Fund may make short sabes of secunties to I} offset potential dedines in

lang pesitions in similar secunities, (il 1o increase the flexbilay of the Fund

(i) Tor mmeestment negumm, (vl as p.'r!-:ll a ik arbetrage stritespy, and () a5
part of its evedall portiolio management strategies Evohving the use of
devivative instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may bomow
the security scld shor and defver it 10 the countesparty The Fund wil
onfinatily have to pay a fee of premium 1o bedrew a security and be sbbgated
1 repay the lender of the security any dividend or intesest that acorues on the
secursty during the period of the loan Securties soid in shon sale bandactions
and the dradend af interest payable on such securties, if oy, e reflecied 2
payable for short sales on the Statements of Assats and Lisbdities. Short sales
expose the Fund io the risk that it will be requied to cover its shoet positon
at a sime whisn the seourty o other asset has appreciated invalue, thus
tesulting in losses to the Fund. A short sale is " against the bax™ i

the Fund holds in its portiolio or has the nght to acquire the security sold
shorl, af seeuntes dentical i the Lesyun 1y sald shadt, ot na additional dodt

i, Fund wall be subject to additionad risks o the extent that it engages in shont
sales that are not ° against the box”™ A Fund's loss on a shoet sale could
theeretically be unlimited in cases where the Fund is unable, foe whatieer
teason, 1o close ouf its short position

B, FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The followving disdosunes contain infoemation on ke and why the Funds use
financial deriratve instruments and how finarcial demative insiruments
affect the Funds’ Snandal peaition, results of cperations and cash Bows, The
Tocaton and L value amounts of these ingtruments on the Statements of
Bessets and Liabditses and the net reakzed qain (foss) aod net change in
unrealized apprediation (depseciation) on the Statements of Operations, each
categodied b‘.'l' type of financial derrvatve montrad and related nik exposize.
ate included in a table in the Naotes 1o Schedule of Imestments. The finanoal
desivative instruments outstanding as of penod end and the amounts of net
realed gain ass) and net change in unnsslzed sppreciation [depeeataon]
on financial dermvative istruments dunng the period, &= disdesed in the
Motes to Schedule of Envestments, serve a5 indicators of the volume of
financral dervateen actnity for the Funds

{a) Ferward Foreign Commaney Contragts Covtan Fosds may Engage in
foravaed Foreign currency condracts in conmection with setthng planmed
purchases or sales of sequities, fo hedige the curency expose assonated
with some ar all of a Fund's securities or a5 past of a0 mvestment strateqy. A
Toraed Foreign currency comtract i 0 agreement betasen two parties b buy
and sell a osmency at a set price on a future date The market value of 2
forwaed foreign curmrency contract fuctuates with changes in foreign cumency
exchange rates. Forward fonsign curmency contracts are marked 1o market
dadly, and the change in value & recorded by a Fund as an uniealized gain or
ks Reafized gadns or losses are equal to the difference between the value of
the conteact ot the tene f wias q:-n,-:md and the wafse 2 the Gme i was cloded
and ane tecorded upan delieny or recespt of the curency. These contracty
may imvohee marked risk in emcess of the ureealzed gain o loss reflecied on
the Statements of Assets and Lisbdites In addiion, a Fund could be exposed
1o risk 1 the couniempartes ate umable 1o meet the terms of the contracts or if
the value of the curmency changes undavarably te the funceonal orreny. To
mitigate such risk, cash or securities may be exchanged &5 collateral purbuant
10 the terms of the underying contracts

Certain Funds, hawving a hedged Class, may atso enter inta forward foreign
cunengy coetracts designed to offset the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
order to beper the "mj-]ud CLarss with an expdsure 10 Curtencies o Than the
functicnal curency These can be no guaraniee that these Class specific
forevasd fioreign curmency contrads will be sucressiul
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[t} Futures Contrwets Certain Funds may enter into futures contracts &
futures coniract is an agreement to buy or sell a security or cther asset for a
st price o & future date and is oraded on an exchange & Fund may use
Tutures coniracts 1o manage its exposore by the securies markets of to
miwvements in interest rates and osrency values. The primary risks asseoated
waith the e of fulures contracts ate the impetlect corelation between the
change in market value of the secunities held by a Fund and the peices of
futures contracts and the possibility of an ilgued market. Futwes contracts
are valued based upon their quated daidy settlesnent phiors. Upon entening
b & fitunes contract, a Fund 15 regquined 30 Sepalil with it futures beoker 80
amownt of cash, U 5. Govesnment and Agency Cbilgations, or select soversign
debit, in accordance with the inital maegin requirements of the backer or
exchange. Fubures contracts are marked to marker daily and based an wuch
mivements in the price of the contracts, an appropriate payable of recerable
for the change 5 value may be posted of colfectnd by the Fund (" Futures
Vanaton Masgin®) Fubuies Varatsan Matging, i ary, ang degclosed wathn
entrally cleared financial dermvative wstruments on the Statements of Assets
and Ligbilities. Gains or kosses are recognized but not considered reakized untd
e conTacts expire of clode Fulusis comIPacTs imaddve, 1o wirnng deghees,
nsk of loss im excess of the Futures Vanation Mangn sduded withan
exchange traded or centrally deared financial darkatiee instiments on the
Statemients af Aseets and Liahilites

k) Optiors Contracts Ceitan Funds may wite of putchase oplions 1o
enhance 1etsms of 8o hedge an existing position of future imestment Certan
Funds may write call and put options on secunties and hinancial demative
insbiuments Shiy o of i wisch they may magst W ing pat oplions lends
1o increzie & Fund's exposie 1o the undeehing ensteument. Wiiting cal
options tends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the underying instnsment
‘When & Fund writes a call or put, an amount equal 1o the premium recened is
recanded and subsequently marked to markel bo reflect the curmeat value of
the oo waitten. These amounts are induded on the Statements of Assets
and Ligbilities. Premiums recened Brom wiiting opticns which expire are
tredted o repired gund Prémoums necEnend from writing opond which aoe
ewercised of dosed are added 1o the proceeds or ofiset against amounis pad
on the underlying futures, swap, secmity of currency transaction 1o delemine
1he seabiad qan i logs Cotain opore may b wiitlen with promiveed 1o be
determined on a future date. The peemiums for these cptions are based upon
imphed wolatibty parameters at spedfied terms. A Fund as a wniter of an
ophion has ng control gwer whethes the underlang instrement may be sold
{"call” ) or purchased " put™] and & a result bears the market sk of an
unfavorable chamge n the peice of the mstrument underying the waitien
ophion. Thene i the risk a Fund may not be ablie b0 enber inta 3 dising
transaction because of an illqud market

Cestain Funds may also parchase put and call options. Purchasing call optons
tends ta intrease a Fund's exposune to the underying mnstrument. Purchasing
pul optians bends to decrease 3 Fund's expeosure to the underdying indtnement
A Fund pays a premium which ts induded as an asset on the Statements of
Assets and Liabilities and subsequently marked bo market to reflect the
cuerent value of the opton. Premiums pad Tor purchating optint which
expree ane treated as redlized bosses. Cenain options may be purchased with
premiums bo be deteimined cn a future date. The premiums for these optioers
are based upon implied volatifity paramiters &t specifaed teims The sk
assooated vath purchasing put and call options is beated o the premium
paid. Fremiums paid for puechasing options whidh are exercsed oo dosed ane
added 1o the ameunts paid or offset against the proceeds on the underying
imeEsIment transaction b determine the reahied gan of losd when the
unierlying transaction 5 exeouied

Cowdit Datault Swaptions Certan Funds may wite oo purchase cedd default
S Bl ||r:d|}n wpire 1o the ciedit sk of an imeitment withou

mating a commitmend to the underfng instrument. A oredit default swapticn
i an ofption bo el or buy Sredit protection ta a :.r.r-;'-‘:: refenence by enbeving
e a pre-defined swap agreement by some speified date in the future

Feawigan Cutianey Optiens Certain Funds may weite oo purchase foregn
cumendy apbions ta be used as a shot or long hedge agaiest possible
VANIONG In ‘.m-:':qn eachangi M of D0 gadsn exporsune 1o hlﬁl,'r CUMences

Inflation:Capped Options  Cavtien Funds may weite o porchale nfllation-
capped options 1o enhance retums o Ter hedgng opportunities. The purpose
of purchasing inflaton-capped cpbiors i to proted a Fund from inflation
erosicn above 3 cedlain r3te on a given notional exposure A loor can be
used bo gve downside protedtion to imvestments in inflation-lnked products

Intereat Rate-Capped Optisas Certain Funds may wiite or punchase intevest
rate-cappeed optians i enhance rebums or for hedging opporiunitses. The
purperse of punchasing imtenet rate-capped cptions i 10 protect a Fund from
floativeg rate risk hove a certain rate on a given notional exposure. A floor
can be used to give dowrside protecton to imestments in interest rabe inked
products

Interest Bate Swaptions Cetan Funds may wite or purchase interest fabe
swaptions which are oplans ta enter into a pre-defined aup sqreement of
o shoten, extend, cancel or othenwise moddy an existing swap agreement,
by some specified date in the future. The writer of the swaption becomes the
courierparty [o the swap of the buyer exsrcies. The intetest rate Swaphion
agreement will specty whether the buyer of the swaption wil be a fised-1ate
recefver of 3 fined-rate payer upon exencise

Optisns on Exchange- Traded Fotures Coatraets Certain Funds may weite oo
puschase oplions on exchange-traded Tusunes contracts {"Futwes Optien ") to
hedge an exsting positien of fubare imvestment, for speculative purposes of to
manage expasure 1o market movements. A Fusures Option is an option
coneract in which the undetyrng insttument 15 & snghe Tutuies contract

Dpptines on Secarities Cierlain Funds may wiote of punchass oplios on
sedunities b enhance retisns of to hedge an edsting positan of fisture
ivestment. An oplion on a security uses 3 speotied secunity as the underlyng
irstrumaent for the Giion contract

) Swap Agreemants Cirlan Funds may il in deap sgreements. Swap
agreements are blaterally negotiated agreements between a Fund and a
counterparty to enchange o swap imvestment cash Tlows, avsets, loregn
cunnngies of markeSnied retoms at specfied, Tuture mtenals. Swap
agieements may be pravately negotiated in the OTC market or may be deased
through a third-party, known as a central counterparty or devivatives dearing
oigarization { cendraly ceared swaps™ ) A Fund may enter milo asset, oredit
dedault, cross-turency, insensst rate, total return, vanance and other fome of
SWap agresments [0 Manage is ExposUne to credit, cuemendy, inenest rate,
commixdity, equity and inflation risk In connection with these agreements,
secuisies of Cash may b idenified a5 collmeral o maegin in peoordance with
the terms of the respective swap agreemsents to provide assets of value and
recoaxse in the event of default o bankuptodinsohency.

Centrally clesed swaps e marked 1o matket daily based upon valuations &
determined from the underbying contract ar in accoedance with the
requiremens of the central counterparty or dermeatives deanng organization
Changies in macket value, il ary, ane reflecied a5 a component of net change
i unreglized spprecation (depredamon) on the Statements of Operations
Daily changes in valuation of centraly deared swaps (" Swap Vanation
Margin®}, if ary, are desdosed within centrally cheared financial derwative
irestruments o the Statements of Assets and Liabilives. OTC swag payments
recefved o pand at the beginning of the measurement period ate induded on
the Statements of Assets and Liabilites @ repsesent premims paid of
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recerved upen entening inta the swap agreement 1o compersate bar

dilfer ences betwstn the stated terms of the wwap agreement and peinvaling
markel conditions {redit speeads, curency exchange rates, intefest rates, and
other relevant factors). Upfrant premiums seceived {paid) are initially recorded
s liabilities {asse1s] and sabsequently marked to marked fo reflect the cument
walue of the seap. These upfront premiums ate recorded as reafized gains or
losses on the $tatements. of Operations upon temination or maturity of the
s A hguadation payment teceived o made at the Seminasion of the swap
15 reconded i realiped gmn o loss on e Statements of Operstions Net
penicdic payments received or paid by a Fund are induded as past of reafized
gains of [esses on the Statements of Cperations

For purpeses of apphing ceman of a Fund's investiment policies and
restnctions, svap agresments, like other deriatioe instnuments, may be
waliged by 3 Fund at market value, notional valoe of full expesure value In the
cage of acredit default s, in apphpng certain of the Fund's investrmen
policies and restnctions, the Fund will value the oredit default swap at i
nofional value or its Tl exposure walie (1e | the sum of the notional amount
Tor the contract plus the marked value), but mary value the credit default swap
at market value for pumposes of applying certaim of the Fund's other
imeestment polioes and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value oredit
defiudy swaps 31 Full exposure valioe for purpsoses of the Fund's credit quality
guidelines (f amy) because such value in general Better reflects the Fund's
actual econamic exposure dunng the tems of the credi default swap
agreement As a resel, 3 Fund may, a1 bmes, have notional exposaee ta an
it dasd (belors nIEeh that & grédied of lesier thar The s2ated ket oF
restriction noted in the Fund's Offenng Memozandum. In this context, bath
the noticnal amount and the marked valise may be positive o negative
dipending on whether the Fund is selling of busang peatection thiough the
credit defiault swap. The manner in which ceran sequrithes or othes
instrumenis ane walued by the Fund for pusposes of apphaing investment
policies and nesnctions may dilfler bom the manner in which these
imeesments ane valued by athes types of irvestors. Entening into sap
agreements involves, tovanyng degrees, elements of interest, redit, market
and documentation nsk in excess of the amounts recognired on the
Statements af Assets and Liabilives. Such ks imoobve the possibility thay
these will be no bguid market for these agreements, that the courterpanty to
the agieements may delault on its obligation to perfaim o dsagree a5 t the
mEaning of conteactual terms in the .'qu\f-.‘frer-',-.-..lnd thas thiste may be
unfavorah e champes i inberest rates or the valses of the asset upen which
the savap is based

A Funef s maamun sk of loss Trom counterparty cedit rsk is the discountad
net value of the cash fiows 1o be recewed Trom the cousterpay over the
onlract’s femaining Fle. to the extent that amount & positve. The sk may
be mitgated by Im'.ng i Mt eThing .]lr.nlj{'mrnthr'lwmﬁ a Fund and
i countippaety and by the posting of collateral 1o 2 Fund to cover a Fund's
exposre 1o the counterpary

T the extent a Fund has a policy to limit the et amount owed &2 or to be
received from a sngle counlemarty under emsting swap agieements, such
limitataan onky applies 1o countipartes to OTC swaps and does not apply 10
centrally cleared swaps where the counterparty i5 3 ceniral countemparty or
derivatives deanng onganz atien

Ciwdit Dalault Swap Agreemests Certan Funds may enter info

credit dedauh s on companane, kaan, sovensign, U5 muncipal o U3
Treasiry sues ta provade a meadure of protection against defauhs of the
wssuers {i e, 1o reduce risk where a Fund owns or has exposure to the
neferenced oliligation) or 1o take an active long or short position: with repect
1o the hkelkood of & partcull i s default Credi default U
agreements invohve one pary mating a steeam of payments (referred to as
the buyer of pectaction) to ancther paety (the seller of pratection) i exchange

for the right 1o mecetve a specified return in the event that the referenced
erity, phllr;u:.q‘.l of index, o e dod i the D dIetment undergoes 4
ceitan credil event As a seller of protecsion o credit default swap
agreements, a Fund will generally receive from the buyer of protection a fived
rate of income theoughaut the term of the swap provided that there is no
credit event As the seller, a Fund would effectively add leverage ta it
portiolio because, in addition toits total net assets, the Fund would be
Subjict 1o mwestment exposine on the netional ameant of the swag

H a Fund & & seber of protecuon and a credi evert occurs, a5 defened under
the terms of that paroular swap agreement, a Fund wall either i) pay to the
barger ol protection an amoent equal to the notional amount of the swap and
take deliery of the refitenced thl.].]llm othe: delreerable u{:lli]unm:. o
underying securities comprisang the refierenced index or (i) pay a nat
settierment amount in the fom of cash or seourities equal to the nosional
amount of The wwap ke the recoveey value of 1he relenenced obligabon or
underyirg secusities comprisang the telerenced index IF & Fund is a buyer of
piciection and a credit event ooours, as defined under the tems of that
particular swap agreement, a Fund will either (i) recerve from the seller of
peetecton an amount egual 10 the notional ameunt of the swap and delives
the referenced obligation, ather defrverable obligatiors or undarying

SOCUT S Compaising the relprenoed index o () recerve a nit eftemens
afmount in the Torm of cash ar secuntes equal 1o the rotional amount of the
swvap bess the recovery value of the teferenced chligation or underlying
securities comgiising the relerenced index. Recovery values ate estimated by
ekt ks Ghiridenng ethe .'\.-dusl.‘.',' starcdad fpdomidy rabed of #nility
soecific factors and considerations wntil a credit event ooows. H a oedit event
has poqumed, the recovery value i determined by a faclitated awction
-.-\.+.rr|'1".r, & Fnemuin ruster of llevable broker bidd, ndgpsther wath &
spedfied valuation methed, are wied to calodate the setifement value The
aility to deliver gther obligations may reswl in 3 cheapest-to-deliver option
it buper of peatecticn™s nght to choose the deliverable cblgation with the
Iermnest vt followang a credit event)

Credit default swap agreements on aredit indices involve one party making a
stream af payments to another party in exchange for the right 1o receree a
specified refurn in the event of 2 write-down, prinopal shanfall, interest
shorifall oe default of a8 or paet of the relerenced entities comprising the
credit indec A credit index is 3 basket of credit instruments or exposures
detngnid ta be epreientatne of soeme pat of the ceadit matket &6 3 whole
These indices are made up of relerence credits that are judged by a pedl of
dealiers ta be the most liquid entities in the credit disfault swap meeket based
on the secter of the mdex. Components of the indees may include, but are
ot fimsted to, imestment grade securities, high yield securities, asset-backed
secunities, smeigng markets, andlor various oedit ratings within each secior
Crodit indaes and traded uiing credit default swaaps wath standaedined 1erms
ncluding & ficed spread and standard manarnty dabes An index creda defauh
swap refesences Al the names in the index, and if there is 3 default, the medit
event is settled based on that name's weight in the index. The composition of
the indices changes periodhcally, usually every six manths, and for most
indices, each name has an equal wesght in the index. A Fund may use credit
default swaps on aedit indices 5o hedge a porfoic af credit default swags or
s, whuch 1 less expenshve than & would be 1o buy many credit delaull
wmaps 1o achieve a similar eflect Credit default swaps on indices are
instruments for protecting irvestors cwring bonds against default, and
Wader: wse them 1o speculate on changes in credit gualty

fmphied credit spreads, represered in absolute verms, ubilized in determrenng
the market value of oredit default swap agreements on (orporate, loan,
wetengn, LS municps o U 5 rrl'.cr\.ur:l- 155084 45 [:fp-t\'l:xl end, if any, ane
dusclosed i the Notes 1 Schedule of Imestments. They seve as an indicatcy
of the ourrend status of paymentiperformance risk and represent the Rkelhood
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or risk of default for the referenced entity. The implied credit speead of a
particalar referenced entity reflects the cost of buyngiiellng pratection and
may include upfiont payments requred to be made to enter into the
agreement Wider medit speeads represend a detevipration of the referenced
enlity's credd soundness and a greater lkelhood oo risk of default or czher
credit evenit oocuening &5 defined under the verms of the agreement For credt
default swap ageements on asset-backed secusities and credd indices, the
quenid markel prices and nesulting valers sisve o the mdicater of the curnent
staius af the paysentiperformance sk Increasing market values, n saolute
terms when compared ta the notional @mount of the swap, represent a
detersaration of the referenced entity’s cred soundness and a greater
licelihood or fisk of delault or ather credit event cocurning s defined wnder
thee tenms of the ageement

The maximum potential amount o futwe payments jundiscounted) that

a Fund & 8 seller of protection could be required 1o make under 3 credit
defady swap apeement sgual the notonal amount af the agreement
Notional amounts of each indridual cradit delault swap agreement
ouistanding as of pencd end for which a Fund is the seller of protection e
disclased in the Motes to Schedule of Irvesiments. These potential amounts
waild be partially offset by amy recovery values of the respectiee relenenced
obligation, l.pllcrll payments necemed upon enlenng intg e ageement, of
el armounts receved from the sertlement ol buy pratection eradit default
swia apeements entered imo by a Fund for the seme referenced entity of
enbities

Inturnst Rate Swap Agreamants Coctain Funds ane subipct toimeness ratie
nisk exposgre in the normal course of pursuing thes imvestment objecties.
The valise of the Tieed sate bonds that a Fund holds may decrease i interest
rates e Ta help hedige agarst this risk and to maintaim its abdigy 1o
generaie intome ot peevaihng maiket rates, 8 Fund may enter sio et
I3 Swi ageesements Intenest rabe swap agreements imobas the exchange
by a Fund wath another party Tor their respective commitment fo pay o0
receive interest on the nationad amount of princpal. Certain doms of mterest
13le swap aqeeements may indude: 1) mierest rate caps, under which, i
return for 3 premium, one party agrees b make payments to the other b the
exyel that inberest rabes exceed 2 w:!wd e, o “cap, () mberest rate
Toors, under wiach, in retuen for a premium, one party bgrees 1o make
paymeents. 16 the ather to the eutent that inerest rates [l below a spedfied
rate. o “foor®, fiill indevest rate collars, under which a party sells a cap and
purchases a Tloor of vice versa m an attempt to protect itself against infenest
rate movements exceeding gaen minimum of mamum leves, (7] callable
interesl rabe swaps, under which the buyer pays an upfront fee in
cortideration fee the ngh o early termanane the S tanssction n whale,
at 2efo ot and a1 3 predetermened dabe and time prior 1o 1he maturity date,
{v} spaeadiocks, which allow the interest rate swap users 1o lock i the
Torward differertial (or spread) between the intenest rate swap rate and a
spaifed benchmark, or [wil basis swaps, under which o partes can
exchange variaghle intevest rates based on different segments of money
markets

1. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

|a] Principad Riaks in the normal course of business, the Funds {os Acguired
Fund{s], if appbeable) trade financal instraments and enter inta finanaial
ransactions where nisk of potential loss exists due to such thengs as changes
in the market (market risk] or failure or inability of the other pary to-a
transaction to perform (credit and counterparty riskl. See below for a detailed
descrintion of wefect prncipal raks

Fund of Funds Risk To the extent that cemain Funds wvest subssantsally 21
of their respective assets in Acquired Fund(s), the risks associated with

irwesting in these Funds will be desety related to the nsks assodated with the
securdios and other evestmisnts held by the Acguinsd Fundish 'l'u:..ﬂll!-?,'ql
the Funds 1o achieve their respective imestment objectves may depend upan
the ability of the Aoguired Fundis) to achieve ther respective investment
clbijectrves. There can be no assurance that the imvestment cbiecine of any
Bequired Fund(s) will be achieved The MAY of 20 Aoquinng Fund wall
fluctuate in response to changes in the respecive AV of the Aoquired
Funcs) in which i meests

Tt rroeraddl course of Business, Aoquined Fund{s) rade financial meruments
and enter inta financal transactions where risk of potential boss exsts due to
changes in the market (market nsk), or {ailune oo inability of the other party 1o
a ransaction b perdonm (coadit and counterparty risk)

Marhet Rishs A Fund's imvestrments in financal dersvatve instruments and
ather financal instruments expose the Fund to vanious risks such as, bt not
limised 1o, inberest rate, foreign ncerll 5 | oumency, equity and commadity
sk

Irvterest rate risk is the2 risk that fiied income seuities and other instiuments
bl by a Fund may decline in wafe because of an increase in interest rates I
naminal inbéeest rabes fise, the value of certien fooed income seoutites held by
a Fund weould likely decrease A neeninal intenest rate can be described as the
sum of a real imerest rate and an expected inflation rate. Interest rate
changes can be sudden and unprediciabie, and a Fund may lost maney if
thess changes are not anticpated by Fund management A Fund may not be
albde to hedge against changes iin interest rates or may choase net to do so for
o5t o other reasons. In addition, anmy hedges may not waek as intended

Durazion is & meadure wed 1o detenmne the serdanmty of a secuity™s proce 10
changes in @terest rates that noonporates 3 seculity's yiehd, coupon, Bnal
maturity and call features, among other characteristics. Comeexsy is an
sddmionsd measune weed oo understand a security s of Fund's intenest rate
sensithaty that measures 1he rate of change of duration in response 1o
changes im interest rates. Fived income secunbes with longer duratiors tend
o bt e Serviatied 10 changes in interest rates, usually making them mone
wolatie than securities with sharmer durabons. A wide vaniety of faciors can
cause inberest rases of yedds of U 5. Treasury secunities for yields of other
typsh of bonds) 10 rise (e g, central bank mandtary polecies, inflatson rates,
genedal sconamic conditind, ete ) Thet i especially true under curent
conditions because interest rates and bond yelds are near histoncally low
leveis. Thus, the Fundss currently face a heightersd bevel of risk associated
wiith i anterest tates andlor bord yields. This could be diven by a varety
of kachees, anchuding bart not limited o centeal bank manetary polices,
changing inflatice or mal growth rates, general economic conditices,
merediing bond dsuanced of reduced maiket demand for low welding
ienestments. Further, while U 5 bond markets have steadily grown ooer the
past three decades, dealer " marke! making”™ abiliy has remained elatively
slagnan Gt thee importande u!-n!l:-l:-cd-ar,- “market makang” i cieatng
a fobarst and active market, fued income secuities are currently

fading increased volatsity and liquidity risks. All of these fachors, collectwvely
andiod indnadually, could Ciede 3 Fund 1o lode valok Il thie Fund lads Efugh
value the Fund could face increased Unitholder redemptions, which could
funther imgpair its performance. Also, the Fund may be adversely affectad
when a large Unitholder purchases or redaens lange asvaunts of units, which
can oour at iy tene and may impact the Fund in the same manner a5 & bagh
yolume of redemgbion 1equests. Lange Unitholider ransactions may impact
the Fund s Biquidity and net asset value. Such ransactions may aiso intresse
the Fund's transaction costs of olberwiie cause the Fund 10 perform
diffiererthy than imended. Morecwer, the Fund is subject to the nisk that
other Unithalders may make investment deasions based on the choices of a
large Linisholder
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A Fund may have significant exposure 10 rsuers in the Ursted Kingdom The
Liniged Elr.\-?c!um". withdrawal fnem the Exsopean Wman may impact Fund
returers. This decrsion may cause adstantial volatibty in Torespn exchange
mariets, lead b wealness in the exchange rate of the British pound, resultin
a susnained period of market uncertainty, and destabdize some o all of the
othes Ezopean Linion member countries andiar the Eurozome

Foreign (non-U 5.} securities in this repon are dassilied by the country of
incespeeation of a bolding. In certan instances, 3 secunty's country of
incoeposation iy be difener from s country of econamic esperiure

IF & Fueed imvests directly in foeeign (ron<U 5 ) cumencies or in secuntess that
trade in, and recenve reverues i, Foreign (nan-U 5 ) cumencies, or in financial
diervative ingruments that paovsde exposute to foregn (non-U S ) curencies,
it will e sisbyect to the nsk that those curencies will decline invalue relative
to the base cunrendy of the Fund, or, in the ase of hedging positions, that
ther Fuorsd's bt Curtgncy will dischne o wilug relatnod 20 thee currency being
hedged. Cumency eates in Toresgn countres may Floctuate sgraficantly oves
shoet peniads of time Tor a number of reasons, indluding changes in interest
rates, inservenition (or the fue ta intervene) by U5 or forsign governments,
tentral banks or supranational entrties such as the Inemational Monetary
Fund, o by the imnposition of currency confinols or ather politcal developments
i the United 55abes of abigad As o result, 8 Fond's mvsstmints |n1un_1q-|
currency-denominated seouities. may reduce the Fund's retums,

The market values of equities, such & common stecks and preferred securitses
or equity related imvestments such a5 futures and options, have historically
reien and falen in peetiodic Sycles and may diching due ta general muket
conditions which are not specifically related to a particular company, such as
redl o percerred adverse economic condifions, changes in the gereral
ouslonk fiod corpesate earnings, changes im mleres) o cutrency rates, public
health emergences, such 2 the spread of infectow dress or disease, or
adverse investor sentiment generally They may also declne due to faciors
which atfect a particulas indstry e industnzs, such as labor shortages or
incregsed praduction costs and competishie condibees wathin an ndustry
Differant types of equity seourities may react differently to these
developments. Equity securities and equity related imvestments generally have
greater matket prics volatlit then ned moome seounte

The Funds may imeest in ceetain instruments that eely in some fashion upon
LIBOR, LIBOR is an average sntenest rate, determined by the ICE Benchmark
Admmistration, that banks change one anathis fiar ghe use of shoer-term
manay. The United Kingdom's Financial Conduct Authanty, which regulates
LIEOR, has anngunced plans to utimately phase out the use of LIBOR There
remdire unoertaingy regaiding luture wlikzaten of LIBOR and the natue of
amy replacement rate (& g, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate whidh s
intended to replace U % dollar LIBOR and measures the cost of avernight
boriowings thiough nepuichde agreement transiclions collateralized with
U5 Teeasury secutities) Any patennal effects of the maenmion sway fram
LIGOR on a Fund or-on cevtain estruments in which a Fund imvests can be
diffcult v ascertan, and they may vary depending on a vasiety of factors. The
transitenn may oo result in a teduction in the valve of certain irstruments
hield by a Fund e a reduction in the effectiversss of related Fund transactans
such as hedoes Any such effects of the trarstion away from LIBOR, as well
s cther unfedeeen effects, could result in basses ta a Fund

Beginming in lanuary 2020, global financal markets have expenienced and
may continue bo expenierce significant volatility resulting from the spread of a
nowvel conandnirus known o CONID-12 The outbeeak of COVMD-13 has
resulted in travel and boeder restrictions, quarantines, supply chan
disruptioes, lower consusmer demand and gereral markef uncertaingy, The
r|||:\l,|.1l sEononTy, the sconomist of cerain nations and indradioal oet have
been and may continue to be adversely affected by CONID-19, pamicularly

fight o the imterconneciiity between economies and financial markets, a of
which maey negatieely imgact the Funds’ Ftrfn'nl.ml:\r i addimen, COWVID-12
and geveinenental responses e COVID-19 may négatnely impadt the

capahilities of the Funds’ service providers and disrupt the Funds” operations

Cradit and Countevparty Risks A Fund vl be exposed 1o aedit nsk 5o
panties weth whosn it trades &nd waill sl bear the rsk of settlement difauly
A Fumd minimizes concentrations of credit rsk by undertaking ranachors
with a large number of customers and counterparties on recognized and
eeputable exchanges, where applicable. OTC derrvatree ransactions ate
subject 1o the ek than a countesparty 16 the transaction will net fullil its
contractual obfgations to the ather party, as many of the peotedions affonded
o centrally deared desteative tramsactions might not be avadable bor OTC
detneatios trandactiond. For derrvathoes raded on an exchamge of through a
central counterparty, credit sk resdes wath the creditworthiness of

the Fund’s clearing broker. o the dearinghouse itself, rasher than with a
ourtiparty i an OTC digncatnad tandbehon. Chandges i digulaten rdabng
i a Fund's use of derrvateves and related instruments could pobentiatly limi
of impact the Fund's ability to invest in dereatives, imit the Fund's abelity to
ermploy certain Srategies that use dematned andice adverssly dffect the value
o perfoemance ol derrvatives and the Fund A Fund could lose maney if the
suer of guatantor of a fmed income sequrity, or the counterparty to a
financal derrratee instiuments contract, repurchase agresment o a loan of
pomfolio secuntie, i unable o wrwilling to make tmely princpal andiol
inerest payments, of 1o otherssse honor its obbgations. Secunties and
financiad dervative instruments are subject 1o varying degrees of credit ik,
which may be refiecied in credit ratmngs

Simalar 1o credit nsk, a Fund may be exposed to courerparty rsk, of the rsk
that an irslitwtion o other entity weth which a Fund has unsetiled or apen
wransacsans vall defauly FIMED, & the Manager, mimmzes. countesparty
risks to the Furds thiough a renber of wiays. Pror to entering inga
transactons with a new counterparty, the PIMOD Counterpaty Risk
Commiltes condcts an extensive credit neview of such <ounlerpanty and must
approve the use of such coustemparty. Furthenmone, pursuant 1o the terms of
the umdezhying confract, o the extent that unpaid amounts owed to a Fund
exceed a peedetermined thiethold, such counterpadty shall advance collaieral
i & Fursd in the Torm of cash ar seounities equal in valoe 1 the unpasd
amaunt owed to a Fund A Fund may imsest such collateral in seowities o
other instiuments and will fypically pay interest to the counterparty on the
collateral recenved I the unpaid amount owed ta & Fund subsequently
decreases, 3 Fund would be sequired to retem to the cunterpaty all or a
paortion of the collateral previously advanced. PIMCD's attempts bo minimize
COurpaty ik sy, however, be unsucoessis

Al trassachons in listed securties ate settledpaid for upon deliveny using
approved countesparties. The risk of default i considered minimal, as delvery
al secuntsss sodd 15 nn"_ll made cnge a Fund har recenved paymint P.a:frnrﬂl, B
made on a purchase once the securities have been defbeered by the
counterpasty. The trade will Tail if either party fails to meet its chligation

) Othe Risk |0 genedal, each Fund may be subject to additonal nisks,
wrcluding, but hat bemed 1o, miks related o govemment fequlation and
miervention in financal markets, operational risks, nsks assocated with
financial, economic and global market dsruptions, and ofessecurity nsks
Please tefer 1o each Fund's affering decuments for a mane detaded
description of the risks of imeesting in the Fund

Market Dissuptions Rigk The Funds are subject 1o imvestment and
operational risks assocated with financal, economic and otfer global market
developments and drknaplions, including thode ansing from war, Termonsem,
market manipulabion, goveinment inbesventions, defaulis and shutdoaes,
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pofitical changes or dipfmatic developments, pubibc health emergendies
{fch o the speedd of infectious debeases, pandemacs and ispidermics} and
naburalfensdronmental dsasters, which can all negateeely impact the secusities
mariets, inferest ra%es, auctions, secondary trading, ratings, credit risk,
inflatsan, deflation and other factors relating to the Fund’s invesrents o the
Manager's operations and cause a Fund to lose value These events may hae
adverse long-term efiects on the U 5. and word econcmies and markets
generally. These events can abia impair the technelogy and ather aperational
systems upon which a Fund's sendce providers, incuding PIMCO a5 the
Funds' imvestment advisar, rely, and could atheswise disnupt a Fund's. senice
prowiders ability 1o fulfill their obligations to the relevant Fund. For example,
the spread of an mfnctsous resparatony dnets cauied by & ngvel strain of
coronavings (known as COWVID-19] has caused volatdity, severe market
dislocations and liquidity corstrants in many markets and may adversely
affect 3 Fund's imeenments and operations

Governmeat Intervantion in Financial Markets Fedenal, state, and other
governmenits, their eequlatory agencies, of seff-requlatony ceganizations may
take actions that affect the regulation of the irvstruments in which a Fund
ieEts, oF the e of Sich Salruments, in vlyh thisl aré witledid pegle
Legiskation o regulation may alse change the way in which a Fund itsell i
requiated. Such legestation or regulation could limit or prediode a Fund's
ability 16 achieas its imeitment abjectere. Fuithermare, volatile fnancal
markess can expose 8 Fund 1o gréaer macket and bquidity nsk and potential
difficulty in valuing portfiolio irstruments held by the Fund. The value of a
Fund's holdings is aka generathy subject 1 the risk of futuie local, nabonal, or
glabal economic disturbances based en unknown weaknesses in the markets
in which a Fund invests. in addition, it is not certain that the U % Govemment
willl Intervene in neiponss 1o a huture marked disturbance and the elfect of any
such futune ervention cannat be predicted 10 & diffacult for sisuen 10
prepate for the impact of future financial downdurns, althaugh comparess can
seek to adentify and manage uture uncertainties through risk management
prograes

Ragedatery Risk Fmancal enbies, wech &8 imviStment companes and
imeestment advisess, ae generally subject 1o exienshe government ragulation
and intervention Govemment regulation andfor intenvention may change the
wiity 3 Fund is requlated, atfect the expenses incurned dinectly by a Fund and
the value of 1is investmenits, and limit andfor predude a Fund's ability 1o
ackieve its investment chjetive. Govemment regulation may change
Trequently and may have significant adverse comsequences Mareover,
givemment regulation may have unpeedictable and unintended effects

Dperationsl Risk An imeestment in a Fund, ke any fund, can imoive
operaticnal rsks ansing from Factoes such as processing errors, human emors,
inadequate or failed imemal or external processes, fallures in syitems and
technology, changes i personnel and errads cauted by third-pary senice
providers. The cocureence of any of these Failures, erors or breaches could
resuilt in & boss of information, requlatony sorutany, reputational damage of
athes events, oy of which could have & maseial adverse elfsct ona Fund
‘While a Fund seeks 1o minimize such events through controks and eversight
these may still be falures that coubd cause losses to the Fund

Cybar Seewrity Rish A the use of technology has become meee prevalist in
the course of business, the Funds have become potentally mone suscep thie
to operational and imlormation securty risks resulting from breaches in ober
secuity A breach in oyber securtty refiers to both intentional and
uninfenionad Syber events thal may, among othid '.!||:1|_|1 caude aFurd 19
lpse propretary informaton, suffer data caruptian andlar destructon or lae
operational capacity, result in the unautherized release or cther misuse of
ceefidential information, or otherwse dinupl normal business aperations
Cyber security Tailures or beeaches may result in financial losses 1o a Fund and
its Unithalders. The<e faifures cr breaches may also result in disnptions 1o

bussiness operations. potentially resudtng in financial losses; intederence with
a Fond's abdity 1o calculate ity et anset walue, procis Unisholder
Tranaacbons of othenvise ransac business with Unithofders; impediments 1o
trading: vislations of appicatle privacy and other laws; regulatory fines;
penatties; reputational damage. neimbursement o glher compensation costs;
additional compliance amd oyber secunity sk management costs and athe
adverse consequences. In addition, substantial costs may be incuered in onder
1o pevient amy cyber incidents in the fuure

8. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be subect ta vanous netting arangements " Masier
Bgrasmints”™ ) with it coumtspaitail Muter Aghsements goven thir
tesres of gertain transactions, and are intended to reduce the counterparty risk
asspcated with relevant transactions by specfying oredit protection
mechanismd and peoviding standardization that i intended to mprove legal
ceranty Each type of Master Aqresment govems cerain types of
transactions. Diflerent types of transactions may be traded out of dflerent
legal entities of afffiates of 2 particular arganzation, tesulting in the need For
emultiple aqreemserns with a single counberparty As the blaser Agreements
ame specific bo unigue operabions of different asset types, they allow a Fund to
close 0wt and net its botal exposure 1o 3 counterpaty in the event of 3 default
with respect 1o all the transactions governed under a angfie Master
Agreement with a counterparty. For financal reparting purposes the
Saaterments of Assats and LiabiSties generally present denvative assets and

ablies on o gross badd, which refllecss the Tull ks and EXpruTE price 1o
nEting

Masler Agreements can also help kit counterparty nsk by spetifying
collateral pasbng arangements af pri-aranged ogoesute lels. Under ot
Master Agreements, collaberal is routinely tramshened if the tatal net exparsure
1o certain transactions (net of exsting collateral already in place) governed
unider the reliviant Mater Agieement with & Counbisparty i 8 gradh sdi0un!
exceeds a specified threskald, which ypacally ranges fram e to $250,000
depending on the countesparty and the type of BMaster Agreement United
Sabes Troasury Bills and U1 5. doll cach aie generally the preferned doims of
collateral, although other secuntees miny be used depending on the teems
outlined in the applicabde Master Agreement Secuites and cash pledged as
collateral ave reflected a5 assets on the Haternents of Assets and Liabiliies &
either & componient of Imvesiments a1 waiue (securies) of Deposts with
courdedparty. Cash collsteral recatied is not typacally hedd in a seqregated
accownt and as swch is rellected a5 a hiabilty on the Statements of Assets and
Liabiliies a5 Depordats fiom counieparty. The marke varlye af Ty seurities
eecafved as collateral i nod reflected as a companent of NAY. The Fund's
overdll exposure to counterparty nisk can change substantially within a short
period, a5 it i atfecied by each tansaction subject 1o the relevant Magter
fugresment

Master Repurchase Agreements and Global Master Repurchase Agreements
(indredualy and collectrely " Master Repo Agreements™) govirn repurchinse,
everie nepuichane, and sale-buyback tranactions between the Funds and
sefiect counbesparties. Masber Repo Agreements mantain provisions for
amang cither things, initaton, income payments, events of default, and
mannenance of collateral The market value of ransactions under the Master
Repa Agreement, collateral pledged oe recerved, and the ret expersure by
courtmparty a5 of peiod end are duclosed in the Notes 5o Schedule of
[rragmpnls

Master Secunties Foreaed Transaction Agreements (" Master Forward
Agreaments” ) gowern certain lorward setiling transactions, sudh as TBA
secunties, deliayed-delieny or sale-baybad trassachons by and
between the Funds and select counterparties. The Master Forwand
Agreements maintan provisions {or, among other things, initiation and
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8. FEES AND EXPENSES

3 5 51 [ abie af the e | iy 3 e O B3 ef Figels of @ = A
Fons

Fund Mana prment _Advisory  Adwinkstrative  Agency  Distribetios
FIMCO Bermuda Foreign Lows Duration Fund 0'&% = = -
PIMCO Bermuda 0.5, Low Duration Fund 078E%
FIMCO Eure Totad Ratorn Fusd [145% s
PIMCO Resal Raturn Fund 045% 0:25% DOz%
FIMCD Short Term Stratagy

« A 0 45% = o18% pETw

= uE0

s JUF s =

o J S

P 0145 % 05%
»  ED LR = L 10% T8
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The Mmanagement
admintsirathee and third-party senices including aedt, oustodial, trustes, ponfolio accouni
distribution fees, i applicable, are paid monthly in amears 1o resmburse Tinancial intermedianes that provide servces and distnbution relating to the units of the
applicable Fund {or Clyss theveol, a5 applicable) In the case of the PIMCD Barmuda Fareign Low Dusation Fund and PIMICO Bermuda U5 Low Duration Fund, FIMCO,
oun of i management Tee, will bear the coits associated with advisory and adminizirative seraces, 19 of which i3 dessgnated 1o cover administrathe expenses In
exchange foe bear the costs of certan third-paty senioes required by the Funds, induding audit, custodial, tustee, pertiolio acoounting, legal,
transber agent s PIMCO, and not holders, would benedil from any price decrase in the coat of such third-pa ng decreanes

resutting from an incrie i net assets In g an, Wil tespect bo Funds that are subeict 1o an inistrative lise, J gerataly makes a piohs on such alee

s poted inthe tabke above, certain Funds ard Chasses of Funds are not subject to management, advisory, admenistrative, agency o distibution fees. PEMCO lapan
Lid, PRJCIY's affliate in fapan, is paed a fee from the Rapanese Imvestment Trusts or other snvestment vehides that invest in such Funds. or Classes and a portion of
quch foe 12 thien allocated 18 PIMCD ra comperdate if Tor 14 senaces, a3 Wphcatle

The Funds lor Classes thereal, a5 applicable) may bear other expenses related to their operatson that are not covered by the management, advisary, admirsstrative,
agengy or distributicn fees, including bat not imited 1o {i) tames and govemmental fees; (i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portiolio rarsaction expenses;
fui} cosks -ul'l:-:|:r:r.-.'.'|.'| morsey, inchading intenest expensey: (i) exiraordmarny sxpenses, ihcluding coses atien and indemnifcation expenses; and (v} T TR
aliocaned o alocable 1o & speafic Clas of umity, a5 applicable PRICO has paid the organzational experes asonated wath the creaton of each Fund

PIMCO has paid the omganizational expenses associated with the creation of the Trust IF further Funds are launched, such costs directly attributahle fo the releant
Fund may be beme by the celevant Fund
10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imeestment Adviser 15 a related pasty bo the Funds and is a majo
disclened in Note 9, and acciued relited party Fee amounts, il any, are druclosed on the Sater

gwned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management AG. Fees pand 1o the related party, d any, are
erts of Asgets and Liabibtie

Certam Funds are permitted to purchase or sell secunties from o2 1o cerain refated affihated furds under speafied conditions cutlined in peoceduares adopted by the
Imeestmient Adveser. The procedanes have been desigred 1o ensure that 2y pusthase o sabé of secunitees by a fund Fiom or 10 another fund that is or could be
corradeded an affiliane brywirtue of hapving & common achnser {or affiated wreesement adwisers), m effecied at the cusrent market price. Duing the pencd ended May
11, 2022, the Fundt) e egbged ih purchdsss ahd saes ol weauined ST affiared lunds [aaunts in thaiand)

_Fund o
PAAC0) Baemeds Fermgn Lovar Dhorenen Fusd § 3 i
PN Baemsesda 15 Low Dsateen Fund 1,08
PILCD Emergeng llaricets Bond Fund [MI 45,0
PRADD Ewrn Total Returs Fund 1
PMCD Real Retuesn Fund )
PSR! St T Saemtngy 51,1

11, GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIDNS

TR
demnification dauses
at hiraE nl es

Unader ther Teusts crganirational documents, cerlan partss (including the Trustes and PIMCOL aoe ndemnifiod sgmndt ofrCaen kabditgs that m
perdomance of their duties 1o the Funds. Additicnally, in the normal course of business, the Funds enter inlo contracts that cortain a varity
The Funds” mammirm expesure under these amangements i wnkngen a5 this would imvohe futune daims that may be madie againgt the Fund

occurced. Howiwer, the Funds hive not had prior clsms of losses pursuant 16 thise contracts

12. UNITS OF BENEFIGIAL INTEREST

The Trust may issue up o 500,000,000, 004 units. The Funds may have a sgnificant concentration of rek, as certain Unitholders cwn more than ten percent of the net
assets of each respective Fund Such concentration of Unithohders' inferests could have a material effect on the Funds in thie event these Unitholders request to
wathdraw substantial amounts of capital at the same time Subscriptaons and redemptions of units of the Funds are denaminated in the Funds® NAY cumency and
uimveried bo the Funds' | nal oamency al the spot rate on the transaction date. Units of each Fund are ssued without par vatue The Trustee, with the consent ol
the Managee, may in the future create and ofler an additional Fund or Class or Classes of wnits

™
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al il were 34 dolla | amouenits in thousands™ |
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Ny 31, W22 iy 11, 22 My 31, 2022 Moy 11, 222
Fcwpts for ority mid L] % 413 : | ] e i} ] 1,080 Nk Wik
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1 B53 don DRMIDY i) 500 1980

ey rimal Flavers & Fragranosy, Ing,

| B doe DRSIHIZY i) 1o 1300
5199

Aaswalia and Mew Tealand Banking Groep Lul.
18

0.400% dus 02017802 L 18
Banks o1 Nava Santia

02005 dun DEN1200 e i}
ENP Parikad Bask

0L TH0 den DENINZ2 ElR 11 12
10X des DHOEATY 1104 g 1]
LEL ¥ o 3
0805 daw BE012007 1 g 11
0800 don DEO12022 il 1 5§
Cinbask N

053 deg 050170 - M3 3
DEE Bamk L.

(1830 do DED102E e v}
HEEC Bask PLC

LTI don DED KT 1] H i v}
0430 dow DS0T1T0T (711 | 4
JPRborgan Chose Bank NA

Q400 das DSOARET 1 =5 =5
Fayal Bank ol Canads

112005 dod DS0172002 B B
Szmiteren Mitawi Banking Corp.

01 TB0%) don DETINEZ [i1] L]

0 S00R% dos DEOSET B 1 n

Sumiterss Mitssi Trust Bank il

10.700% dow DEOWNEZ R
0400 dew DEOINED ]
0 S0 don DETH 2022 i
0430 dhoh DSM13022 GEP

0 OO o DML 6 4]
Tonal Ehart Term | mvinemencs

[Cemt $BEIE
Total levestments ia Secorities (i 106.3% % 481,788
[Cast $458.530]
Foma il D iwwnive

e umeeats gl 0L1% pi: L)
(ot er Powrsd s, vt 51700
ke Rasdn isd Likslities, set [6.4%) Ny
Mt Assers | DOLD% o 4x3.318
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Schedule of Investments PIMGD Short-Term Strategy iCont)

NUNES T SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT 5

*  Azerobalance may reflect actual amownts roursding to less than one thousand,

{a} The allocation of Tolal Invesiments by geographéc region as of May 31, 2022 is 85.6% of Net Assels in the Unhled States, 11.3% in the Cayman Islirds, 35%
im the United Kingdom, 5.5% in the neland and obihes countries comprising of 21.2% of Net Assets in aggregate.

i When-ssued seourfty.

o} Coupon represents a wekghted average yiekl b matusity.

(] Coupon represents a yhehd to maturity.

Markat Vabon as

Matuiity Acquinitisn Maikat Percartage ol

Issuar Deserigtion Leupsn Date Dats Ceat Vi Nl Asssts
Dewtacon Bark 4G ol OSAETMN s el LI LI H 01

BORFIWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

Pasyabile Tar
Betrewding Sarlthafruet Mahurity Eesvirenl Révarin Rispuichin
Counteeparty Fatw™ Hats Datw Hory rovesd” A
BO% 0 Exgs s 1 ra
00 BE0% il 11558
DB ST e

Total Reverss Rapurchinn figisamnsty

Payabls fof

Hesrewang Sale Buyhack
Caunierparty Rata™ Trarsctions™
LY arhl 1
BF3 TEED
BPS ST
54 SR 2
Ttal Sale-Buybeck Transactions % (15858

Famasning Gontractml Mabsrity of the Agresma s
Darnight and Greatmr Than
c Up 30 daya 1188 days B9 days Tatal

F R ¥ - ﬂr
W% Govemnmnt Dbt 117,983 1] 1] D | 16,645
Tistal Haversn Ragurehase Ao mamasts j . [17.533| 4 BE2| 3 L] ¥ ] 13 [1BEB5)
Sale Buryback Trarsactions
WS Gospampnt Dodt i [5.8561 ] ] (75 856
Total Sale-Buybeck Transactions L ] L] 25856 % L] % L] § 25558}
Tiatal Boerewsings 5 (174831 ] 26718 ¥ o ¥ ] H 4. T
Payable 1or Rewerss Repurchase Agreemants and Sale Buyback Transacions A TN

T Followinsg = & sommany by cossteparty of the murtnl veiue of Bormowegs and Diter Frasceng Tremactoos snd colatel pledgedneceeed) as of May 31, 2122

i Seciuites with an aggregste market value of §22,632 huve been pleadged s collatersl undes th teime of the following madber sgresments a3 of May 31,
20TE

Repurchase

Agrmemant Payable foo Total

Procests Frewean Paryadn Bor Bartowings and

1oba Repirchace Sala-Buyback Payuble for  Orther Financing Colataral

G party Racaivad A T it Sales Tr i Plaignd [F & Nat Erposura™
Glateribyiaw Rupurchacs Agnimrmant

¥ ¥ % s 4 2 L q 13 I § (L. 1111] # a

B [} d B i
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

Ropuichazn

Agiwsirnl Puyuble s Totwl

Procesds Forweena Payalde for Banowings and

1o ke Repurchaze  Sale-Buyhack Payaleber  (Mther Financing Colateral

Couniseparty Heceivad Agr L] Tearaactions S Suben Transactions _ Pledged Recoived) Nat Espeos”
Manw Sarsree Forward Trrescuens Agrammsn
BLY ] = ] @ i 4 [ . .k T ] o713
BF% g 9 bl o] 1] 396 Bl
LM : 8 11,3801 g il 11,3401
Tetal Brarewings sad Other Financiag Tramactions _ § 0 & [iBsak § [(XEA86) & o

gl FINARCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS: EXCHANGE-TRADED OR CENTRALLY CLEARED

Uniaadsed
ol Appreciation! Vaviation Margn
Coniracts  ({Depreciation) Aol Linhalsty
8 ] L ¥ 1] ] H
7] 11 i ]
. B - 1]
1167 5 in ]
! 13 ] b
13 il 147 1]
LI, i 10 1l 1]
Tatal Fubares Cantracis # JEES) § B2 i) Hn
Unreakizied
Fioond Deal Magwrity ot | Idarkeq fippreciatian) Wariation Margin
|ewbecs [T varec b PayiRste Duta Ammewnl” Valus™ iDepraciation) Asdat Liability
FOX G-37 Indix 11 R0TH1 L v ¥ 45,500 ] 17 3 5 L] 14 -] ]
LI M2 i 110001 [ k] 130 [E-] 3 - a
¥ i 3 £E3 § 16 § ]
Ut iealicad
PayReceie Natanal Pelarkn Appreiatioa __ Vasiation Masgis
Floatiag Rate Floating Rate Index Amount Valm Dapreciation| Axpsl Lishility
Fay” H-Mpath 130-UB0R i .900 § 1 ] 1 ¥ Iz 4 1]
Fay § Dvaivughs Fegeca) Rate HR0 1] & o 1]
T gkt Francas Fain 1 bad i) P i ]
4 Bl ¥ 22 % 16 8 East
Tetal Swap &preements L] [653] § C L] i | [30%)
Tha folioewnyg & & somemany of the macke valse and varases maspn of Exchange-Fraded or Denmally Clesced Fnascal Decwuiive bnsirumanss o of May X1, 2082

{h]  Securities with an aggregate market valoe of $584 and cash of $2464 have been pledged as collaten | for exchangedraded ard centrally cleared

finarcial derivative insirumssnis as of May 31, 2022 See Nole B, Master Netting Arrangements, in the Notes to Financisl Stabersents for mone indormation
regarding masber netting arrangements.

Finaicial Daiivative Aidals Firsresiad Dariantive Liakili te
WVariatien Margin Var lad s Margin
Matkont Walus St _Matket Walus Lishility
[Perc hased Swvap Writtan Swap
Optioe Fetiren A Total Dptioe Fustuses Ay Teasl
Tetal Exchange-Traded or Centrally Cleared _§ ] E2 % ra ] B4 % (] 1R sl $ 148!
Ten mrompary oy win E

Bl Rapert | Mhiy 31, 2007
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

| FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS: DVER THE DOUNTER

Caraney te
B Dot e

Unrsalirad dgpaciation Degreciation]
[T Liakility

[ 16,168 ' [i ] 1501
GEP iz 15 ]
Lo 1 ] il

¥ ] i i
IL5 0 /]

% 1

GEP 1] =
Can @ ] ]
Y ] ] a
4 Al )z n /]
1 3 1

I 5% ] :1]

[T ¥ g1 ] ]

L 2 ML 1455 1 a

A 1! ' 1541 ] nan
W [HE ] 5] o 1

& ] AL ] ] 1

e 3 [

by A ] i a

NID ] n 175
# EUR 1 [
o [

7 ¥ i
) ] [ 1431

§ I T ¥ 5 ]

ui0 L] ® t

4 g B n i

Hill F] &1 1] El

. o i

- 1 8

o L]

n 131

§ W : o ]

uin ] n 1

4 ! gz o 18
i ] B 0

§ Ll L1 18 ]

uin : 182 o ]

i ! 1004 9 i

IO ] ¥z 0 1]

L] o 7|

§ i ol 1.3 i ]

1788 2 8

§ N [ 1145
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

Carrency te Cwrencyio  __ Unmeasloed Appsclation iepreciation)
b Dolveed Azt Liability
o mEa 1 ] ' Bl
B [
L Fad i)
L i
1P kr ) 1
L 1]
] o
JFY 10 1}
i 3 ]
i [
JFY 15
i (]
']

] &1 L 1533
Tetal Forvess d Forwign Corrency Contracts ;] 1,155 g i3

By FSedl

Countiaparty  Daseription Pratict
BOA Pig < COX 10 5di el
BPS Pz -L Sal

ESirikn Exgiranen atsanal P edTRoiTes et
Caunteparty Ciessriplion Price Datn Hmaust" Macnignd Wl
BAL Pt - Fuonan s * L TR DG T 2200 1 [T} L]
Fist - Fasnag Migg™ " HLm i e i )] 3 1

Total Whittan (iptions 5 20 % (L1]]

TR

Tie foflowinng 1 b sammuary by comsbarparty of the murki vabue of O0TC frantal fermatve strurmants aad collateral pledgeds maved] a0 of May 31 2

Cash of $360 has been pledged as collateral for financial derivative instruments as governed by International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. master
agreements as of May 31, 2022

Financ ial Derivative fxuests Fnancita| Dmivative Lisbilitiss

Tutal Fernign Tatal Mot Marke1  Colateral
Fwvap Diwi tha Cuirency Written Frrap Dvei tha  Valww of 0TC  Pledged’ L

Couniseparty Agr B Couster Contracts Oiptions g Couster  Darivatives _ (Fersived)  Faposuns™
L 1] § ] § : L 0 L 1] 4 1] L] | § 13 L 3
D 75 % 1 D 185 241 1 H
x b Fl i i ] kS B I
o 1 i L i 1 i
67 L ] 1) I 0 0 ] 2] g i
U B 1] 1] .. | 0 1] 8 ) 28 2
8l b D 1] [l ! o 1 = a3
1 b I 3 13 B ] k<l il i L
i o ] ¢ 13 B 1621 1 b
P ] 1 q 0 ! 0 I q 1
U B 1] 1] : L] 1] (LA ] a7 5 an
o b ] I b D H ks 330 H
v b o n 5 7 ] 1% ] 3 I
i b ] m 50 b 1503 nr 2% L
Tee mrempary ey win Bl Rapert | My X1, 2007
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Schedule of Investments PIMCO Short-Term Strategy iCent)

Financ ial Deriwative dxsets Financital Dowivative Lisbilities
Fareand Farsand
Fremgn Tatal Formign Tatal Mot Market  Colfateral
Cutrency  Purchaied Svap I:le tm Canemncy Writien Ovel B Valon of TG Pledgedl
I‘.ﬂ.m'brarhl Coniracts I]pt M I}:ll:l:r.u I]E W Counter Dlrlnhm IMNHI E
AL § £y ] =0 Lol 3 o ¥ L] k] e
Tatal Ovar tha Cosnter  § 1,184 [] n i [] l 1,158 ] ||,1|3r T M3 & [] 00,162

AR VALLE OF FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

prvrey of o lr wnlatoss ol e Funed'y dervalng

Thag vy & 4 3 stz caiigerasd by rk wpeeate S Nt 7, Porcpd wed Qo Rigkz, o the Wone 13 Frsaagal Saanimonnty oo iy of (e Fond

Fair Valou of Financial Darfaative Intirumants on the Statemants of Nesety and Liabilities oz of May 31, 207 F:

Dwtivitives nat accousted 1ot ax Bedgeng matremants

Feregn Irterest
Commadity Cradid Equity Cusrency Rate
[ [+ [ © Costinets Teasd
Financial Darryalive Inelfuments - Axeels
Exghangue-trached or oemtraly charsd
fonrs ¥ ] ] 1] 5 1] i ] 4 ¥
Smag Bgrieeanss 1] 16 1] 1]
) 1] 5 16 ¥ 1] 5 1] % ¥
i Vi e i
Feraard Forag Comency Eonmets ] 1] § 1] ¥ fi 5 1,15 ] & 4 1,158
4 b i 16 § [1] g 1,153 i (& ] [
Financial Darreative Irktr unents - Liabilities
Eerhangu-tracd o cesady ciared
Fubre ] ] L ] i ] % [} ] 11 ¥ L3}
Tl Airiieianey 1] 1] g £ 35
) ] § 1] i 1] 1 1] % HE ¥ HE
Dt 1hib Sonadini
Forward Fersiga Cermeney Conmazt ] b i ] L 1] § 111 H ]
Wreom Qpooes i} 1] a
] [ ] [ § 1 [l [ ¥
§ 1] i [ 1] i [1] [ 111131 ] 351 §
Tha EMect of Financial Decivative Instrumssts on the Statements of Dperations for the peied soded May 31, HO2:
Dt ivtivs nat sccousted |of b Bedgisg i
Forsign Intewest
Commaddly Cradil Equity Curteacy Ratm
Contracts Contrats Coabracts Contraces Comtracts Total
Mo Psalirad Guin (Leas] on Fisane sl Darrawtive bainaments
Excharge-tradid or contraly charad
Febit - 1] 5 1] § 1] | a ¥ T 1
Twun LgreTan 1] EDi a pes)
3 1] § (1] L [1] L 1] L] I 3
Ot this posins
Forward Fornga Conmwcy Condricis | ] § i} i [i} 3 1165331 § ] ]
Ve Qpossss 0 '] 1] q an
[] 1] ] 1] 1 1] [ 16,5331 1] an ¥
¥ D i (] § [/ [ 11E.53) ] ] i
Kot Change in Unieafirsd Appreciatsen Depracistion) en Financial Derivative Instiumests
Exchange-trached or comtally charnd
Fonrn ¥ ] i i 1] ] ] ¥ U
Sk Ryibvates 0 ] 1] 1] S4B
¥ '] 5 5 L 1] . a3 % LE ] 418
T mremparyay min Bl Raport | Mhiy X1, 2007
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Derivatives nat accounted 101 a5 bedgeng instraments

Fodigh Itidist
Commadity Cradit Equaty Cumency Rate
Canlrechi Canlimis Coatissts ] Coniracts Tetal
Mol Realied Gain [Leat] on Fsancisl Darrewtive bniraments
(unr th st
Forwand Formga Curnincy Lo ¥ ] ] ] § ] | ng 4 & ] me
'Yereom Opmass O ] 1] g % EL
) 1] ] ] § 1] L 7.0 % % ¥ 138
L] 0 L eal 1 [ [ 01 [ [IE i 1346

AR WALUE MEASUREAMSENTS

T foliows] i & werremary of The b waluatonr soooed [0 the wputs vend oa of Wiy 31, 032

vakirg Lhe Fend's agits ind babbtom
Fadr Vallow at
Catagery and Subcategory Loewd | Laval 2 Lovel 3 053070

Imvpnimmats in Sacurrlies. ol Vol
Corgate Ba

¢ 400 4 % a
118 i
Urieer ] b
Wizl Besds & ot ] 0
U5 Geovernman Ageneis i] B
" 1] ]
0 H
o [
0 "
1 [ [ ]
Firancial Daivatiom bnstrumants - Assats
Eod by D] o Enetraly chisnnd 1] A 0 L
Bver tha counter [ 1.154 I 115
i ] [ i)
Famarial [} i bnadvorms - Liabli
o bapi-tradhin] o' cotrally chisnid 1] D
Chva [hek Laukoar 0 1
1] 11,5081 1]

-
= |

Totale ¥ 198 4 4TABES

i
B

Thatm woird r) Sgrelbeaen]

eafrs it or wet of Level 3 doving the poriod mnded by 31

Ter mremparyay min Bl Rapert | Mhiy X1, 2007

199/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 31
2021 31
584,700 81,057
0 0
6 1
675 94
0 0
2,492 345
0 0
501 69
0 0
TBA 0 0
12,305 1,706
1,190 165
0 0
601,869 83,437
0 0
0 0
129 18
2,737 379
5,046 700
5,200 721
TBA 0 0
0 0
7,743 1,073
0 0
1 0
123 17
0 0
0 0
28 4
132 18
0 0
100 14
21,239 2,944

580,630 80,493
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579,610 80,351
0 0
0 0
(151) (21)
0 0
58,479 8,107
49,567 6,871
357,325 49,536
738
541
3,299
79.23 10,984
102.77 9,778
91.60 12,699
10,073
108.33 15,018
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31

7,233 1,003
21 3
7,254 1,006
185 26
189 26
990 137
208 29
173 24
1,109 154
42 6

43 6
224 31
41 6
100 14
3,304 458
3,950 548
4,558 632
0 0
(1,279) Qm
(2,270) (315)
1,318 183
2,327 323
8,810 1,221
0 0
(208) (29)
(932) (129)
(45) Q)
7,625 1,057
9,952 1,380
13,902 1,927
0 0
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3,950 548
2,327 323
7,625 1,057
13,902 1,927
0 0

0 0

0 0

0 0
136,529 18,927
150,431 20,854
430,199 59,638
580,630 80,493
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2021 31

66.95 9,281
@) 0.43 60
11.85 1,643
12.28 1,702
0
79.23 10,984
(b) 18.34
©) 1.89
58,479 8,107
0.91
0.90
0.57

0.01
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2021 31

91.91 12,741
©) 0.72 100
(1.03) (143)
(0.31) (43)
91.60 12,699
(b) (0.34)
© 1.73
49,567 6,871
0.78
0.77
0.76

0.01
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2021 31

106.12 14,711
(@) 0.56 78
1.65 229
2.21 306
108.33 15,018

(b) 2.08
357,325 49,536

0.91

0.90

0.52

0.01
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2021 31

2001

2017 29

PIMCO

2006

JITF
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US GAAP
US GAAP
US GAAP

JITF
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JITF
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JITF
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FASB LIBOR

ASU 2020 12 2022 12 31

NYSE

NYSE

PIMCO

NYSE

ETF

NYSE
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NYSE

NYSE
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NYSE

213/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP

US GAAP
US GAAP
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ETF

NYSE

ETF

NYSE

NYSE

NYSE
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LIBOR
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US TIPS
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CMOo
CMO
CMo
SMBS
SMBS
SMBS 10
PO 10
10
PO
CDO CBO CLO
CBO CLO CBO
CLO
CDO
CDO
CBO CLO CDO

CBO CLO CDO
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PIK PIK

2021 31

GNMA

FNMA

FNMA
FHLMC FNMA
FNMA

FNMA
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PC
FHLMC
TBA
UMBS
FNMA  FHLMC
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TBA

TBA
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PIMCO

PIMCO
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LIBOR LIBOR
LIBOR 2021
LIBOR
LIBOR
LIBOR
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COVID-19
COVID-19

COVID-19
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Notes to Financial Statements

1. ORGARIZATION

Each Fund disoussed in this repart {each a "Fund” and collectively, the "Funds” ], which atso indwdes each dass of units of that Fund {each a "Class” and coffectively,
the “Clisses”™), 1 a series rust of FIMCO Bermuda Togst (the “Teowsa ™), an operrended unil tngst establshed undet the L af Bermrada a5 & mulli-Senes wus o e
1o & trust deed executed by Winchester Global Trust Compamy Limited on Auqust B, 2001 (25 amended from tme io ume, the “Trust Deed”™) Efectve & of the dese
of business (Eastern tme) on September 29, 3017, Maples Trustee Sendces {Bermuda) Limied (the "Trustee™) was appointed a5 trustes of the Trust. Pacdic Imeestment
Management Company LLC ("AIMCO", the “Manage:™ or the "Imestment Adviser” ) & the sponsor of and was responsible bar stnucturing the Trust

Thae Toust 15 subject to requlabon and supenveaon a5 peovaded Tor in the Ivestment Funds Act 1006 and related rubes relating 1o standard funds
The terms. of the Trust Deed confer upon the Tnustee, wath the consent of the Manager, ke powes, in the future, to establish Turther funds in addtion to the Funds
currently in cpevation as of the date of thes report

Rederences 1o whitholders (each, a "Unsthalder™, and collectvely, the "Unitholders™ ) in, er units of (or an imeestment in), the Fund shall mean Unithalders of the Fund
whi hodd units, or dlasses of units (a5 applicable), which are attributable to that Fund

Thee Funds peesented i thes iepoet e sbed Bl

Fund Dffarsd o
| AAMICD Barmuds Forsgn Loww Dssubon Furd [t maly 1n haeds wirh @ Fund of Fonds® vnactons, a3 defiasd i the reles af the Invesoment Toas
AMED Berrseals U5 Lo Duratiss Fand fesatan, Japen, o 1 teads with & Beul sbvciw @ ey Glhe pradones
AMD] Emergeg Marke Sond Fond (ATH
PIMCD Ertrgreg Markets Borsd Fused [en-Rindgind |
| FIMED Emarging Markes Berd Fend
AMCO Ewed Toml Rutei s Fasd O 16 dotiel moiriion o B by vy of pubilic aects hioogh § Seirbatal w Jagin, $ad sy
ANED Aasl Awrorm Ferd b effored i ether swemtoe o3 e dacomen of the basager
| FIMICO Sher-Terre Sranegy” Ofteted 1 el sorilir o Japae by iy of eic ottieeng TRl & Sqimiegtst padiad o sl
tandng company i Japan, aad may be offered t ocher i s aa the derenon of the banager
1 AMED Errgengy Markees Soed Furd | {Hurnd sl m pobly Fusell 12 2a7vd BE 0 esdariong evesenim vibels b sk fosh
el P g gl e k. - ey At T, g Ll et i Eentent e Y W el

L it S Y e = 4 e Ay Y il vy A0 e

i e MR d iy e fod e i iy N ¥

Units of the PAMCD Ewe Total Retum Fund, PMCO Real Retum Fund, and AUD, IPY, and USD Classes of PIMCD Short-Term Strategqy have been registered under the
Fnandial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan. Units of each of the remaining Funds and the C {USDY, J {FPY), and ) (USD) Classes of PIMCO Shor-Term Strategy
himie nat been and ace not cusienthy expectad to be registered under the Finandal instruments and Exchange Lawe of lapan Aceordingly, such Unis af these Funds may
notbe, dicecthy or inditectly, offened in fapan or 10 amy resident in Japan, except in compliance with applicable lapanese laws and regulations

2. BIGNIFIC ANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The follcwing is a summany of sigrificant acocunting polices conststently folowed by the Trust in the preparation of is fnancial statements in conlormity weth
accounteng principles generally accepied in the United States of America ("U'S GAAP™) Each Fund i treated a5 an imsestment company under the reparting
requzements of U S GAAP The preperation of financal statements in acoordance with U5, GAMP requires management 1o make estenates and assumplions thag
affect the repored ameaunts of assets and Babilities and disdosure of contingent assets and liabiliies at the date of the financal statements and the reporied amounts
of ereaded and decieates in red asiets from cpitations durg the mpocting peiiod. Actual niudts oould diffes feam thode eitimated

|n] Acqmired Fends The Trustes and the Manager 11.7";(.;\-!; allar a porhon ol the assets qu‘:k’!CDEme:l_;lrg Markess Bond Fund UIMF), PIMICO En'.r_fq:'lg Madkats
Bond Fund (Yen-Hedged), and FIMCO Emeging Markets Bond Fund Il {each referted o heréin &2 8 “Fund of Furds” or the " Acquiting Fund”, which mrvests in ogher
Funds) 1o the respecte credit of the PIMCO Emerging Markess Bond Fund (M) (relered to hersin as an "Aogquired Fund(s)™) Ay assets oo applied wall be beld w such
Acepred Fund(s) as o recerved direatly. Whese assets are so applied, the Aogueed Fund(sh will recond the issue of units 1o the relesant Acguating Fund at the tssue price
per unit of such units and will repurchase such units at the repunchase price per unit of swch units at the time of repurchase

Ratios shown in the Fnanaal Highlights do nat indlude expenaes of the Acquired Fund(sh, See Note 9, Fees and Experes, for Burther information regarding fund fees,
a5 applicable

[b] Securities Transactions and Invesiment lnsoma Secunties iransactions ace recarded as of the trade date for fnancial reporting purposes. Securibes purchased or
sold on a when-issued o delayed-deliveny basis may be settled beyond a standard settlement penod tor the secunty afier the trade date. Reakzed gains and bosses
from securities sold ane recoeded on the identified cost basis. Dividend intome i reconded on the ex-dvidend date. except certain dividends fram Baeign secuiities
whene the et-drndend date may have passed, whach are receeded a3 soon &8 b Fund is infoimed of the ex-deadend date Interest income, adjuited for the accrnetsn of
discounts and amortzation of premiums, is recorded on the aocrual basis from settlement date, with the exception of secunities with a forward startng effective date,
where interest income & iecorded on the aocrual basis lom eflective date. For convertiblie securities, premivms aftribatable to the comversion {eatuce are nal
amorized Esimated tax Habilines on cemain foreign seowibes e recorded an an accrual Basis and e reflected a3 companents of anlerest income or net change in
unrealred appreciation (deprecation) an imvestments on the Statements of Operations, as approprizte. Tax Babdities realzed as a result of such secunity sales are
neflected 25 3 component of net realized gaim (kess) on investents an the Statements of Operations. Paydown gains and losses on mostgage-related and other

Rovssal Wapart | Moy 1, 200
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fNotes to Financial Statements co

asset-backed securities, if any, e recorded a5 components of imenest income
on the Statements of Operations. Debt cbligatians may be placed on nga-
accruat stabus and related intesest income may be reduced by ceasing cunrent
acmals and waiting aff interest recefable when the colection of all or a
porticn of interest has become doubtful based on consstently applied
procedures & debd obligation is reenoved rom non-aconaad sabus when the
issuer fesumes intenest payments o when collectability of inberest is probabde

led Caxh and Foreign Curresey The Bnancial statements of each Fund are
presenited wsing the currency of the primary economic emironmend in which i
opérated (the “lunctional cutrency”). The functional catrency Sot each of the
Funds is fisted in the below table

Thee marked valoes of forsign secunties, osnency holdngs and other assets
and liabilities ace ranslated o each Fund s functional cutrency barsed an the
current enchange rates each business day. Purchases and sales of secunities
and income and expense ibers denominated in fareign cureencies, if any, ae
transtated into each Fund's respective funcional oemency at the eahange
rane in effect on the transaction date The Funds do not separately repon the
effects of changes in boreign exchange rates fram changes in market prices on
secuities held Such changes are included in et reaized and net changes in
unreaized gain o loss from ewvestments an the Statements of Opesations

The Funds may imvest in Boreign currency denominated seosities and may
engage in foreign curency ransactions either on a spot [cash) basis at the
rat prevailing in the curnency exchange market 3 the time of thiough a
Ferweard forengn currency contract. Realized foreign exchange gaind of losies
ansire Trom safes of spot foreign cumrendies, curency gains or losses realkzed
bebaeen the trade and settlement dates on securities ransactions and the
difference beroeen the recorded amous of dnidends, inserest, and fotegn
withbolding taes and the Bunctional aemency equevalent of the amounts
actually recesved or paid are included in net realized gain or loss on foceign
currendy trarrachors an the Statements of Operations. Net ureealzed fateign
exchange gains and lodses ansing from changes in faceign exchange rates an
foeeign dencminated assets and labdities other than imvestments in secuities
held at the end of the reporting pericd are mchuded in net change in
unrealimed appreciation of depreciaton on fareign currendy assets and
ligbiities on the Statements of Operations

The Wet Asset Value (" HAN") and total reterns of certain Funds {or Classes
Iheeal, a5 applicable) ane peesented in the curmency for which the NAV is
reported (the “MAY curency”) as detailéd in each Fund's Ofleding
Mesmarardum (the *Olfering Memarandum™). For the putposes af the
preserdation of the NAY and the total neburn in the MAY wrency, the
beginning and ending NAWs ane converted using the perind beginning and
ending exchange rates, eipectively, and dainbutions ane comerted wting the
exchange rate at the time of the disinbution. See the Tollowing table for the
NAV qumency of each respeciive Fundt

Functonsl
FundiTinsr: WAY Curancy o
ML) Bermisd Fremgs Low Doratien Fusd Japanen yan 115 dolar
PAMCT Bermda U S Low Duration Fund Jagane yen 13 dolw
PN Exstrppa Markets Bed Fund LITF Sazant yin 115 delar
PSNACTY Emerging Markts Bondl Fund (WS 5. dollr 115 dalar
= IED
PRMACT) Emergang Markoss Bondl Fund [YenHedgedd | apaneem yn 115 dolar
PAMCT) Emergeg Markets Bosdl Fund Il Jazanew yen 5. dodar
& JIBRL
= JIbAj
s JINR
o _JiMN

ForeChe WAy
e JITAY] Jopanese yen US dollar
= JiZAR Jaganase yen U5 doll
[PRCH Eues Tersl Rsvom Fund [ Euwra
IO Resal Ranam Fuad U5 otk U5 dofla
FIMCD Short-Term Strategy
« A bestralan dollr | U5 dollar
« LD 115 deltar 15 dollae
. JLM St yen U5 dolte
s JIEN Jepanise yen UE dotla
- JFY Japanme yen UE dollw
L] U5 dallar U5 dollar

{0 Multieluss Oparutiona Each Class of 3 Fund offered by the Trust has
righss to the assets of the Fund equal o that of cther Classes of the same
Furd, except for specific assets and gains and losses desgnated 1o a Class
eelating to curmency hedging operatiors. Income. non-Class specfic espenses,
and non-Class specific reakzed and wreealized capital gaing and losses ae
allccated so each Clads of unins based on the relasne net assets of each Clags
af the respective Fund Class speaific expemes currently inchade
management, advisory, administratre, agency, and distrbution fees, where
aplicable

fa) Distribution Palisy TR followeng tatde shows the anoopated frequency
ol darnbutbions Tor each Fund Dettirbsutions Tram sack Fund iy e diselaied
and distributed to Unitholders anly upon the autharization of the Manager
which authonzation eey be withheld at the Managers disceetion

Declarnd Daily and Paid Mosibly:

PMLD Een Tatal Return fusd

Decdared and Paid Monthly:

PIMCD Emasgeng Markets Bond Fund LITR
PIMCD Ervrgeng Maskets Bone Fund i¥en-Hadgedi
PMCT Emerpeg Markets Bond Fund Il
PN Bhord Term Straiegy
- JULIP
e JEUEDN
PIMCD Berrmuds Fotega Low Dusation Fund
PIMCD Bermuda U 5. Low Durtion Fund
PANCD R Return Furd
AMCD Short-Term Strantegy

The Masager does sef expet io declare distribwiion with reapeet (s chin Formd
e Clagees thereod, if applieablel but may, in it diseretion, deslare and pay

s tribations te the Unithelders &1 any time.

PINE D Emesgreg Machses Bond Fund (U1

Distrbartives, o any, will genevally be made from the rebevant Fund's for
Clast’s, if spphcable) nes investment mcome. Bn additnon, the Manager may
sutharize the péryien of net realoed capaal gaing pvnlabie {or distrbution
Addiional detnbutions may be declared & the Manager deesrs aoproprate
Dizstribaurtions paid with respect to amy Fund {o¢ Class thereof, il applcable)

el R | My 31, 201
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will reduoe the NAY of such Fund (or Class thereol, if appbcable). Az the
discration of the Unitholders, Cah distrdutcag Trom a Fund {or Class themesd,
if applacablel may either be reimeested in addtional units of a Fund (or Class
thereaf, i applicatle) or paid 1o a Unitholder in cash. Cash payments will be
paid in the HAY cumency of the Fund. Each Fund (or Class thereof, if
applicable) may dechae further distrbutions if considered necessaey in arder
to maintain a reasonable level of distrbutions for a Fund for Class theneal, i
applicable) In the event that thene 15 inadequate net income and net realzed
capital qaing to pay o distribution of a Fund (ar Class thereol, if sppbcable)
requied by the Offering Memaorandum, the Manager may pay a distributson
consisting of a portion of the capital of such Fund (or Class therecd, if
applicable). Distrbations not collecied within s years from their due date

wall laprse and will dorrue 1o the benefit of the televant Fund (or Class thereal
il applacabile]

[fl New Acesuntimg Pronowseements and Ragulatory Updates 1n Mach
2020, the Finandal Accounding Standands Board [ FASE™) rssued an
Amountng Standards Update (TASU™), ASU 2020-04, which prondes
opnanal quidance 1o ease the potental soouring busden msoosed with
transitaoning away from the Londaon Intesbank Offered Rate {"LIBOR"} and
osher rederence rates that ane expecied to be discontinged. The ASI is
effectve immedately upon release of the update an Maich 17, 2000 thicugh
December 31, 2022 A2 thes time, management i evaluatng the implications
of these changes on the finanoal statements

3. INVESTMENT VALUATION AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

|a] Investesent Valuation Policies The price of a Fund's unds s based on
the Fund's NAY The MAV ol a Find, or each of its Chastes, as appficable, i
deteemined by diiding the total value of pontfiolio imestrments and other
assats attributable to that Fund or Class, bess any lisbilities, by the total
nursber o units autstanding of that Fund or Class. On each Fund's Dealing
Diary {ars dhepenibied in thee cutrent Offersng Memorandum of the

Tnusth, Fund unets are anfinardy vafued a5 of the diose of teqular rading on
the Mew York Stock Exchange ["NYSE Close”). Information that becomes
kngven to the Funds of thew agents after the time a5 of which NAY ki been
caloufated on a particular day will not generally be used to retroactely adjust
the price of a security or the NAY determined earlier that day. Each Fund
resereed the nght 10 change the time a5 of which s MAV & calodated i

the Furd closes eahe

For parposes of calouating NAV, poetiolio seowities and other sets. bor
which matket quotes are readdy availabile are valued at market value Markes
widue i generally detemined on the basis of affscial closing prices or the Last
reparted sales prices, of if mo sales are reported, based on quotes obitained
from established market makers or prices finduding evalisased prces) suppled
by the Funds” appeeved pricing semvices, guatation repoting systems and
other third-party scurces (togesher, " Pracing Senaces™) The Funds will
normally use pricing data for domestic equity securities recerved shorly akter
thr WYSE Clode aesd do nat nomatly take inlo adcount rad 11, Charantis of
sertlements that take place after the NYSE Close I market value paicing &
used, a foreign {ron-L S | equty seourity traded on a foreign exchangs o on
mare than one exchange is typically walued wsing pricing information fom the
exchange considered by FINCO to be the primany exchange A foreign (non-
U.5.) equity security wll be valued as of the dose of trading on the foreign
exchange, of the NYSE Close, if the NYSE Close acours before the end of
trading on the foreign exchange. Domestic and fosegn (ron-U 5 | faed
income securities, non-exchange traded derivatives, and equity opticns are
normally vabued an the basis of quotes cbtained from kbeokers and dealers or
Fracang Senvices wsine such data reflecting the prircspal markets Toe those
securities. Prices obtained from Pricing Sesvices may be based on, among
other things, indormation provided by market makers or estimates of market

values cbtained from yield data relating 1o mvestments or seoutities with
b chasacsemstcs. Certain fed income securties purthed on-a
defaped-delnvery basis are marked ta marke daily until seCthement o the
ferwaed settlement date. Exchange-traded options, exoept equity opticrs,
futures and optians on futunes ae valued a1 the sefthement price defermined
by the relecant exchange, quotes obtaned fram a quatation repaiting system,
established market makers or pricing senvices. Swap agreements are valued
an the basis of market-based prices supphied by Pricing Services o quaies
oltaired from brokess and dealers. & Fund®s imsestments in open-end
management investment companies, ather than enchange-traded funds
{"ETFs™), are valued at the MAWS of such imwesiments

H a Foreign [non-U. 5.3 equity secunty’s walue has matesialy chamged after the
chose of the secunty's primary axchange oo princpal market but befare the
MYSE Close, the seurity may be walued a1 Bar valiee based on procedures
etablished and approved by thie Manager Foceign (pon-405 ) equety
securties that do not 1rade when the NYSE & open are aloo valsed a1 fae
value, With respect to horsign (non-L1.5 ) equity securities, a Fund may
deteirine the Lar valoe of imaestments based on infamation provided by
Pricing Senvices and ether thind-party vendars, which may recommend fas
value or adjustments with relerence 1o other securities, indices or assets In
oondcen ™ whirthes Bair valisaton is requingd and in determining LAY

valued, & Fund may, aenondg athes thngs, cansider sgnificam events (which
may be considered 1o rclude changes in the walue of U5 secunities or
securities indices) that oocur after the close of the celevant market and befoe
thie MY5E Cloge. A Fund may utilkze modeling tools prowded by third-party
vendoes to determine fair walues of foreign (non-L1.5.) securities, For these
purposes, any mowsement in the applcable mherence index or imstrument

1" Bés0 !||q|,'-.-f':lb-r'.‘.vr¢'| he eaetonr clode ol the .Elphf.ﬂ‘.ll:' !"t!:P:{Jn ki
and the WYSE Chese may be deemed 1o be a significam event, prompaing the
application af the pricing moded {etfectivety resulting in daily far

valuations), Foreign exchanges may permai trading = Toregn [rondi 5 )
equity securdbes on diys when the Trust s not open for busness, which may
eesult in a Fund's portholio investments. being affected when Unithol3ess are
unabile ta biy o sell uts

Seniof seoured Roating rabe koars for which an acive secondary market exsts
1 a teliable degree will be valued a1 the mean of the last avalable bidfask
paites i the matket Bor such koans, as provided by 2 Pricing Senvice Senion
Secuied |h.1:."-q ez boand bar whech an actee secondaty markel 3o nod
st 10 a reliabde degree will be walued at Fair value, which is intended to
appronimate market value: Invaluing a senor secured Tloating rage loan at
Tarvalue, the Tacions conmdéred may include, but 2 not limited 5o, the
Tollowang: (a) the credtwanthiness of the borower and any stermedate
partbopants, [b) the tenms of the loan, {c) recent prices in the market for
semiad lpans, o any, and (dh recent prces m the market Sar vk ruments of
st quality, rate, period wel next interedr sabe resel &nd matunty

Irevestments walwed in currences ather than the functional ourenty

af a Fund are converted 1o the Tunictional currency using exthanige rates
chiared fiom Fricing Sensces. As a result, the value of such mestments and,
inn tuen, the NAY of the Furd's urits may be affected by changes in the value
of cumencies in relation to the functional currency. The value of imvestments
waded in I'qn'agn markets of denammnated i curtenoesd ather than

the Functional currency may be affected siynificantly oo a day that the Trust s
nat apen for business. As a result, to the extent that a Fund holds foreign
{nen-Ul S Y imeestments. the walue of thase maestments miry change af times
e you cannod puschase, redeem oo exchange wats and the value of such
irvestments will be reflected in the Fund's next caboulated MAY

Tevaitrinenls for which ket quilties o Enddkel-baged valuales ane fol
eeadily available are valued o Far value a5 determined in good fath by
thie Manager or pevsoes acting at their dimction. The Manager has adopted
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methods for valuing securitses and other assets in dincumstances wherne
markel quotis ang nat feadily peifabde, and has delegated o PIMCO the
responsibility for applying the far valuation methods In the event that market
quotes of market based valuations are not readily availsble, and the securty
of asset cannol be valued pursuans to a Manager appaoved valuation
method, the valee of the securty of Zset will be deteemined in good fath by
the Valuation Committee. Market quotes are considered not readily available
in arumitances wheee thece is an absence of curnent or reliable markes-
based data (e g, wade informaion, Badlask infarrmation, indecitive smarket
quotations (" Broker Quotes”), Pricing Senvices' prices), indudng wher
evends pocur after the dose of the relevans market, but prior 1o the NYSE
Clase, that matesally aflect the values of the Furd's secunties of ssets In
addition, market quaotes ae considered not readdy available when, due 1o
extracedinary orcumstances, the exchanges or markets on which the
securines ride do not open lor trading foe the entire day sod no ather
markeq praces are avarlable The Manager is responshie for monitating
significant events that may matenally alfect the values o the Fund's secunities
or assats and for determining whether the value of the applcable secunties or
assets should be reevaluated in light of such significant events

‘When a Fund uses fair valuation to determine the vafise of a portiolic seowity
or othet asset for o qfq.wnlnllr.-';.'.'. MAY, such mresbments will not
be praced on the bass of quates from the peimary maket in which they ae
traded, but rather may be priced by anather method that the Manager o
persans. acting at thes direction believe reflects far value Fair valuation may
i ubpectned dedeimingtiong about the valoe ol & secundy, Winke

te Teust's poficy is intended to result in a cabeulaton of a Fund's MAV that
fairly reflects securivy values as of the time of pridng. the Trust cannat emsune
that Ewe vaboes determined by the Manager of pidions acting af their
direction would acowately 1eflect the price that a Fund could obtain for a
security il it were to dispose of that secunty as of the time of priceng {ior
wstance, in 8 Jorced or disttessed £ah) The praces ied by a Fund may dfler
Tram the walue that would be reabzed il the securities wene soid

[b] Fair Value Histarchy U 5 GAAP desoribes fair value as the price that
 Fund would receive 1o 56l an asset or pay to transher a liabikty in an onderly
transaction between marked particspants at 1he meadunement date It
establibes a Tar value heeraechy that prioftzes inputs to valuation methods
and requires disclosure of the fa valoe hierarchy, separately for sach majo
categony of assets and liabilties, that seqregates fairvalue measusements into
leveds (Livel 1, 2, or 3} The inputs oo methodelogy wed Tor valuing securities
are pat pecessanly an indication of the risks assoziated with imvesting in these
securities. Levels 1, 2, and 3 of the fair value hierarchy are defined as foliows

® Liel T—{Juoled preces in st maket or q'x'.f'ur.qc-ﬂu wheniteal st
and liahilites,

= Level P=="Sigreticant other chservable inputs, which may indude, but e
fiod limited to, quated prices bor samilie assets or habiites m markets that ae
actie, quated prices for sdertical oe similar assets or liabilibes in markets that
are nat active, inputs other than guated prices that are observable for the
asdets of babalitei Ciuch i inbisesE rates. weld cubves, volathmis, pedpiyment
sngady, bogs severnnes, oedit isks and defaudy ranes) or other market
cofreborated inguts

» el 3—Sigrificant unobservable inputs hased on the best inbamation
aelable i the orcumdtances, 10 The sxdenl ahienable Inputs dne nat
avalable, which may include assemptions made by the Manager or persoes
acting at their direction that aie used i determining the fair walue of
iEAmERLE

In accordance with the requinensents of U S, GAAP, the amownts of wansiers
inand out of Level 3,  maberial, are disclosed in the Notes to Schedale of
Imaetminss far aackh mespecineg Fund

For Fair valuations using significant unobservable inputs, U 5 GAAP requires
1o cebchosie randfens into and out of Level 3 of the Fair value heraechy and
purchases and msves of Leved 3 assets and habilities during the pencd
Additionally, US. GAAP requires quantitative information regarding the
significant uncbservable nputs used in the deserminasion of fair value of
assets of liabilines categorzed as Leved 3 i the Far valoe hierarchy. In
acooedance with the tequirements of L5, GAAP, a fair value hieranchy, and i
materia details of ‘_.L]rll[l[ﬂﬂ wrobsenvable inputs, harew been induded i the
Mates 1o Schedule of vestments for each sepectye Fund

| Waluation Technigues and the Fair Valus Hierarchy

Lavel 1 and Level 2 irading assais snd trading liabilities, at lsir valos The
waluation methods (or ™ techniques”™ ) and sigrebicant puts used in
detarmareng the fair values of porifalo securnies of ather assets and habiliies
categorized a3 Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hieraschy are as follows:

Fined incomse securities including corporate, corvertible and municipal bonds
and ngtes, U3 gowesnment e, U5 oedmury chigations, sonitegn
Baues, bask baans, corvertible prefered securities and non-U 5. bands are
nomeally valwed on the basis of quotes obtamed from brokers and dealers ar
Pricing Sersiocs that we bioker-dealer quatations, seported Srades or
valuabon estirmates from thedr intenal pricing models. The Pricing Sennces’
imtemal models use inputs that are observabile such as isswer details, ntarest
rates, yield ourves, prepayment speeds, oredit nsksispreads, default rates and
quebed pices Tor similar ety Securites that use amilar valuatan
techsacues and inputs a5 described above are categorized as Level 3 of the
{air vakue hlrlar{h]'

Froed encome secuntiess puichased on i deliayed -l!rlrrl'q' basis o a5 d
eepurchase commitment im a sale-buyback trarsacton are marked to markey
daily untd settiement at the forward settlement date and e categoroed as
Lewed 7 af the fair walue batrandy

Mertgage-relaed and asset-backed secuntes are usoually msued 2 separate
tranches, or dasses, of securities within each deal. These secunties are also
roimaly walued by Prcing Sennces that ue broboer-deafer quetations,
eported rade o valuaton estmates from ther intemal peicng models. The
pricing models for these seounibes wsually consider tranche-level attributes,

cument market data, estimated cash llows and market-based yield speeads for

exch tranche, and incorparate deal collatersl perfarmance, as availatde
Mertgage-related and asset-backed secunties that use smdar waluation
techrigues and inputs a5 described above are categored as Level 2 of the
Tair value hietanchy

Cammon siocks, ETFs, exchange-traded notes and finandal dervative
imstruments, such as futwes contracts, nghts and wamants, or options on
fututes that are traded an a national secuitics exchange, aie stated a1 the
Lt reponed sale of serlesnent price on the day of valiation Te the extent
these securities are actively traded and vatuation adjustments ase not applied
they ate categorred as Level 1 of the Tair value higraschy

Ieveesamments valved (denominaced) in currendies other than the funcoonad
currency of a Fund are converted o the functional urrency using exchange
rabes {oamendy spot and fonward rates] cbiained om Priang Serdces. As a
vesult, the BWAY of & Fund's urets may be affected by changes in the walue of
currendes in relation 1o the funchenal currency. The value of secunities fraded
in {oreign markeds or denominated in curmencies other than the fanctional
curiency may be affected sigeaticanty on & dirg that the Trust 5 not open for
business. Valuation adjustments may be aoplied to cenain securities that ane
solely traded on a Toresgn exchange to account for the market movemen
between the close of the foreign market and the NYSE Close. These securities
are vahued using Pricing Senaces that corcides the cosrelation of the trading
pattems ol the feeeign securty to the intraday trading in the U S markets for

L N
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imeestments. Securities wing these valuation adjustments ae categorzed as
Lewed 2 o thee Tasr varkoe hietarchy. Prefecred securities and other equities
traded cn inacthe markets of vahsed by reference 1o smilar instrumsents are
abso categorized as Level 7 of the fair value hierardy

Equaty-briced secuntsd ans vilued by '|'I'r1er~::|:||'| the last reparied e o
settlement price of the nked referenced equity on the day of valuaticn
Foreign exchange adjustments are applied to the last reparted price to
goerer the balkoed (-].I-.‘;."‘\. trading curency 1o the conbract s seitling Curtengy
These imewments ane categoeized i Level 2 of the far valoe beerarchy

Imeestments in registered open-end imvestment companies {other than ETFs)
walll be val ued based upon the MAVS ol such imvestments and ane categonized
as Level 1 of the fair value hiersechy Imvestments in unfegrstered open-end
imeestment companees wall be caloulated based upon the WAYs of such
imvestments and are considered Level 1 provided that the NAWS ane
obiecvable, caltylabed dady and gee the valye at which both potchases and
salies will be conducted

Valuation adjosiments may be apphed 5o cevtain exchange traded haunes and
eptions to accound for markel movement between the exchange settlement
and the NYSE close These secunties are valued wsing quotes obtained from a
quetation reporting Sysiem, established marker makers or pricng senices
Fangial dermeatnees using these valuation aduriments afe {au'\guel.'qr’, E
Lewed 2 of thee fasr varlue hissarchy,

Equity exchange-raded options and over the counter financal derrvative
instruments, such s fonward foreign curency contracts and options contracts,
direve their walue Fiom underying asget proes, indices, nelenence rates, and
other inpats of & combination of these factors. These contracts ate noemally
walsed on the basis of quotes cbiained from a quotation reporting system,
eqtabkabid madker makerd of Fiicing ql.'lﬂl:l:‘-i':llm'il.]:"r determinid a5 of the
WYSE Chorse] Depending on the product and the teems of the transaction,
fnancial derivative instruments can be valued by Priang Senvices using a
senes of techniqus, .Tluqu smglation phicing models. The pricing el
i inpiens that afe obdened fram actroely quabed markets such a5 quated
prces, issuer details, indices, bidfask spreads, interest rates, implied
woratities, yield cunves, dnadends and exchange rates Finanoal demvatve
instisments that wse similar valuation techeiques and mputs a5 described
above are categorzed as Level 2 of the fair value Rerardny

Centrally cledned seapes and aver the counter swaps didive their walue fom
underiying Fdel prices, i, refierence rabes, and oghes npels or &
combination of these factors. They ae valued using a broker-dealer bid
quitation or on market-based prices provided By Pricing Senvices (normally
deteernined as of the NYSE Close), Centrally cheaned swags and over the
comnter swagrs can be vatued by Pricing Serdces using a series of techmigques,
inclading simulation piceng models The pricing models may wse inputs that
ang ohrseneed rom actively quoted markets such ag the uwfnl:_lh', ndex Fan
e [TOI87), UBOR Torsand sate, snienest rates, vield cunves and cred
spreads. These secunities are categonzed as Level 1 of the fair value hiersdhy

Lewal 3 trading asants and trading Habilities, at faly vabee When a fair
waluation mbthod i applied :r,":l'.l.' Manager thad uiss '.q.'lilu..lr1
unobsenable imputs, imestments wil be priced by a method that

the Manager or persons acting a1 their direction beleve reflects Fair value and
ane categorized as Level 3 of the fair value hirarchy The valuaticn
techmiques and significant inpots wied in determining the fair valipes of
portiolo assets and liabilities categonzed as Level 3 of the fair value hieraschy
are & (ollows:

Preoey pnceng procedures set the base proe of a baed income security and
subsequintly adjust the price proportionally 10 market value changes of a pre-
debermined security deemed to be comparabde in duration, genevally all 5

Teeasury or sovereign note based on country of issuance. The base price may
b brokotr -dealer quote, ansecuon pice, of &0 etennal vaue a3 detnoed by
anabysis of market data The base price of the secunty may be reset on a
peniodic basis based on the availabikty of market data and procedures
approved by the Valuation Committee. Significant changes in the
unphsencable inputs of the prooy pridng progess (the base price) would resull
in direct and proportional chansges in the fair value of the security. Thesa
securities are categorized a5 Level 3 of the fair value heraichy

H thad-party evaluated vendos pracing is not avallable of not deemed 10 be
indicative of fai value, the Manager may elect to ohiain indicathe market
quatation directly from the broker dealer or passed-theough brober quote
{nam a thed-par Ty wirnudor. I the ewend that {airvabye i based upon Janghe
sourced Broker Quote, these securities are categorzed a5 Level 3 of the far
value hierarchy. Broker Quotes are typically received from established market
paiticpants. Although independinthy recenved, the Manager does rot b
the Branspatendy to view the underyng inputs which suppart the market
quotation Sigrificant changes in the Birober Quote would have direct and
propartianal :hﬂ"g{‘j in the Tair value of the Wity

Shart-term debit mstnaments (such as commercial paper) having 2 remanng
miaturity of & days o less may be valued at amortized ¢ost, so long as the
amanized cost value of such sher-term debt s trumenss s approamately the
sami a5 the fair value of the strument a5 determined without the e of
amanized cost valuation. These sequeities are cabeqonzed as Leved 2 of Level
3 of the L value hierarchy depending on the source of the base price

4. SECURITIES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS

{a) Dalayed-Dalivery Trassactions Certain Funds may punchase or sell
secunties on a delayved-delivery bate. These raniactiond ievelee &
commitment by & Fund to purchase or sall securdties fier a peedetermined prace
or yiehd, wath payment and delivery tabing place beyond the austomarny
spltfermen perod, When delpped-delneny trandacines and oulilanding,

& Fund wall designate of receve as collateral hquid assets in an amoun
suffscient to meet the parchase price o respectae obligations. When
purchasing a secunty on a delayed-delivery basis, a Fund assumes the rights
and nsks of ownership of the secunty, including the sk of price and yield
fluctuatices, and takes such fluchustions into acoount when determining its
MAY. A Fund may dispose of of renegatiate a delayed-delbvery fransaction
aifter it 15 emered mie, whach may result an & reafred gan or less. When

& Fund has sold a security o a delayed-deliery basis, the Fund does not
particpate in future gains and losses with respest 1o the security

&) Inflation-Indaxed Bonds  Cean Funds may imves! i iedlation-indased
bands Inflaten-indexed bonds are fed incame secunities whese princpal
value 5 persodically adiusted by the tate of inflation. The interest 1ate on
thesi bonds is generally fined at issuance a1 a rate lewer than typacal bonds
Creer the fide af an indlaper-indexed Bond, howeeer interest will be frnd
barsed on a pancpal value, which is adjusted for inflation. Ary increase of
decrease in the printipal amaunt of an inflation-indexed bond will be induded
s interest inoome on the Statements of Operations, even though svestors do
ot eecense thedr principal wtil matunity. Repayment of the cnginal bond
peinapa upon matunity (as adjusted for inflation) is quaranteed in the case ol
Us TIPS Fow Bonds that do mat pll:-r..'lr: a similar guaraniee, the adjusted
petincpal value of the band repad at maturity may be less than the oeginal
paincipa

il Loan Participations, Assipamants and Originatieas Certain Funds may
et i et diehd inkipmeen s whech 366 InEgshs In amounts oneed 1
leraders of lending syndicanes by corporate. govemmental, of other borowens
A Fund's investmenis in laans may be in the form of participations in loans or
atsignments of all ar a portion of loans fromn thind parties o imvestments in or
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originations of loans by the Fund. A laan is often admintstered by a bank or
other brnancial insttubon (the “lender” ) that acts a3 agent Tor all holders. The
aigent administers the teems of the ban, as speafied in the lpan agreement
A Fund may invest in multiple senes or tranches of a loan, which may have
warying terms and camy deHerent assoaated risks. When 3 Fund purchases
assignenesits i lenders it acgures direct tights against the borowers of the
loans. These oans may indude partidpations in bridge loans, which are loans
taken out by boanowers bor a short pericd {fypically bews thas one year)
pending arangement aof mate parmanent Tinancing theough, for example, the
issuance af bonds, frequently igh yield bonds issued for the purpose of
aeguEstions

The types of koans and relared mvestments i which the Funds may imeest
inclade, among others, senicr loans, subordinated boans (induding second
liem loans, B<Notes and mezzanine lpans), whole loans, commerdal real
estate and ather comenercial loans and structured loans A Fund may
oreginate |eans o acquie diect intenests i kaans thicugh primary ban
distributicns andfor in prevate transactons. In the case of subordinated loans,
there miry be significant indebtedness ranking abwad of the bosrower's
ohligation to the holder of such a loan, including in the evem of the
borrower's inschenty Merzanine loans ate typically secured by a phedge of
an equity interest m the mongage bainower that dwns the mal estate rathe
than ah iNBeeSE ah & MEAGLE

Imvestments in loans may include unfunded loan comenitments, which ace
contracteal obligations Tor fundng, Urdundied baan commatments may snclude
nevotaneg Cradiy facfities, which ey obligate 3 Fund to supply additonal cash
tor the beourower on demand. Unfursded loan commitments represent a future
obligation in ful, even though a perentage of the committed amount may
not b utined By the borrowes. Whin irvesting & 2 loan patopation,

2 Fund has the night to recénve payments of prncipal, inberest and amy fees ta
which i ts entitled anly rom the lerder selling the kaan agreement and only
upion neceipt of paymenss by the lender Trom the borioswer. A Fund may
recenve a commitment fee based an the undrin poriion ol the underbing
line af credit portion of 2 kean. In certain aroumstances, a Fund may recene 3
penalty Tee upan the prepayment of a loan by a bomowes. Fees eamed o
paid are reconded a5 4 component of ingérest income of inferest penss,
respectively, on the Statements of Operations. Unfunded loan commitments
are reflected a5 a liability on the Statements of Assets and Lisbilies

|d] Martgage:Ralated and Othar AzsatBachad Secwrities [ eman Funds may
imvest in marngage-related and other asset-backed senuities that deecty or
indirectly represent a partiapation in, or ate seouted by and payable from,
loans oin real property. Martgage-related securties are coeated fromn pools ol
resaderitial of commercal mertgage koans, including mamgage loans made by
uninegs and boan instiuteans, margage bankers, commevoal basks and
others. These secunities provide 3 monthly payment whidh corsists ol both
intefest and poncpal Inteest may be Setemundd by Swed o adjustable rates
The rate of prepayments on underkang momgages will affect the proe and
wilatitty of a mortgage-related secunty, and may have the effiect of
1h|:-'|-rr.-r\-g of extendrg the et duration af the sty relatoer 10 what
wirs anticpated af the tme of purchase The umely payment of peincpal and
intesest of certain mvomgage-related securities is quaranteed with the full Faith
and credit of the U5 Govesnment. Pools created and quaranteed by non-
geeinmental risuers, indudeng qovsnmend -spongaied copaiatons, may be
supparted by varous famms of insuance of guarantees, but there can be no
assurance that private insurers or guarantors can meet their obigations ender
the wrsurance polices of quirantee srangemints hiamy of the fisks of
imeesting in mongage-related secuntes secured by commernal morgage
loans raflect the eflects of kxcal and other economic aditions on real estate
marets, thee ability al senants 10 make lexie paryments, and the abiliy of a
propery to artract and retain tenants These saqurities may be less hguid and

may exhibit greater price wolatdity than ceher fypes of mortgage-related or
oiker asdet-backed securities. Other asset-backed securities ane croabed fram
mamy fypes of ssets, includng, but et limited 1o, auls laans, accounts
receivabbe, such as mednt cand recefvables and hospital account receivables,
home equity loans, student loars, boat loans, mobile home loans,
recreational vefecle baans, manulaciured housing loans, seoralt beases,
computer lkases and syndicated bank loans. The Fand may imvest in amy kavel
of the capital structure of an ssuer of mengage-backed or aset-backed
secuiities, incuding the equiny or “first less” tranche

fa} Collateralizad Mortgage Obigatiens " CN05") are debrobhgatans of a
legad entity that are oollateralimed by whole mortgage leans or private
gt bonds and dvded info dadses. ThIOs are sructuned snto multiple
classes, often relered 1o s “tranches” vath each dass bearing a didferem
stated maturity and ertitled 0 a diferent schedule for payments of principal
and intesest, wduding prepayments. CM0s may be lexs bquid and may ediba
gt pade volatiley than athes Typis of morigage-rslated of Ssel-backed
SBCUNTes

) Stripped Mongage-Bached Secerities ["SNBS7] ae detmvatiee mult-class
manigage seounbes SMES ane wally struciured with two chasdes that recese
diffarern peoportions of the interest and pancipal dstnbutions an a poal af
mongage aseets. An SMES wall have one dass that vall recerve &l of the
imterest {the intesest-only or "I0° dass), while the other dass will recetve the
enftire peincpal (the prindpal-only or “PO° class). Paymenss recenved for 105
are incleded in inferest income on the Statements of Operations, Because m
principal will be recetred at the maturity of an B0, adusiments ane made to
the cost al the ety an .crrr:gnll'\'- bases wnbl matungy. Thse sduitments
ate included im anferest income o the Statements of Operations. Payments
received for Ps are treated as redudctions bo the cost and par value of the
secunties

g Collateralized Dabt Obligations (" CO0") include Collatersdived Bond
Obligatices {*CBO0s"], Collaterakzed Loan ObSgations ("CLO") and ether
semilarly structured seowites (BOs and CLOs are types of asset-backed
secunties. A CBO is & trust which s backed by a dwversified pool of high sk,
bdoww erevsterent grade fod incomie securines. A CLO 15 & trust typacally
collateralized by a pool of loars, which may inchude, among others, domestic
and foneign: senice secued loans, senior unsecwed loans, and subordinate
coporate loans, mcluding loands that may be rated below imvestment grade or
equivalent unrated loans The 1sks of an imvestment in a C0O depend langedy
on the type of the cotlatesal seasnibes and the class of the CDO in which

2 Food imvests, o additaon 1o the nommsad risks associated vith Tooed mcome
secunties disouised elseathere in thes repart and the Funds’ Offiering
Memoeandum (e, prepayment risk, ceedit risk, bgquidity risk, market nsk,
structural risk, legal risk and interest rate risk {which may be exacerbated if
the inbezest rate paryable on a structured finanamg chamges based on
mulbiples. of charges in inberest rabes or imversely to changes in irterest
rates]h, CEOs, CLOs, and cther CDOs camy additional nsks mcuding, but not
Brminid va (i) the porisi dety that disrdnbos feam collmersd secuites vall Aot
be adequate to make imerest or other payments, (i} the quality of the
collateral may dechine in value or default, fii) the sk that a Fund may imest
in (B0, CLDs, of othes COOs that are subordinate to othet clisses, and ()
the complex: structure of the secunity may not be fully understood at the time
aof imvestrment and may produce disputes with the isswer or unexpected

irvves it el

k] Paymant In-Kimd Secorities  Certain Funds may imvest in payment m-kind
secunties ["PIEs"). PiEs may grve the issuee the option at each interest
paymens dabe of making mterest payments in either cash andior additsonal
debit secunties Those additional deby securities wsually have the same terms,
wrecluding matursty dertes and interest eates, and associated risks & the
ctiginal bands. The daly market quotations of the original bonds may indude
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the accrued interest {referred 10 a5 a “dirty price "} and require a pro rata
.1|:I|||'.:m{"||[1|-:v1| the unrealwed appreciation of deprecuation on imasiments
tovinterest recedvable on the Statements of Assets and Lisbdites

i} Restricted Sacurities Cerman Funds may hald swestments that are subject
ta legal or contractual restrictions on resale These securities may be sold
pircatety, but may be required 1o be regritered o exempted from such
reqtration befare being sold to the public. Private placement secunibes e
generally conssdered ta be restncted. Disposal of restrcted imvestments may
imeohve Bene-consuming regatiatians and wxpensis, and promp? sale at an
acceptable price may b difficull to achesve Restrnted investments eld by
the Fureds at May 39, 2021, as applicable, aee disdosed i the Motes i
Schedidfie of Imvestments

[} Strecturad Motss Cectain Funds may svest in stuctured notes and other
related instrumends, which are privatefy negotiated debt obligations in which
the prinapal andr of intecest i determined by reference to the perfamance of
2 benchmark assed, manket o infetest rate (an "embedded index"), such a5
selected secunities, an index of securities or specfied interest rates, of the
dillesrential perlormance of two assets or mackets, swch a3 indiexes eflecting
bemd: Structured irtruments may be miued by cospecaboes, incuding
banks, as well as by govemmental agencies. The terms of sudh structured
instruments noimsally provide that thear prinapal anddar imerest payments are
1o be adiusted upwards o dowmwards (but cedinanlly not below 2ena) to
reflect changes in the embedded index while the structured irstruments are
puistanding. As a fesdt, the wnterest andlor pncpal payments that may be
made on & stiyciuned i,lI-:'JIIH may vty vadidy, depending on ..w.u'lr".,'ul
factors, imdisding the wolatiity of the embedded index and the effect of
thanges in the embedded index on prinapal andfor inberest payments

[kl 1.5, Gewernmant Agancies er Gevernmant:Sponsered Entarprises

Certam Funds mary imvest in secuntes of U5 Govemenent agances af
government-sponsored enserprises. U 5. Government seowities are
obligations of and, in certain cases, quaranteed by, the U5, Government, s
agenced of irdtnementalited Same U5 Govermment secunities, yudh ad
Treasuey bells, notes and bonds, and securiies quaranbeed by the Government
Nagianal Morgage Association {"GNMA” or "Ginnie Mae”" ), are supposted
by the fuill Ttk and eresdin of thie U 5, Government athiss, such & thade af
the Federal Home Loan Banls, are supported by the nght of the issuer to
borrow from the U 5. Depariment of the Treasury (the "5 Treasury”™ ) and
otheds, such i thase of the Federal National Morigage Asocation [*FRAMA®
or "Fannie Mae" ), e supponed by the deoretonary autharnty of the U5
Gewerrenent 1o purchase the agengy’s obligations. U5, Government securities
iy include nevo coupon secunties, which do not distribuse interest oh a
current bagis and tend 1o be subject to a greater sk than intecest-paying
securities of similar maturities

Geverrenent-related guararioss [Le, not backed by the Tull faith and credit of
the U5 Geverrmnent) snclude FNMA and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corpaoration {"FHLMC" or "Fredide Mac™]. FNALA 15 @ government-spossaned
corpoeation. FRMA purchases comeentional (1 e, not insured or guarantesd by
amy government agency) resedential mortgages fram a list of approved
sellerusendoes which indude s1ate and federally chartened sininegs and loen
assocations, mutual savings banks, commencial hanks and credit ericers and
morigage banken Pass-through securities issued by FNMA are guaranieed as
to fimeky payment of principal and intesest by FNRA, but are not backed by
thee: full fasth and credit of the U5 Govesnment. FHLMC issues Partcipation
Costbicates {“PCE" ), which ane pa:.:.-'.l'mm]hw-:m.‘.lh_ wich sepresenting an
umdvaded interest im a pool of resdential morigages FHLMC quarasntees the
timedy payment of interest and uitimate collection of prindpal, but PCs are mot
backed by the full faith andl credss of the U 5. Government

In June 2019, FNMA gnd FHLMC started issuing Urdom Mostgage Backed
Secuntes (TUMBS"] in plhace of their current alferings of TRA-vhoble
secunities (the "Single Security Initiative” ). The Single Seowity Initiathe seaks
10 support the overall liquidity of the TRA market and aligns the
charasteristics of FNMA and FHLMC certificates. The effects shat the Single
Secunity Inibative may have an the market for THA and ather momgage-
backed sensities are uncertain

il;\ll-hm:ru_l strategies can be used whene a Fund seeks to exgend the
Expiration of matundy of 4 pedation, such &% a THA wecurity on an nderhang
asset, by dosing out the position belore expiration and cpening a new
pasition wath respect to substantially the same anderlying asset with a later
expiration dste TRA secunties purchased or sold e reflected an the
Suaterments of Acsets and Lisbibtes a5 an sset of hability, respeaively

) When-Issmad Transaetions Certain Funds may purchase or sell securies
on 3 when-issued basts. These transactions are made conditionally because a
security, Athough authonzed, has not yet been issued in the market
Transactions 1o purchase of el secunties on 3 when-ridoed hasis invohoe
a-comenitment by a Fund to purchase or sell these securities for a
predabermined price of yield, with payment and delvery taking place beyond
the customany settlement period. A Furd may sell when-issued secunties
bedise they are deltened, which may resull in a realmed gain of loss

{m) Bank ObBgatheas Eank obligates inwhich a Fund may wmeest indude
certificates of depasit, bankers” acceptances, and hued time depasits
Cornfcates of depowus ane nﬁ;:ll.‘lhlr certifated gsued against furds
depasited en a commercial bank for 2 definite peviod of tree and eamang a
specified refurn. Bankers' atceptances ane negobisble drafts or bills of
ﬂ-:.'h.r.qr'_ normally driamn by an importer af exporier 1o pay it spcrlic
mietchandise, which e “accepted” by a bank, meanang, in efiect, that the
bank unconditionally agrees %o pay the lace value of the instument cn
maturity Fowed time deposits are bani obligations payable at a stated
maturity date and Beanng irerest af a fixed rate. Fued tene deposits may be
withdrawn on demand by the imeestoe, bat may be subject to early
withdrawal penafties which vary depending upon market conditions and the
Bl A ning maturity of the obligaton

5, BORROWINGS AND OTHER FINANCING TRANSACTIONS

I'I"x“.all.'r.v.:lq dischofunes consmn informatcn on the Funds” abilty 1o fend o
Estiiv o et o dscurtlies 0o the extent parmitted under the Offiering
Memoeandum, which may be viewed 2 borowing or financing trarsattions
by the Funds. The Bocation of these instments is descibed below Fora
detailed descrigben of credit and counterpary eisks that can be assocated
with boerowings and other financing transactions, please see hote 7,
Frincipal and Other Risks

fa) Ropurchase Agreements Cestan Funds may engage in repuichase
agreements. Under the terms of a typical repurchase agreement,

a Fund purchases an underdying debt chiigation (collaterd) subject to an
chligaticn of the selles to repurchase, and 3 Fund to resell, the dhligabion at
an sgresd-upon pice and teme In a0 open matunty repuichase agresmen,
there is ng pre-determened repurchase date and the agreement can be
teminated by the Fund or counterpaety at any time. The market valioe of the
collateral must be equal to or exdesd the tatal amount ol thee repuichae
obibgations, including interest Repurchase agreements, including actrued
imerest, are induded on the Statements of Assets and Lisbiities Interest
eamned is recorded 3 a component of inberest moome on the Statements of
Operations. bn penods of ncreased demand for collateral, a Fund may pay a
{ee for receipt of collateral, which may result in interest expense to the Fund
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[b] Rmwwree Repurchass Agrasments Cermain Funds may enter into reverse
repurchase agreements. In a reverse repurchase agreement. a Fund delivers a
secutity in exchange for cach 1o a financial estituton, the courterparty, with
a simuftaneous ayeement 1o repurchase the same o substantiafly the same
security at an agreed upon price and date. In an open mabuity reverse
ekl agresmant, thise 15 na pre-determined repurchase date a0 thie
agreemment can be teeminated by the Fund oo counterparty at any time:

A Fund is entithed 1o receive princpal and intenest payments, i any, made on
the securty defvernd o the courtemasty durng the term of the agreement
Cash regeroed m exchange for securines delwered plus aconoed inenes
paymenis 10 be made by a Fund to counterparties ame reflected a5 a lidbdity
on the Statements of Assets and Lishilites. Inberest payments made by a Fund
1o couniepares ate recorded a4 & component of intenest expense on the
Siatements of Operatans. In peneds of increased demand for the securry,

a Fund may recenve 3 fee for use of the security by the counterparty, which
gy fesull s nteres! moome 0 .a Fund. A Fund will segieqate assety
determined to be liquid by PIMCO or willl atherwise cover its obhgabons
under reverse repurchase agreements

k) Sale-Buybacks Ceitan Funds may enter inta inasing tramactions
referred 1o o “sabe-buybacks” A sale-buyback findncng franssction consiss
of a sale of a security by a Fund o a financial institution, the countenparty,
with a simultanecus agreement to repurchase the same or substanbally the
same secunity at an agreed-upon preoe and date. A Fund = not entitied 1o
receive prinogal and intetest payments, if amy, made on the seoarity sold 1o
te counterparty during the term of the agreement. The agreed-upon
proceeds far securntiog 1o be epurchased by a Fund ane rellected a5 a IL.L:uIT:,-
on the Statements of Ascets and Liabdines A Fund vall iecogmze net moome
repeesented by the price differential between the price recenved foe the
transfesmed secuniy and the agreed-upon sepurchase peice. This & commonly
refietred 10 e the ‘price deop” A price drog consists of (i) the Toregone inteest
and inflaticnary income adjustments, il any, aFund would have othersise
receiyed had the security not been sold and (i) the negotiated financng temms
berween @ Fund and counterparty. Fodegons imenest and w-":.nm-.:qrnr:mmr
adjustments, if any, are recorded a5 components af inberest intome an the
Statements of Operations. Interest payments based upon negotiated financing
terris rade by 3 Fund 10 countipanies e reconded 25 a component of
interest expense on the Statements of Operations. In penods of ncreased
demand lor the secunty, a Fund may recefve a fee for use of the security by
tee counterparty, which may result in imenest income 10 2 Fund. A Fund wall
saqregale asets determined to be liquid by PINCO or wall atherssse cover its
obligations under sale-buyback ransactions

|d} Short Sabea  Certain Funds may enter anto short sales transactians. Sheet
sales are tramsactions in which the Fund sells a seoanty that it may not own
A Fund may make shoor sales of sequrities o i} offser potential dedhines n
long positions in similar secunties, (i) 1o increase the Aexibility of the Fund,
{iith For nvestment return, () & part of a rigk arbitrage strateqy. and (v =
part of its owverall partiolio mansgement strategies imabing the: e of
dervative instruments. When a Fund engages in a short sale, it may borow
the security sold shoet and delrer it to the countemparty. The Fund wall
ordinarily hae to pay 4 fee o premagm 10 bar ow 3 secunty and b obligated
tor repay the lender of the secunty amy dividend of interest that accnses on the
sanurty during the petiod of the loan Sequrities soid in short sale transactons
and the dredend o inlene] payatile on sach secuntes, o ay, afe rellected o
payable for shon safes. on the Staterments of Assets and Liabikties. Short sales
expirse the Fund to the risk thiat it 'will be requined to cower its short pesition
at 2 time when the secunty or other asset has appreaated in value, thun
resaditing in beecsies 0o the Fund & short sabe 1 " st the box™ if

tie Furd holds in its portfolio or has the rght o aoquire the seowity seld
shiort, or sequrities identical 1o the security sold short, at no additional cost

A Fund wall be subgect 1o additional rsks 1o the extent thas it endgages in shert

sates that are nat " against the box ™ A Fund's loss on a shert sale could
thetrticaly b wnlimited in cases where the Fund i unable, for whatever
reason, 1o clase put its short pasition

B, FINANCIAL DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

The following dischosures contain infoematicn on how and wivy the Fumds use
{inancal derrratiee instruments and how financial dermative instruments
aflect the Funds’ Snancdal pesition, resulls of cperations and cash fows. The
Iacation and Lar value anounts of thess instruments on the Statements af
Aasets and Lisbdites and the net realized gain (ossh and net change in
wniealized apprecatian (depeeciation] on the Statements of Dperations, each
categaried by type of inancial dectvatve comract and related nisk exposioe,
are included in a table im the Mates 1o Schedule of Imestments. The finanoal
desative instraments outstanding as of peviod end and the amounts of net
realzed gain (orss) and net change in unrealed appreciation [depeecation]
on financial dervative irstruments during the period, as disdoced in the
Mobes 1o Schedule of kvestments, serve as indicators of the volume of
financial dernrateee actnaty fod thee Funds

la) Forward Forsign Curmaney Comtracts  Certan Funds may engage in
foravaed Fareign cutrency contracts in connection with satthng planned
purchases or sales of sequzities, to hedge the qumency exposise assoniated
wath some of 3 of 3 Fund's Scurites of a5 r.\;rtq| a1 et Sirategy A
foravaed foreign currency contract i a0 agreement bebaesn two parties o buy
and sell a aerency al 8 set price on a fubwre date The market value of 3
forwaed Fareign currency contract fluctuates with charges in Tedeign cumency
exchangt 1a6ih Forwand I'n'm;u cuirincy contiacts dee marked 16 markel
daily, and the change invalue is recorded by a Fund as an uniealized gain o
forss. Reealized gains or losses are equal to the difference between the value of
the conteact ot the tme @ wat opentd and the valse 5 the tme i0was doded
and ane recorded upen deliery or recespd of the cumency. These conracts
enay imvotoe market risk m ewcess of the ureealized gain o loss reflected on
the Statements of Assels and Lisbdites In addimion, a Fund could be o
1o ek i thee counteparmes e prabie 1o meet the terms of the cantzacts o il
the value of the ourency changes uniavorably 1o the fundional aurengy. To
mitigate such risk, cash or securities may be exchanged & collateral pursuant
10 the teems of the underying contracts

Certain Fumds, hawing a hedged Class, may akso enter inta foewiard foreign
currency contracts designed to offiet the effect of hedging at the Fund level in
ardier 0o bearve the Bedged Class with an expeture 1o cutdencies. other than the
functicnal cumency. These can be ne guarantee that these Class spedfic
forwaed foreign currency contracts will be successhul

) Futnres Comtraets  Certain Fundh may enter into fulures contracts. A
futufes contract is an agieement 1o buy or sell @ secunty of athes et for a
561 price o a future date and is raded on an ewchange. A Fund may wse
fubares conbracts to manage s exposure 1o the secuntazs markets of o
mgwemlrils in indenest s and cumency valpes. The primasy risks assocaled
with the use of futures contracts ae the imperfect comefation between the
change in market value of the secunties held by a Fund and the prices of
Tutures contracts and the potsbility ol an dliquid maket Futunes contracts
ate valued hased upon their quoted daly serfament prces. Upan entesing
iy a futures contract, a Fund is required to deposit with its futures broker an
amsunt of cash, U5 Govermment and Agency Obfigatians, o select sovweeign
debt, im sccoedance with the initial MANGIN TequEEnEnls ol whae broked
exchange Futures contracts are marked to market daily and based on such
mwerments in the price of the conbracts, an appropriate payable or receivable
for the change in value may be posted or collected by the Fund (" Futures
Variation Mangin® ) Futures Varnation Margins, if any, are dischased within
centrally deaned financial devivative instruments on the Statemsents of Assets
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and Lidbilities. Gains or lovses ane recognized but net considered reakzed untid
thr congracts exping o code. Fulunts comiracts imadlv, 10 warying degiees

risk o loss im excess of the Futures Vanation Mangn induded withn
exchange traded or centraly cleared finandial derhative instruments on the
Statements ol Assets and Lishilibes

le) Optimars Contracts  Certinn Fusd may woibé of plechine apborm 10
enhance fehams of B hedge an esting powtion of fulure inesment Certan
Funds may wiite all and put options on secwities and financial denmvative
insbruments. Chiey own or mowioch theey iy Emoesd Wn ling put options Tends
to increase a Fund's exposize to the undeghying snstrument. Writing cal
options tends to decrease a Fund's exposure to the underring instnament
‘When a Fund writes a call or put, an amount equal to the premium resered is
recaided and subsequently markced 1o masket to reflect the cutre value of
the oo waitten. These amounts are induded on the Statements of Assets
and Liakilities. Fremiums. received Brom writing options which expire are
triated a redded Gind Prémaots redened feqm g opleen which e
exzrcised of dosed ate added 1o the proceeds or ofisat against amounts pasd
on the underlying futures, swap, secuity or cumendy transaction to deteimine
e reabzed gan of lods Cemtisn optond may be wnilen with premiums 1o be
determined on a future date. The peemiums for these options ace based upan
implied wolatibty pasameters a2 speafed terms. A Fund as awnter of an
option has no control owed whethis the underrng instiument may b sold
{"call”) or puschased {"put”™) and & 2 result beacs the market sk of an
unfavorable change in the price of the instrument underying the weitten
ophion. There i the risk a Fund may not be able o enter o a dosing
transaction because of an (kqud market

Cestan Funds may also purchase put and call options. Purchasing <all options
tends 10 ncreae 3 Fund s exposure to the underying mstrument. Purchasing
pul optons tends to decrease a Fund's exposure 1o the undiedying instnement
A Fund pays a premium which is included a5 an aeet on the Statemants of
Assats and Ligbilities and subsequently marked to market 1o reflect the
current value ol the opbon. Premiums pasd Tor purchasing aptiors which
expire are treated as redized bosses. Cenain cptions may be purchased with
premiums. o be determined on a future date. The premiums for these optioss
ane bumed upin imphed wolatibty paramaters '\-;,!Dtl:l-tﬂ feird The reik
assocated with purchasing put and call options i kested o the premium
paid Fremiums paid for puschasing options whidh are exerdsed o dosed ane
added 10 the ameunts paid or offset against the proceeds on the wderhang
imestment transaction to detesmine the realzed gain o loss when the
umderkring trarsaction is exeouted

Cowdit Dalault Swaptions Certain Funds may write o purchase credit
diefats swapbons to hedge eposure (o the credit ik of an investment
wathout mking a commutment 1o the ahderking instrument. A credit delault
Swia B0 i an option 10 sell oo buy credit protection 1o & specific relerence by
entering inta a pre-defined sevap agreement by some specilied date in the
Tutune

Foreign Curresey Options Cestmn Funds may waite af punchase loeegn
cusrency options t be used as a short or long hedge against possibie
wariabiors in foreign exchange rales o 5o gain exposure to foresgn Cumencies

Inflation-Capped Dptioes  Cortan Funds may waste of purchase infatson-
capped optians to enhance tetums of for hedging oppormunine: The purpase
af purchasing inflation-capped optaons is i protect a Fund from inflation
erowan ahove a Cerlain rabe on a given national exposune. & Sloor can be
i 1o geve downgide peotaction 10 imestmsnty in nflanon-linked products

Intnrest Rate-Cappad Dptions  Cestan Funds fmay winle of purchads infeiest
rate-capped options 1o enhance returns of for hedging oppestunities. The
purpose of punchasing interest rabe-capped aptions is bo protect a Fund froem

Tloating rate visk above a certain rabe on a gven notional exposure. & floor
can b uiid 10 ghe dowrrade protechion B imnesiments i inberest rate nked
products

Intarest Rats Swaptions Certain Funds may waite of puschase intenest rate
swaphions which are optians to enber into a pre-defined saap agreement or
1o dhormen, extend, cancsl of othemnwiie mod ‘.'_-'.]r RIS Swaep dgredimen,
by soeme specified date in the future The weiter of the swaption becames the
coundemarty to the swap il the buyer ewercises. The interest 1ate swapbon
agreement will specify whesher the buyer of the seaption will be a fxed-rase
viscinver of & fined-cate payst upon exscie

Optiens an Exchange- Traded Futures Comtracts Certain Funds may wie or
purchase opbions on exchange-traded futures contracts (" Futwres Option”) to
hn:lgr' an easting positon of futane imvetimens, fod ipiculative puiposes o 10
manage exposure 1o mket movements. A Fusures Option 15 an cption
coniract in which the underying instrument is a single fubures contract

Optieas on Secarities Cerain Funds may wnte or purchase eplions on
secunties o enhanoe reluns of 1o hqﬂ'ﬁm{ul:.l:nq podtan of fitune
ienvestenisnl. An opLion on & security uses a specdied secunity a8 the underling
irestrument for the apton contract

) Swap Agresmants Cerian Funds may imvest in swap agreements. Swap
agreements are bdatesally negotiated agreements between a Fund and a
courierparty o exchange of swap imestment cash Tlows, asets, Toregn
cumendies of marketdnied retums at speafied, future intenvals. Swap
agreements may be prevately negatiated in the OTC market or may be cleased
through & thind party, bnenm a3 & central countemparty of dematvis cheanng
aigacezation | cenraly cleated swapa”) A Fund may enter sito ausel, credit
default, crass-rumency, inferest rate, total retum, variance and other foms ol
Feap agreemants [0 manage it expasune 1o Credit, urendy, nlenes rate,
commedity, equity and inflation risk In connection wath these ajeeements,
secunties or cash may be identified as collateral or maegin in accordance with
the tems of the PRGN S Bgréemenis 1o provice Joets of wator ard
et in the event of default o bankiuptopinsobency

Cenirally deared swaps are marked to market daily based upon valuations as
detemmined from the underbyng contract o n aocedande with the
requirermserits of the central countenpanty of derfvatives cleanng organizaten
Changes in marked value, if any, are reflecied as 3 component of net change
im unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on the Statements of Operations
Dusby charsges in valuation of centrally deaned swaps | Svep Vanaton
Margin®), if any, are duclosed within centrally cleased finarcial desreative
imstruments on the Statements of Assets aned Liabilithes. OTC swap payments
eceived o pand at the beqginning of the measurement petiod ae included on
the Statements of Assets and Lishilites and represent premiues paid of
recefved upon entenng into the swap agreement 1o compensate for
differerces between the stated terms of the swap agreement and prevailing
matket conditions (oredit spreads, curmendy enchandge rates, interest tabes, and
wither relevant factors). Upfront premiums receqed (pad) are initiafly recordied
a5 liakalities (assets) and subsequently marked o markes to reflecs the curment
vilui of 1he i Thiste U|:.‘:tu!'. prisnms. ek oo ded 1 realed qnd ol
foesses o the Statements of Operations upon termination or maturity of the
seap. A liquidation payment recetved cr made at the termination of the swap
o tecoeded i realized gain of loss an the Statements of Operasans. Mel
peniodic payments recesed or paid by a Fund ase induded as pant of realzed
gamns or lpsses on the Satements of Operaticrs

For puposes ol apphang certain of a Fund's imaetment palicies and
dedlnCtadnd, Sl SYléements, Ik itboty clarmaatiovie ifiliumments, My b
valued by a Fund a1 market valee, notional value or hull exposuse value In the
case of a credit default swap, in apphying cerain of the Fund's investment
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policies and restrictions, The Fund vall value the credit delault swap at it
nogianal valoe of 15 hdl e walug (16, 1he Sum of the nobcna amount
Tew thee coevract plus the market value), but may value the credit default swap
at market value for purposes of applying certain of the Fund's other
imeestment policies and restrictions. For example, the Fund may value credi?
defaidy swaps at fufl exposre vahee for purpases of the Fund's credit quality
quidefines. (if any) because such value in general better reflects the Fund's
aciual eoonamis expasune dunng the term ol the credn default swap
agréement Ag & resuiy 3 Fund may, 2 e, hive notonal expoiue ba an
asset class (before netting) that is greater or lesser than the stabed fimit or
restiiction nabed in the Fund's Oflering Memoeandum In this contexl, bath
the nabiorl amoung and the market valipe may be pasitive of neganie
depending on whether the Fund is selling o¢ buying protection through the
credit default swap. The manner in which certan sequrities of othes
instiuments a0 valued by the Fund for puspeses ol spphing imvesiment
policies and restrictions may difier from the mannes in which those
imeestments ane valued by other types of investors. Entening into swap
aqreemients imvohas, to varying degrees, elements of interest, credit, market
and documentanon nsk in excess of the amouns recogaized on the
Statements of Assets and Liabilities. Such ks imvobve the possibility that
s il B 7 ||:||,|s:] market fod thess agrieminty, that the countematy i
the agreements may delault on its obligation 1o perdfiarm of dsagies a3 to the
meaning of conteactual termns in the agreements and that there may be
unfaveeable changes in interest rates o the values of the asset upen which
the swvap 15 baed

A Fund's maximum nisk of loss from counterparty credit tisk is the discourted
net value of the cash flows to be recenved Trom the counterparty over the
cortracts remarang Me to the extent that amount & poditve. The ek miy
be mitegated by having a master nething arangement betwesn a Fund and
the counterparty and by the pesting of collateral to a Fund to cover a Fund's
exprsUng B0 T oounbemiarty

T the extent a Fund has a policy to limit the net amount owed &0 or ta be
received from a sngle counmiempaty under ensting swap agreements, sudh
liemiitation ooy applies to ounteparties to OTC swaps and does not apply o
cengrally cleaed swaps whete the countensarty & a oentral countedparty of
dertvatves cleaing oiganzaticn

Cradit Dofaull Swap Agroements CéLan Fonds may &aler mio

credit defauh swaps on colporate, baan, soversign, U S, municipal or US
Treasury issues bo provide 3 measare of protechion against defauls of the
issuers (e, 10 educe rsk whene a Fund aems o has podure 0o the
referenced obbgation) of 1o lake an actiee loag of short pasition with redpect
1o the Bkelbood of a partioular sswers defautt. Credit default swap
agreements irvotie one party mating a stream of payments (relered to as
thie By al pratectod] Ba ancther paety [the delled of pratecson) = exchandgi
fer the night 1o receive a specified retwn in the event that the rederenced
entity, cbligation of index, s spedilied in the swap agreement, undengoes a
cortmn credil event A% 3 aller of pratection an il defizal PP
agresments, a Fund will generally recene Trom the buyer of protection a fzed
rate of income throughoot the term of the swap provided that there is no
cridit event As e seller, 3 Fund weuld eflecmely add leverage 1o 1t
portialio because, in additan to % vatad rel assess, the Fund would be
subject to imvesiment exposute on the notional amount of the swap

I o Fursd i o weller af peobection and a credit event ocoess, & deflined unde
the ferens of thay particulae swap agreement, & Fund will either (1] pay 1o the
buryer of protection an amount equal to the potional amount of the swap and
take defivery of the referenced nbligation, other delverabile cbligations o
underlaing securities comprising the relerenced inddex o fil) pay a net
settlement anount in the form of cash or secunitees equal to the notional
amouet of the swap less the recoveny value of the referenced cbligation o

underying securities comprising the referenced index. f a Fund is 3 buyes of
preaecton and a credit event occurs, a3 defined under the teims ol that
pamticular swvap agreementy, 3 Fund wall either () recene from the selfer af
profection an amount egual 1o the notional ameount of the swap and defiver
the referenced obligation, other delverable obligations or underiying
seculities complising the referenced index ot (i) recenve a net settlement
amount in the ferm of cash or secunities equal to the noticnal amount of the
swvap bevs the secovery value of the selerenced obligation or underhing
secuiities compiising the referenced mdex Recovery values e eshmated by
makat makers considering esther industry standard secovery rabes or entity
spedific factors and considerations wntil & credit event ocows. B a cedit event
has oocunied, the redtnery value i determined by a {acditaind auction
whesekry & minimum number of allowable broker bids, together with a
spedfied valuation method, are wsed to calodate the settfement value. The
ity 1o delratr ather obligaton may neul in 5 cheapetl-to-deiner optian
(thee buyer of protecton™s nght 1o choose the delverable chligation with the
Eormest valoe following a aredit event)

Credit default swap agreements on credit indices imvohad one party making a
steeam af payments to anothes pary in exchange far the rght To recene a
speafied return in the event of a wite-down, prinopad shortfall, interest
shortfall o debad? of all or part of the referenced entites compriving the
credet ndec &, credit index 1 a basket of credit Fstruments of expasunes
dessgned to be representative of some parnt of the cedit market &5 awhoele
These indices are made up of refesence credits that are judged by a poll of
deaters 1o be thi most lquid entities in the cred defacl! dwap market baned
on the sector of the index. Companents of the indes may incdude. bt are
nat limited o, imvestment grade secunities, high yeld securities, asset-backed
secunhied, smeigng markets, andior varous chedit dalngs vt ibch factor
Credit indhoes-are traded using credit delault swaps with stamdardired tenms
mcluding a ficed spread and standard matwity dates An index credit default
swiap rebevences all the names in the index, and if there i 3 defsalt the credi
event i settled Based on 1thaet name’s weight in the index. The composition ol
the indices changes petiodically, usially every six months, and for most
inchoes, each name has an equal wesght in the index. A Fund may use credit
default yewaps on oredit indiced to hedge a ponfiolo ol credit default seagrs o
Eomds, which is less expensive than & would be $o buy many credit default
swaps ba achweve a similat effect Ceadit default swaps on indices ane
rtruments foe pratecting irvestion ownmng bends againgt defauly, and
traders wse them o peculate on thanges in credit quaity,

Implied credit spreads, represenied in absofute terms, utilized in deteminang
the market value of credit default sevap aqreements on corporate, loan,
soveregn, U S municipal or U5 Treasury issues as of pertod end, if any, are
disclosad i the Mates 1o Schedule of Imestments. They serve a5 an indicator
ol the currens sttt al p.r,lmrn[.':lm';lm'r:l: ekt @ repaisent the hlkehbood
af eisk of default for the referenced entity. The imphed credin spread of &
particular refererced entity reflects the cost of baying'sefing protection and
may indlude uplront payments requined 1o be made to enter into the
agreement. Wider aedit spreads represent a detenceatson of the refeenced
erdity's credit soundress and a greater likelihood or tisk of default or othe
credit event occuming 4 delined under the terms of the agreement. For credit
dedault swap agresments on asset-backed secunties and credit indices, the
quibed market prices and resulting values serve 35 the indicator of the oument
status of the paymentiperformance risk. Inceasing market vatues, in absolute
1o when companed 1o the notional amoynt ol e FNIE, MEpIESEnt a
detsniceation of the refesenced entity’s cred it soundness and a greater
fikelihood ar nsk of default or cther aedit event ooouming as defined under
the sefms al the agreement

The mammisn potential amount of future payments (undiscounted) thay
a Fand as a selier of peotecton could be required to make under a cedit
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defad swap ageeement equats the national amount af the agreement
Motional amounts ol each indnidual cedic delauls S T
oustanding as of period end for which a Fund is the seller of protection e
disclosed in the Motes to Schedule of Emvestments. These potential amounts
ol be partiatly offset by any recovery values of the respectve referenced
sbligatiams, uplrant payments recerved upon entenng into the agpeement, of
net amounts received from the settiement of bay protection credit default
s agreements entined mnlo by a Fund for the tame elerenced enkity of
BAlE

Imtarest Rate Swap Apreements Cenain Funds ate sobyect ta intesest rate
risk exposire in the normal cowse of pursuing thes imvestment objectives
Thee wafise of the Timed sane bonds that 2 Fund kolds iy diecrésie o intenes]
ranes e Ta help hedge sgmedt this ek and to mantam s 2bding 1o
generaie inoome at peevalling market rates, a Fund may ener into ierest
rale swa) agreements. interest rabe swap agreements imvobve the exchange
bya Fuind vtk anather ity T thinf et Commitment 15 pay 68
receive interest on the notional amount of prinopal Certain fomes of interest
rale swap agreements may indude: (i) tenest rate caps, under which, in
return Tae & presmm, one paity Mpe 1o make piyments to the ather 1o the
extent that interest rates exgeed a speafied rate, or “cap”, (s) interest rate
foors, under wiach, in return fior 3 premium, one party agrees io make
pinyriants 1o this athis 1 the extent that snleneit rates Lall below & pealhied
rate of "Moo, (i) inteest rate collars, under whach a party sells 3 cap and
purchases a Tloor or vice versa in an attempt to protect itself against iterest
rate movements exceeding ghven minimus of mammum bevels, [} callabbe
interest rate swaps, undsr which the busrer pays an upfrant fee in
corsidesation for the nght b early termsnate the swep transaction n whale,
at 2e00 cost and ad & peedetermined date and time por 1o the maturity date,
Iv} spreadiocks, which allow the ivteneit rabe swap usen 16 ok o the
Terward differerimal {ce speaad) between the intenest rate swap rate and a
specfied benchmank, or {w} basis swaps, undes which two partes can
exchange vanable interest cates based on different segmants of money
marigs

7. PRINCIPAL AND OTHER RISKS

{a] Primeipal Risks In the noomal oo of busingds, {he Funds {noe Acquined
Fund{s], if applicable) rade financial instruments and enter into financal
transactions where nisk of potential loss exists due o siach things as changes
in the market (market rak) or failure or inabiity of the cther pary 1o a
transaction to perform (credit and counterparty risk) See below for a detailed
desoription of sebect prinopal rsks

Fund of Funda To the extent that certain Funds imvest sukrstantially all of
thiesr respctive assets n Acquared Fund{s], the niks assooated with investing
in i Fands wall be clodety silated 1o the reks msocated wath the secunies
amd ather investments held by the Acquired Fund{s) The ability of the Funds.
to- achieve their respacinee imeestment objectves may depend upan the ability
of the Aequined Fund|s) 1o schieve thesr respectie imesment abjectives

There can be no assurance that the imestment chjecive of any Aoguined
Fund{s) wall be achieved The NAY of an Acguming Fund will Auctaate in
e b '.|'a'.-;4.1. in the respecing NAY ol thee Acgred Fundls) in wihich if
imeests

In the normal cowse of business, Aogared Fund(s] trade fnanoal instnaments
and enter into Fnancial transactions wheee mk of potential loss eists due to
changes in the market {market k], or fallure or insbdfity of the other pamy 1o
a ransaction to perfoem (oredit and counderpacty risk)

Magiost Risds A Fund's ivestments in linancial derivathve instruments. and
othes tnancaal instuments exporse the Fund to various risks soch as, but not

fimited 1o, interest rate, foreign (nea-Uk 5 ) curency, equity and commadity
rigks

frvterest rate risk o5 thee risk that fixed income secuities and other iInstisments.
Fefid by a Fund may dechine in walize because of an incease in inberest rates If
raminal inberest rabes nise, the valee of certam toed income secusities hld by
& Fund would likely decrease A mominal intenest rate can be described as the
sum of a real interest rate and an expecied inflabicn rate. Interest rate
-:h.lnr_lq-s €an be sudden and unpredictabie, and a Fund may lose mosney if
thess changes are not anticipated by Fund management A Fund may not be
abile 1 hedge against changes in interest rates of may choose net to do 5o for
©ost or other reasons. In addition, any hedges may not wark as intended

Dutation is & megsure ysed 1o determne the serdtnity of a security’s price 1o
changes in interest rates that moorporates a secunity's yield, coupon, Bnal
maturity and call features, among other charactensfics. Comeily is an
sddmonyl meddune hed o underitand o securty’s of Fund' s intenss rate
sesisithaty that measures the rate of change of duration in response 1o
changes in interest rates. Fised income secuntees with longer durabiors tend
o b mroie St o changes ininferest ates. usualy making them moee
volatle than secuntes wath shomer duratiors. A wide vanety of factors can
cause intesest rases of yiedds of U5 Treasury sacunities for yelds of other
Hpis ol bands) 10 mse {2q, central bank manetary pobgies, inflatsan rates,
genedal econamc conditend, et ) Thes 5 especially troe under curent
conditions because interest rates and bond yields are near histoncally low
bevels. Thus, the Funds currently face a heightensed bevel of risk assocated
with mang intene$! cates andfor bond welds. This could be dinven By & vanety
af fachors, sncluding bart mot limited to central bank manetary pofices,
changing mflation or real growth rates, general economic conditions,
increading bond neuances of reduced madket demand for low yelding
ervestments. Further, while U S bond matkets have steadily grown over the
past three decades, dealer " market making™ abiliy has remained relatively
stagrdnl. Green the importande of i ary - market making” in =10 gk
& qobust and actve market, fued income secusities are curnently

facing mncreased volatdity and liguidssy risks. All of thess fachors, collectively
andir indnvadually. could casre a Fund to losevalue I the Fund lost enough
value, the Fund could face meessed Unitholder redempitions, which could
further mmgpair its performance. Alsa, the Fund may be adversely affected
when a lange Unitholder purchases or redeens large amaunts of units, which
cai gotur at any i and may impact the Fund in the same manoer a5 & hagh
yolume of redemgption requests. Large Unitholider transadtions may impact
the Fund's hiquidity and net asset value Soch transactions may 3o increase
the Fund's transacion costs of othersre cause the Fund 1o perform
diffiererly than imended. Moreover, the Fund is subject to the nsk that
othsar Unitholders may make investment dedsions based on the cheices of a
Larger Unitholder

A Fusd may hane wgeuficans expeosune 1o isdoees in the United Kingdam The
United Kingdem's withckawal fram the European Linion may impact Fund
reteng. This decision may cause substansial velatility in foreign exchange
matkets, bead to weakness in the exchange rate of the British pound, result in
a sustained penicd of market uncerainty, and destabilize some or o1 of the
other Eurapean Union member coundnes and‘or the Eurcnone

Feeegn (man-U 5 ) secunitesd o ket teport aie cladufied by the country of
imcodporation of a holding In certain irstances, 3 seounty’s country of
moprparation may be different fram its country of ecancmic exposure

i a Fund ierests directly in foreign (noa-U 5 ) cosmendies of in securiies that
trade in, and recense peveniees in, foresgn [ron-U S ) currencies, o in fnancial
derivative instruments that prowide exposure to foregn fnon-U. 5.1 oemenroes,
i wall b Sutbject to the risk that those curmisncies wall diclme i v relatve
10 the base currency of the Fund, or, in the case of hedging pesitions, that
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the Fured's base curmency will deckine in value relatree o the currency being
hidiged. Cumensy b in ||;;r'.q‘| cnilras miry fluctuale 'gi;'l‘x..ml.hl et
short petiods of time Tor 3 rumiber of regsons, including changes in intevest
rates, intervention for the fadiee to intervene) by LS. or foreign governments,
central banks or supranational entities such as the Imemational Monetary
Fund, o by the mpositen of cureency contrals of other politcal deelopments
in the Uinited $1ates or atwoad As a result, a Fund's investments in foneign
ornengy-denominated securities may reduce the Fund's returns

The market vahues ol equities, wch a8 commen stocks and prelened secuntees
o equity related investments such as Titures and options, have historically
reen and Fallen in periodic pcles and may decline due to general market
conditions which ane nat specilically related %0 a partcular company, such as
real ¢ percesed adverse economic conditions, changas in the general
outlook for coeporate earnings, changes in erterest oo aumency rates, public
health emsegencies, such & the spread of infectiows dreis o drsease, of
advesse imestor senbement gererally They may alio dedine due to facons
which affect a particala industry of industries, such a5 [3bor shortages or
increased production casts and competitnne conditions within an mdustry
Different rypes of aquety securites may react didferently 10 these
dewelopments. Equity securities and equity related imestments generally have
e market phice valatility than fimed vcome secunties

Cosrtaun Funds may invest in oertain mstruments that rely in soene Tashion
upon LIBOR LIBOR 15 an average inferest rate. deceemined by the ICE
Berchmark Administration, that banks charge one anather for the use of
shodt-tern money. The Unted Kingdam's Findncial Conduct Authonty, whach
requlaies LIBOR, has anncunced plans 1o phase out the use of LIBOR by the
end of 2021, The transition may result in a reduction in the value of cestam
insbiumengs hedd by & Fund ar a teduction in the efipctivene of talated Fund
transactions such as hedges There remains uncertainty regarding Tuture
utdization of UEOR and the nature of any replacement rate {e.g, the Secured
Dreerright Financing Rate, ehech is intended to replace 5. dollar LIBOR and
measunes the cost of evernight barrowings through repurchase syeement
transactions collaterafized wath U 5. Treasury seounitees), and any potential
effects of the tramsition away from LIBOR cn a Fund or on cerain instruments
inwhich a Fund invests ace not known and could result in losses 1o a Fund

Beginring in January 2020, glebal financial markets have experienced and
may confinue ta experierse significant volablity resulting from the spread of 2
noved eoranavirus known o5 CONID-19 The gutheeak af COVD-19 has
resaifted in travel and border resbrictions, quarantines, supply chain
disrupticers, lower consumer demand and general market uncertaingy, The
global econonmy, the economies of cenain nations and indnadual Boveds haee
been and may continue 1o be adversely affected by COMD-1%, particulary i
light of the interoonnectivity between economies and financial markets, all of
which may nqq.-ﬂ.wf,llmpa{l the Funds” pm.'q!l.-.m:_r In addmion, COVID-19
and governmental resporses by COVD-19 may negatvely impact the
capabdities of the Funds' senvice providers and desnpt the Funds' opeeations

Coadit and Counterparty Risks A Fund will be exposed to oedd rsk o
parti valk whanm it 1eades and will alio bege the sk of tememen default
A Fund manisrezes concentrator s of credh nk by undertaking iransactions
wilh a kaege number of ozstomers and counterparties on recognized and
reputable mechanges, whede apphicable. OTC demvatroe tramactions ane
subject to the risk that a countemparty 1o the transaction will not fullill s
roniractual obligations 1o the other party, as many of the protections afforded
to centrally dieared dermvative transactions maght not be available for OTC
dervative transactans For distreatives aded on an exchange of theough a
central counfesparty, credit ek resides with the credibaasthiness of

Ihe Fund's diearing broker, o the cleanrghouse itsell, rather than wath a
countepaty in a0 QTC demvatneg Transachion, Changes m regulation r|i.!1|m]
ter-a Fund's use of derrvatives and related instrumenis could potentialy limit

of impact the Fund’s ability to imvest in derreatives, imit the Fund's abelity bo
ermplay cerlain sirategies Shat use demltives andic a}w:mh'dll'ﬁ'. e valug
o perfoemance of dereratsves and the Fund A Fund could lose meney if the
ssuer of quarantor of a foed income seourity, or the counterparty 1o a
financial derivatove instruments contract, repurchase agreement of a kean of
pomfolio securites, i5 unable ar ueadlling to make tmely principal andfor
interest payments, or 1o otherwise honor its obbgations. Secunities and
fmancial dermvative instruments ane subjet 1o varying degroes of credy mak,
which may be reflecied in credit 1atings.

Similar to credit nsk, a Fund may be exposed to {oorterparty resk, or the risk
that an institution of other enfity with which a Fund has unsettled or apen
transactons will defaule FIMCO. as the Manager, minimizes countesparty
risks bo the Fusds through a rusber of wiays. Prior to enbering inka
transactions with a new counterparty, the PIMCO Courerparty Risk
Committee condects an exyins e credit neview of such Courberpity and muss
approve the wse of sudch countemarty. Furthermone, pursuant 1o the tems of
the undertying contract, to the extent that unpaid amounts owed o a Fund
exceed a predatermined theshold, such counterpanty shall advancr collateral
10 & Fund in the form of cash or seoutities equal in value 1o the unpad
ampunt owed to.a Fund A Fund may imeest such coffateral in seowities o
ottt instuments and will sypically pay inbidest 1 the counbesparty on e
collateral recered I the unpasd asaunt evwed 1o & Fund subsequently
decreases, a Fund would be tequired to reben 3o the cunterparty all or a
portion of the collateral previously advanced. PINCD's attempts to minimize
Sourtiaparty ik My, B, e iyt

All trarsactions in listed sequrities are settledipaid for upon delivery using
approved countesparties. The risk of default s considered minimal, as delivery
al secuntees sold is. ordy made coce 4 Fund ks recensed payreent. Payment 5
made on & purchase once the secunties have been delreered by the
countemarty. The trade wall Tail il either party fails to meet its chligaton

) Dihver Rlsks In geneval, each Fund may be subject to additonal nsks,
ncluding, bBut not iested 1o, niks celmed 1o governmint fequlation and
imervention in finanoal markets, operational risks, nsks assocated with
financal, econamic and global market dsruptions, and olberseouity risks
Plegee tefer 10 each Fund's affering documents for o made detailed
descrption of the ks of imeeting in the Fund

Market Dissuptions Rigk The Funds are subject to irvestment and
operational lisks assodated wath fmancial, economic and other global market
devidopments and daiuphons, including thods Sikng Si0e wal, Do,
matket manipulation, govermment intesventions, defaults and dhutderars
political changes oo diplematic developments, public health emergencies
{such a5 the spread of indecticurs diseases, pandemics and epidemics) and
natutaliemargnmental disadsers, whach can all negatnety mpact th Secunties
enakets, inberest rates, auctions, secondany ading, ratings, credet risk,
inflation, deflation and other factors relating to the Fund's imestments or the
Mansge's opeations and cause & Fund 1o kose valie Thede evenits may have
adierse bong-tenm effects on the U 5 and woeld economies and markets
generally. These events can also smpar the technology and cther operational
sysbens upan which a Fund's serade peoviders, mcluding PIMCD a5 the
Fueds' imvessirment adviver, redy, and could athersase drsupt a Fund's semvice
peowiders’ abilty to huil their abligations to the relevant Fund. For example,
the spread of an infections respiratery illness caused by a novel strain of
corsnanarus. fkrown as COVID-19) has caused volatiliy, severe matket
destocatons and lguidity constraints in many markets and may adersely
affect a Fund'$ imvestments and opetations

Gevarmmant latervontion in Fisancial Markets Feceral, state, and ather
gevernments, thesr regulatery agencies, of seli-requlatary organzations may
take actions that affect the requlation of the instruments in which a Fund
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imeests, of the issuers of such instruments, in wirys that are unloeeseeable
Legrdatian of negrulition may alse l;h.]m]r the ey in which a Fund itsel! is
reqaiated. Such legelation of regulation could limit or prechode a Fund's
ability 10 achieve its smestment objective. Furthermaons, volatile financial
markets can expose a Fund to greater matket and hquidity nsk and potertial
diffsculty in vaieng portfiola irstruments held by the Fund. The value of
Fund's holdings is ato generaty subject to the risk of future local, national, or
rjlcbu.’ ecanamic datuchances based on unknowm weaknesses in the markets
in which a Fund invests In addition, it r not certain that the U % Gowemment
wll imtervene in response b a future market distbance and the effect of amy
such Tuture mtenvention cannot be predicted. It is diffiult for suers 1o
prepate for the impact of future financial downturns, althaugh comparies can
seek 1o identify and manage future uncenaintes through sk management
programs

Regulatery Risk Financal ensties, such as imeestment companies and
imeeIment advders, b gemdally Sulpect 16 extindied government regulition
and intervention Govermment requlation andioe intercention may chamge the
vty a Fund is requilated, aflect the expenses. incusred directly by a Fund and
i wlie of s ipmintreentd, and himit andiee pm'_'.bdr a Fund's .'H'||||’.‘:,-'.|':p
ackieve s imvestment chipdie. Govemnment requlabon may charge
Trequently and may have significant adverse consequences Moteouer,
airepirimdnd rigulation may have unpeasdictabile 30d unintended alfect

Dperational Risk An imestment in a Fund, ke any fiord, can arniohee
cperational ks ansing from factoes such as processing erces, human emars,
inadequate or failed mternal or external processes, faifures in gystems and
technology, changes in personnel and erran caused by third-party senace
prenders. The eccurcence of amy of these Falures, erors of breaches could
resuit in a boss of idormation, requlatory scruteny, reputational damage o
other evimits, any of which could have a material adverse effect on a Fund
‘While a Fung wseks o mimmide such dvenls |||r';|u|;h contiok and Du'l‘i'-lljh'l_
thete may still be faélures that coubd cause kosses 1o the Fund

Cybar Sacarity Rlsk As the use of technology has become maore prevalent in
the course of Business, the Funds have become petentrlly mone susomp bbde
o operational and miermanon sicurdty nsks nesulting from hineaches in cyfer
sanurity. A& breach in opber security refers to both intentional and
unintenional cyber events thal may, among ather things, cause a Fund 1o
hoser proprietany infermatmn, sutler data comuption andiar destruction or ke
operational capacity, resulf in the unautheezed release of ther misuse of
confidential infmeation, or othenwise dienpt normal business operations
Cyber security Taikunes o beeaches may rebult in fnancial losses 10 a Fund and
ity Unithlders. Thede falures or beeaches may also result in denuplions 1o
business aperations, potentially resulting in finanoal losses; interlerence wath
a Fund's ability Yo cabulate its net avset value, poocess Unitholder
transactions of otherstse transad business with Urstholders; impediments to
trading vielatoss of applicable privacy and other bws; requlatory fines;
penalties; reputational damage; resmbaursement of other compensation oosts;
additaanal compluance and cyber security frk manapisent coits and other
aiverse consequences In addimon, substatial costs may be inourred in order
to prevent any cfber ncdents in the future

B. MASTER NETTING ARRANGEMENTS

The Funds may be sabgect to vanows netiing amangements (" Master
Agreerments”) with selec! oounterparties. Master Agrements govein the
terms of cerain transacticns, and are intended to redisce the counteparty risk
assoaated with relevant transactions by speclying credd protection
mechanisms and providing slandacdzation that is imtended 1o improve legal
certainty, Each type of Master Agreement giverns cetain types of
ransactions Diffierent rypes of Mansactons may be traded out of different

legal entities or affliates of a particular anganization, resulting in the need for
multiple AGRETETY with a single counbérparty As the Mader Agreements
ate speclic (o unigue opeatans of dilferent acet types, they slow a Fusd 1o
chose out and net its total exposure 10 3 counderparty in the event of a default
with respect 16 2l the transactions gowerned under a single Master
Agresment with a countedparty For finandal repartng purposss the
Saaterments of Assets and Liabibties generally present dervative assets and
Fabnlitees on a Gross harss, which reflecss the Tull ks ad IS price 19
e

Master Agreements an also help bt counterparty visk by specifying
collateral posting arangements at pre-aitanged eposure el Under most
Master Agreements, collateral s routinely trarslered if the tatal net experure
10 certan transactions (net of edsting collateral already in place) governed
under the relevant Master Agreement with a counterparty in a given aooount
exceeds & specified threshald, which ypacally nnges Trom Tero to 5.250,000
depending on the countesparty and the type of Masser Aqeeement Unitad
Saates Treasury Bills and U1S. doflar cash are generally the preferred foms of
collateral, although other secunties may be used depending an the terms
outlined in the applicable Master Agreement Securites and cash pledged as
collateral are refiected as assets on the Statements of Assets and Liabilives as
withet & componant of Irvestments ) walae (socurmies) of Depodits with
courterparty. Cash collmeral recetied i not typacally held in a seqreqated
aorount and as such is reflected as a hiabikty on the Statements of Assets and
Ligbilities a5 Deposits from counterparty. The mackel value of sy securities
diciredd i collater s & nod reflected ad & SOt al MAV The Fund's
overdll exposure to counterparty nsk can change substantially wathin a short
peviod, as it is affecied by each tansaction subject 1o the relevant Mastes
Bogresment

Master Repurchass Agreements and Global Master Repurchass Agreemenis
{indrvidualy and cobectvely ”“Master Repo Agreements™ ) govern repurchase,
eoersi repiatchase, and sale-buyback transactions between the Funds and
select countesparties. Master Repo Agresments mamiain provesions fior,
amang other things, initason, income payments, events of default, and
maentenance of collateral. The market value of ransactions under the Master
Repo Agreement, collateral pledged or recered, and the net expersure by
counterparty & of penicd end are diclosed in the Notes to Schedule of
Frreesiments

hEtes Secohbed Forvied Transachan b.lrﬂﬁ.l,ﬂll.li'i‘.!.ﬂ.lﬁ Famward
Agreements” ) govern certain forward settling transactions, such as TBA
securities, delayed-delveny or sale-buybadk tramsactions by and

beetwen the Fumds and select countésparties. Thie Master Forward
Agreements maintaim provisions for, among other thangs, iniation and
confirmaticn, payment and transher, events of defaaly termination, and
mamrtenance af collateral The market value of loreard settling traeactions,
collateral pledged or recened, and the net expedare by cournerparmy as of
peviod end are disckised in the Notes to Schedule of Investmends

Customer Account Agreemenss and related addenda govern cheared
detheatives rardactods such as fubstes, optiors on Butures, and cleared OTC
deviwatives. Such ansachions requere posting of ininal margin as determined
by each reevant diearing agency which is segregated m an actount at a
futuies commiticn mirchant |"FOM) regetensd wath the Commoday
Futures Trading Coemmission ("CFTC™). In the United States, counterparty eisk
may be reduced a5 tediters of an FCM cannet have a claim to Fund assets in
the segregated account. Portabilty of epasure 1 the event af an FCM
dedault scenarso further reduces sk 1o the Funds. Variation marngin, of
changes immarket value, are generally exchanged daily, baut may not be
mited Bibasen Futunes and clescid OTC dernaatoees unlisgs the it By
agreed 10 @ sepaeate rangement in respedt of fund mangreng  The markeq
value-or acoumulated unrealized appredation (depreciabion], irtial mangin

sl P | My 31, 221
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B, FEES AND EXPENSES

Faas

Advizsry Administrative _ Agancy Distributins

FIMCO Bermuda Foreign Lows Duration Fund
PIMCO Bermuda U.5. Low Deratien Fund 073%%

FIMECO Eure Total Return Fusd
PIMCO Real Raturn Fund 045% 075% 0z %
FIMCO Short-Tarm Strategy

& A 0 a5 % - - 010%

=  CUsD

= JLF -

=+ JilEED

a  JF
- LED 0145 8 - _ 010%

ol Ragert | My 31, 200
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g o 3 r the provisian of
admintsirathee and third-party senices including aedt, oustodial, trustes, ponfiolio accounting, sousine Jegal, transher agent and printing senvices. The agendy and
distribution fees, o applicable, are paid monthly in amears 1o resmburse financal in ianes that provide serdices and distnbutien relating to the units of the
applicable Fund {or Class theveol, a5 applicable) In the case of the FIMCD Bermuda Fareign Low Dusation Fund and PINCO Bermuda U 5. Low Duration Fund, FIKCO,
oun of iy management Tee, will bear the coits associated with advisory and adeinisiratve seraces, 1% of which is designated 1o cover 2 SArane expisnies I
exchange foe this fee, FEIMCO will bear the costs of certan theed-party servces required by the Funds, including audit, custodial, testee. portiolio accounting, legal,

g5 PIMCO, and not holdiers, would bened ry peice decrease in the cost of such third-pa ng decreanes

transfes agent and prin T e
resutting from an incrie i net assets In g an, Wil tespect bo Funds that are subeict 1o an inistrative lise, J gerataly makes a piohs on such alee

The marngement

As noted in the table sbove, certain Funds ard Classes of Funds are not subject bo management, adwisory, adménistrative, agency o distribution Jees. PIMCO Lapan
Lid, PRJCIYs affliate in fapan, is paed a fee from the Rapanese Imvestment Trusts or other smvestment vehides that invest in such Funds. or Classes and a portion of
gy T i then Mlacated 1o PIMCD 18 com @ ol o ik Setvated

The Funds tor Classes thereal, a5 applicable) may bear other expenses related 1o their operataon that are not covered by the management, advisary, admirsstrative
agency or distributicn fees, inchuding bat rot limited 1o () tames and govemmental fees; (i) brokerage fees and commissions and other portiolio barsation expenses;
i} cosks -ul'l:-:|'r:r.-.'.'!.'| morsey, inchading interest expense: (i) exirao iy gapenses, including costs of kgation and ifcation egpenses; and (v Y IR
aliocaned o alocable 1o & speafic Clas of umity, a5 applicable PRICO has paid the organzasional experes ansooated vath PIMCO Shom-Tesm Srategy’s initial get-

u

FINMCO has paid the amganzabionad expenses assodiated with the creation of the Teust 1 lurther Funds are launched, such costs directly attribusable to the relevant
Fund may be beme by the televant Fund
10, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Imvestment Adveier i 3 related party oo the Fursds and i5 & majo anied subaidiany al Alllanz Asset Management 4G, Fees paid 10 the related party, ff amy, ane
disclosed in Note 9, and aconsed related party Fee amaunts, if ary, are disclosed on the Satements of Assats and Liabikties

Certain Funds are permitted 1o purchase or sell secuntes nom o to certain related altbliated funds under specked condiftions cutlined in procedures adopt
It tmend Adveier, The peocedurnes hane bisin ¢ that sy pucchne o sake af securnites by & fund mather ford that
corsiderad an affiliate by virtse of having a common adviser {or alf 1], i eflected at the cument market peice. During the penod ended May
3, 2021, the Fu beedonw ergaged in purchases and sales of seouities among afikated funds (amounts in thousands)

Fund Purchases:
PINACD Bermuda Foresgn Lo Deration fund ¥ LI ]
PELACT Barmudda 13, Low Do .

PR Emprgareg delaricery Boned Fundd M 19487 |
PIMC Borg Teasl Returs Fund tha

FIMID Rl Returs Fund 1362 Al
POACD Shat Taers Strategy LA 143,165

11, GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

Unader the Trust's eeganizational decuments, cartain parties (induding the Trustes and PIMCO] are indemnified against certan babilioes that may astse out of
periomance of their dutes o the Funds. Additienally, in the nonmal course of Business, th 5 enter it contracts that contain a vanety of mdemnification dauses
The Funds' sagmum expesute under these arangements b5 unkngen a this would imvolve fubwre daims that may be made against the Furds that have not yet
oomurted. However, the Funds have not had peior daims o lesses pursuant 1o these contracts

12, UNITS OF BENEFICIAL INTEREST

The T

1 e pencent of the net
g in]

and
corent al

t may isue up o 500,000,
aigets af wach repaectvg Fund . Such
wathid iy ubstantial |
cofmneried 5o the Funds
e Manager, mary in the fu

- ach Fund ane ssued wihont pae value T
ol Fuemd or Class or Classes of unily

wanal Gsinency
re creabe and of

Romzal Pagert | My 31, 2001
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f 2t 'l VWRIT lolk 1 amounits in i) 1] "\..'
oar Ercied Your Endied Your Ended Toar Endledd
May 31, 301 iy 31, 20210 My 31, 201 ey 1, M21
Fwipts for erity mid 1] § 1,655 L] i 1553 m ¥ 1300 L} Wil
U0 A Nik N Nk WA KA 5% 8 BT
Coat ol unta radornnd el 17,6 1 308 171 120, 541 Hik Wik
i NIk Wik N i Wik Wk 14,3807 1138, 147)
Hat [imermnal reiteg hrom
Fured vt Tasanetie (L T 1 8 assn oy Ry BAMI B fd3em
our Ersied Foar Ended Y Ended Toar Ended
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lism Ampent sy ! ] Amun ] Amanr
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Yoar Erded
May 31, 221

JOE P § (151
JFY 13 {30,353
LED {14021 51,5

Wt ire e rinulieg rem
Fured wril Tazmctionn 1143 LI ]

13, REGULATORY AND LITIGATION MATTERS

e Funds ate nod named &5 delendants in amy masedal imgacon of alitratan proc

ApeTEe e
Bl 30 eXaminabon va

ernesits through August 12, 20
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2022
516,304 71,575,224
62,985 8,731,611
453,319 62,843,613

2,822,138.468

458,466.013
535,795.000
106.29 14,735
9,852
100.63 9,574
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984,456,267.25 1,364 7,517
850,000
90,932.70
850,000
250,000
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150,000

150,000
1,250,000

2018 302,158,349

2019 388,027,447

2020 941,473,871.63

2021 1,053,391,472.93

2022 984,456,267.25

Managing Member
limited liability company
agreement
2022
L

Adam Gubner

Adam Shukovsky

(Alejandro Kersman)

Alessandro Gandolfi

Alfred T. Murata

Andrew Balls

Andrew R. Jessop

Anna Dragesic

Ayman Hindy
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Brett Condron

Caleb Pitters

Whitten, Candice Stack

(Cathleen M. Stahl)

Chris Dialynas

Craig A. Dawson

Daniel H. Hyman

Daniel J. Ilvascyn

David L. Braun

David Fisher

David C. Flattum

David Hammer

Dirk Manelski

Elizabeth Cantrill

(Emmanuel Roman)

Eric M. Sutherland

Erin Browne

(Eve Tournier)

Frank Witt

Geraldine Brigliadori-Walsh

Greg E. Sharenow

(Gregory W. Hall)

Harin de Silva

Jamie Weinstein

Jamil Baz

Jason Mandinach

Jason R. Steiner
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Jerome M. Schneider

Joachim Fels

John Devir)

J
(John J. Kirkowski)

John W. Murray

John J. Studzinski

Jonathan L. Horne

Joshua Anderson

Joshua Davis

Julie Meggers

Kimberley Korinke

Lorenzo Pagani

Mangala V. Ananthanarayanan

Marc P. Seidner

Marcellus Fisher

Mark R. Kiesel

Mathieu Clavel

Michael Chandra

(Michael A. Cudzil)

Mohit Mittal

Nadia Zakir

Nicolas Granger

Patrick Feigley

Peter G. Strelow

Philippe Bodereau

Pramol Dhawan

Qi Wang
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(Rene Martel)

(Richard Colasuonno

Richard R. LeBrun

Rick Chan

Robert English

Robert Mead

Robert 0. Young

(Robin C. Shanahan)

Russell Gannaway

Ryan P. Blute

Ryan Korinke

(Sachin Gupta)

Scott A. Mather

Sharad Bansal

Sonali Pier

Stephen Chang

Stephen A. Rodosky

Stuart T. Graham

Sudi N. Mariappa

Sung Hee Suh

Thibault Stracke

Tiffany Wilding

Yacov Arnopolin
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2022 329
684,889,434,253

113 414,465,732,000
23 14,238,370,121
13 22,287,076,299
68 161,611,584 ,606
9 7,693,238,713
31 10,175,811,515
36 17,406,081,028
13 21,506,561,014
3 670,662,587
5 2,178,659,511
15 12,655,656,861
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2020 12 31 2021 12 31

131

23 103

UFJ 2022 31
138.63
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(c) 721,198,092 99,979,691 670,905,056 93,007,568
2(d),3 29,741,057 4,123,003 30,870,470 4,279,573
2(e) 993,957,179 137,792,284 798,701,996 110,724,058
2(e) 317,540,465 44,020,635 314,822,326 43,643,819
47,497,769 6,584,616 45,702,592 6,335,750
2(e) 21,577,432 2,991,279 23,912,871 3,315,041
2().,7(c) 32,250,845 4,470,935 19,755,282 2,738,675
6 33,463,658 4,639,067 17,306,918 2,399,258
54,848,716 7,603,677 64,128,683 8,890,159

2,252,075,213 312,205,187  1,986,106,194 275,333,902

2021 12 31
230,285,768 2020 12 31
213,677,355 2(0),4 111,294,054 15,428,695 121,111,682 16,789,712

2(1),9 173,842,283 24,099,756 195,322,419 27,077,547
2(j).7(c) 1,140,825,289 158,152,610 855,055,452 118,536,337

2(h) 30,865,176 4,278,839 30,865,176 4,278,839
2(9).5 32,984,825 4,572,686 35,265,467 4,888,852
2(b) 36,988,617 5,127,732 14,710,139 2,039,267

8 61,620,430 8,542,440 51,541,356 7,145,178

1,588,420,674 220,202,758 1,303,871,691 180,755,733

3,840,495,887 532,407,945  3,289,977,885 456,089,634
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2021 2020
444,187,520 61,577,716 398,802,753 55,286,026
7(c) 301,432,498 41,787,587 216,289,372 29,984,196
81,689,779 11,324,654 122,043,872 16,918,942
2(i).9 31,437,762 4,358,217 33,157,779 4,596,663
6 95,602,945 13,253,436 37,379,146 5,181,871
2(r),7(c) 32,250,845 4,470,935 19,755,282 2,738,675
10,676,405 1,480,070 4,928,294 683,209
997,277,754 138,252,615 832,356,498 115,389,581
2(r),7(c) 1,140,825,289 158,152,610 855,055,452 118,536,337
2(i),9 182,746,288 25,334,118 204,137,201 28,299,540
7(c) 138,931,408 19,260,061 152,799,181 21,182,550
4,046,469 560,962 4,306,979 597,076
1,466,549,454 203,307,751  1,216,298,813 168,615,504
2,463,827,208 341,560,366  2,048,655,311 284,005,086
850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841)  (103,214,782)  (14,308,665)
150,000 1,333,506,696 184,864,033  1,308,035,518 181,332,964
2021 12 31 74,205
2020 12 31 58,608 69,610,604 9,650,118 43,399,986 6,016,540
2021 12 31
102,231 2020 12 31 148,726 7(a) 32,693,374 4,532,282 37,843,422 5,246,234
2(0) (52,708,748)  (7,307,014)  (44,741,570)  (6,202,524)
1,376,668,679 190,847,579  1,241,322,574 172,084,548
3,840,495,887 532,407,945  3,289,977,885 456,089,634
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2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020
2(e) 4,520,575,834 626,687,428 4,012,403,139 556,239,447
2(e) 1,166,893,208 161,766,405 1,095,151,513 151,820,854
2(e) 1,272,072,660 176,347,433 1,155,727,878 160,218,556
2(e) 350,424,117 48,579,295 360,487,808 49,974,425
2(e) 32,477,418 4,502,344 46,057,465 6,384,946
7,342,443,237  1,017,882,906 6,669,827,803 924,638,228
7 2,695,488,619 373,675,587 2,283,500,614 316,561,690
666,590,135 92,409,390 777,771,809 107,822,506
2(s) 633,462,121 87,816,854 605,822,180 83,985,129
233,154,167 32,322,162 235,901,474 32,703,021
4,9 179,499,423 24,884,005 168,804,503 23,401,368
2(n) 105,285,247 14,595,694 108,835,693 15,087,892
47,627,284 6,602,570 43,316,136 6,004,916
48,672,649 6,747,489 44,512,301 6,170,740
4,609,779,645 639,053,752 4,268,464,710 591,737,263
2,732,663,592 378,829,154 2,401,363,093 332,900,966
126,921,569 17,595,137 52,168,123 7,232,067
2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (768,742) (6,676,919) (925,621)
2(b) (1,327,780) (184,070) (1,321,069) (183,140)
2,852,712,104 395,471,479 2,445,533,228 339,024,271
8 107,478,838 14,899,791 103,991,820 14,416,386
2,745,233,266 380,571,688 2,341,541,408 324,607,885
2(0) (7,967,178) (1,104,490) 13,877,124 1,923,786
2,737,266,088 379,467,198 2,355,418,532 326,531,671
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850,000 (683,902,349) (94,809,383) 150,000 1,288,040,853 178,561,103 48,876 28,952,832 4,013,731
1,694,470,162 234,904,399 520,315,348 72,131,317 126,755,898 17,572,170
(1,133,305,426)  (157,110,131) (500, 320,683) (69,359, 456) (116,146,639)  (16,101,409)
12,785,179 1,772,409
6,737,652 934,041 3,837,895 532,047
850,000 (103,214,782) (14,308, 665) 150,000 1,308,035,518 181,332,964 58,608 43,399,986 6,016,540
1,942,092,906 269,232,340 614,678,821 85,212,925 188,461,539 26,126,423
(1,861,825,611)  (258,104,884) (589, 207,643) (81,681,856) (171,157,203)  (23,727,523)
8,451,432 1,171,622
8,062,808 1,117,747 8,906,282 1,234,678
850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841) 150,000 1,333,506,696 184,864,033 74,205 69,610,604 9,650,118
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2021 2020 12 31

153,400 32,591,945 4,518,221 (58,618,694) (8,126,310) 607,064,587 84,157,364
2,341,541,408 324,607,885
(1,749,772,748) (242,570,996)
12,785,179 1,772,409
15,827,024 2,194,100 15,827,024 2,194,100

(10,575,547) (1,466,088)
13,877,124 1,923,786 13,877,124 1,923,786
148,726 37,843,422 5,246,234 (44,741,570) (6,202,524) 1,241,322,574 172,084,548
2,745,233,266 380,571,688
(2,622,190,457) (363,514,263)
8,451,432 1,171,622
11,819,042 1,638,474 11,819,042 1,638,474

(16,969,090) (2.,352,425)
(7.967,178) (1,104,490) (7.967,178) (1,104,490)
102,231 32,693,374 4,532,282 (52,708,748) (7.307,014) 1,376,668,679 190,847,579

278/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
2,745,233,266 380,571,688 2,341,541,408 324,607,885
11,600,078 1,608,119 15,508,853 2,149,992
65,880,266 9,132,981 65,464,604 9,075,358
5,545,277 768,742 6,676,919 925,621
1,327,780 184,070 1,321,069 183,140
1,665 231 12,114 1,679
29,028 4,024 (44,308) (6,142)
4,206,963 583,211 14,256,907 1,976,435
15,036,589 2,084,522 15,010,423 2,080,895
(13,788,912) (1,911,557) (11,695,316) (1,621,322)
(108,645,764) (15,061,562) (146,673,050) (20,333,285)
(5,545,277) (768,742) (6,762,761) (937,522)
(194,961,547) (27,027,519) (130,819,174) (18,135,462)
(18,406, 245) (2,551,658) (25,708,793) (3.564,010)
180,065, 741 24,962,514 103,679,079 14,373,031
63,479,303 8,800,136 10,538,563 1,460,961
2,751,058, 211 381,379,200 2,252,306,537 312,237,255
(144,367) (20,014)
6,500,203 901,123
(17,229,114) (2,388,472) (7,078,726) (981,324)
(4,902,545) (679,640) (13,730,247) (1,903,424)
(23,500, 150) (3,257,826) (18,000) (2,495)
(45,776,176) (6,345,951) (14,326,770) (1,986,120)
337,000,000 46,718,310 416,000,000 57,670,080
(337,000, 000) (46,718,310) (644,000,000) (89,277,720)
(2,622,190,457) (363,514,263)  (1,749,772,748)  (242,570,996)
8,451,432 1,171,622 4,984,931 691,061
(33,282,796) (4,613,994) (30,720,464) (4,258,778)
(2,647,021,821) (366,956,635) _ (2,003,508,281) _ (277,746,353)
(7,967,178) (1,104,490) 13,877,124 1,923,786
50,293,036 6,972,124 248,348,610 34,428,568
670,905,056 93,007,568 422,556,446 58,579,000
721,198,092 99,979,691 670,905,056 93,007,568
2,547,664 353,183 1,300,045 180,225
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2021 2020 12 31
AAM LP
PIMCO
AAM LP 850,000 150,000
AAM LLC
AAM Holding 250,000
PIMCO
2021 12 31 74,205
AAM LP  AAM LLC AAM Holding
PIMCO PIMCO Pl
LLC
Pl LLC PIMCO
PIMCO PIMCO
Pl LLC 1934
FINRA
2021 2020 12 31

0.00319 0.00206
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PIMCO

PGA

FINMA
PIMCO 2021
PEG
PIMCO
AREO0A
1ASB IFRS

IFRS
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2022 25

PIMCO

PIMCO

AAM LP

2021 2020 12 31 323.9 347.1

2021 2020 12 31 807 2.3
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FDIC
FDIC

PIMCO

PIMCO
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2021 2020

12

12
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IFRS

PIMCO

2021 2020 12
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IFRS

IAS 19
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IFRS
[ ]
[ ]
[ ]
2021 2020 12 31 29.7 30.9
2021 2020 12 31
NAV
2021 2020 12 31
2019 12 31 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
(12,114) (12,114)
(16,946,736) (10,841,783) (27,788,519)
2020 12 31 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
(1,665) (1,665)
(15,475,576) (11,569,501) (27,045,077)
2021 12 31 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054
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2019 12 31

2020 12 31

2021 12 31

2021

PIMCO

2021

24.7

PIMCO

PIMCO
31

90
PIMCO

PIMCO
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2020 27.0 27.8
5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
13,838,448 13,838,448
(5,879,698) (2,080, 000) (637,931) (100, 000) (8,697,629)
13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 35,265,467
4,902,545 4,902,545
(4,948,015) (2,080, 000) (155,172) (7,183,187)
13,624,825 19,360,000 32,984,825
2020 7.2 8.7
AAM LP AAM LLC
2020 23.6
AAM LP AAM LLC
2021 2020 12
21.5 8.6
LIBOR 0.2
AAM LP PIMCO 2021 2020
AAM LP
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020 102 373
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2021 12 31 10
2020 822.6
2021 2020 55.9
52.4
PIMCO
2021 2020
7.3 7.8
PEG
PEG PIMCO PIMCO
PIMCO
2021
PEG 400.4 2020 147.3
PEG 41.6 2020 55.1
PEG 2021 PEG 85.8
2020 41.3
2021 12 31 26.2 2020

13.5 PEG 74.1 2020 28.8 PEG

AAM LP 2023 11
600.0 LIBOR LIBOR 20

2021 12 31 0.264
LIBOR LIBOR

AAM LP PIMCO
2021 2020 12 31
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PIMCO PIMCO PIMCO
AAM LP
PIMCO
PIMCO
250,000 2020
2021 2020 12 31 102,231 148,726
74,205 2021 12 31
2021 2020
2020
17,806
3.84
25.1

11.1

290/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

0.6
2021
2020
2019 12 31 153,400 153,400 13,492
29,802 29,802 17,806
27,775 (27,775)
(27,775) (27,775) 11,567
(6,701) (6,701) 14,416
2020 12 31 148,726 148,726 14,674
41,017 (41,017)
(41,017) (41,017) 12,967
(5,478) (5,478) 15,218
2021 12 31 102,231 102,231 15,330
2021 12 31
2021 12 31 11,804 17,806
1.99
20,924 2021
17,806 2020 2021 41,017
2021 31 2021 28
15,597
2021 12 31 73,774 431
AAM LLC
2020 27,775 2020 30
9,732
2021 2020
11.6 15.5

2021 12 31 2025 12 31

291/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12.7
AAM LP
401
100
2021 2020 59.1
55.1
AAM LP
1974 201 301
401
2021 2020 12 31
12 874.8
12 31
2021 2020
81,038 29,332
3,988,116 3,432,731
115,094,758 121,394,722
119,163,912 124,856,785
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)
(11,685,074) (20,864,965)

107,478,838 103,991,820
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40.9
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2022
2023
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2025
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2020 12 31
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32.8 23.2
2021
54.8 44.8 2021
285 247

12 31

2021 2020

31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813

(19,310,763)

214,184,050
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38,461,023
34,822,467
36,457,152
22,087,757
32,862,009
96,750,859

261,441,267

(24,146,287)

237,294,980
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2021 12 31

AAM LP
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2021 12 31 2021 12
31

Pl LLC

11

PIMCO

2020 CovID 19

covib 19

12
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2021 2020
3.3 731
12 31
2021 2020
2,408,685,532 582,606,016
567,143 222,021
13
2022 25
38,253 PIMCO
2022 31
16,727
2022 LIBOR

SOFR

2022
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Assets
Note 2021 2020
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 2(c) $ 721,198,092 670,905,056
Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 2(d), 3 29,741,057 30,870,470
Investment advisory and administrative fees receivable:
Pooled funds 2(e) 993,957,179 798,701,996
Private accounts 2(e) 317,540,465 314,822,326
Prepaid expenses 47,497,769 45,702,592
Distribution and servicing fees receivable 2(e) 21,577,432 23,912,871
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Receivables from affiliates 6 33,463,658 17,306,918
Other current assets 54,848,716 64,128,683
Total current assets 2,252,075,213 1,986,106,194
Noncurrent assets:
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $230,285,768
and $213,677,355 at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively 2(f), 4 111,294,054 121,111,682
Right-of-use assets 2(i), 9 173,842,283 195,322,419
Interest in non-consolidated deferred compensation trust 2(j), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Goodwill 2(h) 30,865,176 30,865,176
Intangible assets 2(9), 5 32,984,825 35,265,467
Investments in associates 2(b) 36,988,617 14,710,139
Other noncurrent assets 8 61,620,430 51,541,356
Total noncurrent assets 1,588,420,674 1,303,871,691
Total assets $ 3,840,495,887 3,289,977,885
Liabilities and Capita
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 444,187,520 398,802,753
Accrued compensation 7(c) 301,432,498 216,289,372
Commissions payable 81,689,779 122,043,872
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 31,437,762 33,157,779
Payables to affiliates 6 95,602,945 37,379,146
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 32,250,845 19,755,282
Other current liabilities 10,676,405 4,928,294
Total current liabilities 997,277,754 832,356,498
Noncurrent liabilities:
Deferred compensation 2(r), 7(c) 1,140,825,289 855,055,452
Lease liabilities 2(i), 9 182,746,288 204,137,201
Other accrued compensation 7(c) 138,931,408 152,799,181
Other noncurrent liabilities 4,046,469 4,306,979
Total noncurrent ligbilities 1,466,549,454 1,216,298,813
Total liabilities 2,463,827,208 2,048,655,311
Capitdl:
Class A members (issued and outstanding 850,000 units) (6,433,247) (103,214,782)
Class B members (issued and outstanding 150,000 units) 1,333,506,696 1,308,035,518
Class M members (74,205 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2021
and 58,608 units issued and outstanding at December 31, 2020) 69,610,604 43,399,986
Class M unit option holders (102,231 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2021 and 148,726 options issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2020) 7(a) 32,693,374 37,843,422
Cumulative translation adjustment 2(0) (52,708,748) (44,741,570)
Tota capital 1,376,668,679 1,241,322,574
Total liabilities and capital $ 3840495887 3,280977,885

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues: Note 2021 2020
Investment advisory fees:
Pooled funds 2(e) $ 4520575834 4,012,403,139
Private accounts 2(e) 1,166,893,208 1,095,151,513
Administrative fees - pooled funds 2(e) 1,272,072,660 1,155,727,878
Distribution and servicing fees 2(e) 350,424,117 360,487,808
Other 2(e) 32,477,418 46,057,465
Total revenues 7,342,443,237 6,669,827,803
Expenses:
Compensation and benefits 7 2,695,488,619 2,283,500,614
Commissions 666,590,135 777,771,809
General and administrative 2(s) 633,462,121 605,822,180
Professional fees 233,154,167 235,901,474
Occupancy and equipment 4,9 179,499,423 168,804,503
Marketing and promotional 2(n) 105,285,247 108,835,693
Subadvisory and subadministrative services 47,627,284 43,316,136
Other 48,672,649 44,512,301
Total expenses 4,609,779,645 4,268,464,710
Operating income 2,732,663,592 2,401,363,093
Other income, net 126,921,569 52,168,123
Finance costs 2(i), 9 (5,545,277) (6,676,919)
Equity in loss of associates 2(b) (1,327,780) (1,321,069)
Net income before income taxes 2,852,712,104 2,445,533,228
Income tax expense 8 107,478,838 103,991,820
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408

Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 2(0) (7,967,178) 13,877,124

Comprehensive income $ 2,737,266,088 2,355,418,532

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Capital
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cumulative
Class A members Class B members ClassM members Class M unit option holders trandation Totd
Units Amounts Units Amounts Units Amounts Options Amounts adjustment capital

Balances at December 31, 2019 850,000 (683,902,349) 150,000 1,288,040,853 48,876 28,952,832 153,400 32,591,945 (58,618,694)$ 607,064,587
Net income 1,694,470,162 520,315,348 126,755,898 - - 2,341,541,408
Distributions (1,133,305,426) (500,320,683) (116,146,639) - - (1,749,772,748)
Contributions 12,785,179 - - - - 12,785,179
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 15,827,024 - 15,827,024

Reallocation of basis on vested options 6,737,652 - 3,837,895 (10,575,547) - -
Other comprehensive income - - - - 13,877,124 13,877,124
Balances at December 31, 2020 850,000 (103,214,782) 150,000 1,308,035,518 58,608 43,399,986 148,726 37,843,422 (44,741,570) 1,241,322,574
Net income 1,942,092,906 614,678,821 188,461,539 - - 2,745,233,266
Distributions (1,861,825,611) (589,207,643) (171,157,203) - - (2,622,190,457)
Contribution 8,451,432 - - - - 8,451,432
PIMCO Class M unit equity plan:

Compensation expense - - - 11,819,042 - 11,819,042

Reallocation of basis on vested options 8,062,808 - 8,906,282 (16,969,090) - -
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (7,967,178) (7,967,178)
Baances at December 31, 2021 850,000 $ (6,433,247) 150,000 $ 1,333,506,696 74,205 ¢ 69,610,604 102,231 g 32,693,374 ¢ (52,708,748)$ 1,376,668,679

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Y ears ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income 2,745,233,266 2,341,541,408
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity compensation 11,600,078 15,508,853
Depreciation and amortization 65,880,266 65,464,604
Finance costs 5,545,277 6,676,919
Equity inloss of associates 1,327,780 1,321,069
Net loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,665 12,114
Unrealized and realized net loss/(gain) on investments carried at fair value
through profit and loss 29,028 (44,308)
Contingent consideration fair value adjustments 4,206,963 14,256,907
Proceeds from sale of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss 15,036,589 15,010,423
Purchases of investments carried at fair value through profit and loss (13,788,912) (11,695,316)
Income taxes paid (108,645,764) (146,673,050)
Interest paid (5,545,277) (6,762,761)
Change in operating assets, liabilities, and income tax expense:
Fees receivable (194,961,547) (130,819,174)
Receivables from affiliates, prepaid expenses, and other assets (18,406,245) (25,708,793)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, commissions payable, accrued
compensation, and income tax expense 180,065,741 103,679,079
Other liabilities and payablesto affiliates 63,479,303 10,538,563
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,751,058,211 2,252,306,537
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for business acquisition, net of cash acquired (144,367) -
Cash acquired through acquisition - 6,500,203
Purchases of property and equipment (17,229,114) (7,078,726)
Purchases of intangible assets (4,902,545) (13,730,247)
Purchases of investments in associates (23,500,150) (18,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (45,776,176) (14,326,770)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from short-term borrowings from affiliates 337,000,000 416,000,000
Repayment of short-term borrowings from affiliates (337,000,000) (644,000,000)
Distributions paid (2,622,190,457) (1,749,772,748)
Contributions received 8,451,432 4,984,931
Principal elements of lease payments (33,282,796) (30,720,464)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,647,021,821) (2,003,508,281)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (7,967,178) 13,877,124
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 50,293,036 248,348,610
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 670,905,056 422,556,446
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 721,198,092 670,905,056
Supplemental disclosure of noncash activities:
Assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition, net $ 2,547,664 1,300,045

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(D) Organization and Business

Pacific Investment Management Company LLC (PIMCO or the Company), a Delaware limited liability company
and subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management of AmericaL P. (AAM LP), the Managing Member, is a registered
investment adviser, headquartered in Newport Beach, California. The Company manages a variety of
predominately fixed-income portfolios for a wide range of investors located throughout the world. Investors
include public and private pensions and retirement plans, educational institutions, foundations, endowments,
corporations, financial advisers, individuals, and others through the use of private accounts and pooled funds.

Capitalization

AAM LP owns al 850,000 Class A units of the Company. There are atotal of 150,000 Class B units, which are
owned by Allianz Asset Management of AmericaLLC (AAM LLC) and Allianz Asset Management U.S. Holding
Il LLC (AAM Holding II). The Company has authorized 250,000 nonvoting Class M units for issuance and
options on Class M units have been granted to certain employees of PIMCO. As of December 31, 2021, 74,205
Class M units have been issued and are outstanding. Class B units have priority over Class A and M units with
respect to income and distributions.

AAM LP, AAM LLC, and AAM Holding Il are indirectly wholly owned by Allianz SE. Allianz SE is a global
financial services provider predominantly in the insurance and asset management business.

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

PIMCO, as the primary investment adviser, has several wholly owned subsidiaries including PIMCO Investments
LLC (PI LLC) aswell asinternational subsidiaries that are included in these consolidated financial statements as
follows:

Pl LLC is a registered broker/dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission that is the primary
distributor and provides shareholder services to ingtitutional and retail mutual funds (PIMCO Mutua Funds)
and exchange-traded funds that are managed and advised by PIMCO (collectively, PIMCO Funds). Pl LLC
is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) that is subject to the Uniform Net
Capital requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, which requires maintenance of certain
minimum net capital levels.

StocksPLUS Management, Inc. (StocksPLUS) owns approximately 0.00319% interest and 0.00206% interest
in, and isthe general partner of, StocksPLUS L P. as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

PIMCO Europe Ltd (PIMCO Europe) is aregistered investment adviser in the United Kingdom.

PIMCO Japan Ltd (PIMCO Japan) is aregistered investment adviser in Japan.

(Continued)

302/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

PIMCO Australia Pty Limited (PIMCO Australia) is aregistered investment adviser in Australia.
PIMCO Australia Management Limited is aregistered responsible entity in Australia.

PIMCO AsiaPte Ltd (PIMCO Asia) is aregistered investment adviser in Singapore.

PIMCO AsiaLimited (PIMCO Hong Kong) is aregistered investment adviser in Hong Kong.

PIMCO Globa Advisors (Resources) LLC (PIMCO Resources) provides certain global payroll services to
PIMCO and its subsidiaries.

PIMCO Canada Corp is aregistered investment adviser in Canada.
PIMCO Globa Holdings LLC isthe holding company for PIMCO Canada Corp.

PGA Global Services LLC is a holding company, with branches in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong, and
Ireland.

PIMCO Globa Advisors LLC is aholding company, with abranch in Argentina.

PIMCO (Schweiz) GmbH provides certain services to PIMCO Europe in Switzerland and is a registered
distributor with Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority (FINMA).

PIMCO Latin America Administradora de Carteiras Ltda. is aregistered investment adviser in Brazil.
PIMCO Global Advisors (Ireland) Limited provides management services to certain international funds.
PIMCO Globa Advisors (Luxembourg) S.A. (PIMCO Luxembourg) administers and manages investment
funds under the laws of Luxembourg. On July 1, 2021, PIMCO purchased Allianz Investment Real Estate
Solutions S.a r.l, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of PIMCO Europe GmbH (PEG), which was
immediately merged into PIMCO Luxembourg as the surviving entity.

PIMCO Taiwan Limited is aregistered investment advisor in Taiwan.

PIMCO Investment Management (Shanghai) Limited is an investment advisor in China.

Gurtin Municipal Bond Management LLC is aregistered investment advisor in the U.S.

PIMCO Services LLC provides avariety of transaction-related and other services to certain PIMCO sponsored
private accounts.

Allianz Real Estate of America LLC (AREOA) is a captive real estate investment and asset manager.

Third-party assets managed in an agency or fiduciary capacity are not assets of the Company and are not
presented in these consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(2 Significant Accounting Policies
(@) Basisof Preparation

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), which are in compliance with standards and interpretations approved by either the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) or the IFRS Interpretations Committee or their predecessors. The accounting
policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial statements. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in U.S. dollars.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis as well as a going-concern basis
using the historical cost convention modified for certain financial assets that have been measured at fair value.
After reviewing the Company’s current plans and forecasts, the Managing Member considers that the Company
has adequate resources to continue operating for the foreseeable future.

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Managing Member on April 25, 2022.
(b) Basisof Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of the other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Management
must make judgments when it assesses these various elements and all related facts and circumstances to determine
whether control exists.

Investments are classified as associates when it is determined that PIMCO does not control these entities;
however, the Company has significant influence. The Company accounts for investments in associates under the
equity method of accounting. An investment in an associate is recorded at its initial cost and adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in PIMCO'’s share of net assets of the investee. The equity income or loss
primarily represents the Company’s proportionate share of the unrealized and realized gains and losses from
changes in fair value of the investments held by these associates.

In evaluating its involvement with, and exposure to, interests in structured entities, as well as the requirement as
to whether or not any identified interest in a structured entity should be consolidated, the Company considers
factors including the nature of the Company’s investment (if any), the nature of the fees earned by the Company
from the structured entities, powers held by other entities associated with the structured entities, including the
power to direct or control operations, and the rights and restrictions of the investors in the structured entities.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting and similar rights are not the dominant factor
in deciding who controls the entity, for example, when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only, and

key activities are directed by contractual agreement. Structured entities often have restricted activities and a
narrow and well defined objective.

(Continued)
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(c) Cashand Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all liquid financia instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents may include cash on deposit with financia institutions, nonaffiliated
money market accounts, and cash deposited into a cash pool, through AAM LP, administered by Allianz SE.
There was $323.9 million and $347.1 million invested in nonaffiliated money market accounts at December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively. Cash equivalents deposited in the cash pool with Allianz SE totaled $807 thousand
and $2.3 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Management considers investments in money
market accounts to be cash equivaents for purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows. These
investments are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The Company maintains its remaining
cash and cash equivaents in various federally insured banking institutions. The account balances at each
institution generally exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation’s (FDIC) insurance coverage (or similar
federal foreign programs), and as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to amounts in excess of
FDIC insurance coverage.

(d) Investments Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

Investments carried at fair value through profit and loss represent financial assets in the held for trading business
model. Investments held for trading consist primarily of investments in PIMCO pooled funds with a short-to-
moderate term duration objective. Investments held for trading are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognized directly in other income, net in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
Transactions in these investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.

(6 Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it transfers services to customers at an amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange for those services.

Investment Advisory and Administrative Fees

Investment advisory and administrative fees are recognized as the services are performed. These fees are earned in
exchange for investment advisory services and, in many cases, providing or procuring administrative services for
the customer including audit, custodial, portfolio accounting, legal, transfer agency, and printing costs. The
performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day that are substantially the
same. Such fees are primarily based on percentages of the fair value of the assets under management and
recognized for services provided during the period, which are distinct from services provided in other periods. As
the investment advisory and administrative fees are primarily based on a percentage of assets under management,
the consideration for this revenue is variable and deemed constrained due to the dependence on unpredictable
asset values. Revenue is recognized once the constraint is removed which is generally once these values can be
determined.

Private accounts and pooled funds may also generate a fee based on investment performance. The Company may
also receive carried interest from certain alternative investment products that exceed performance hurdles. Such
fees are recognized when it is no longer probable that there will be a significant reversal.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Distribution and Servicing Fees

Distribution and servicing fees are ongoing fees that the Company receives for completing the performance
obligation of distribution and servicing activities on behaf of PIMCO Mutual Funds. For distribution and
servicing fee revenue, the performance obligation is considered a series of distinct services performed each day
that are substantially the same. This revenue is earned ratably over time to match the delivery of the performance
obligation each day over the life of the contract. As the distribution and servicing revenue amounts are based on
percentages of the average daily net assets of the PIMCO Mutual Funds, the consideration for this revenue is
variable and deemed constrained due to dependence of unpredictable asset values. The constraint is removed
once these val ues can be determined.

Contract assets and liabilities

Receivables related to investment advisory and administration revenue are included in investment advisory and
administrative fees receivable in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. Receivables
related to distribution and servicing fees revenue are included in distribution and servicing fees receivable in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition. There was no impairment of any receivables
recognized during the year related to revenue from contracts with customers. There are no contract liabilities
related to these contracts.

() Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Office egquipment,
furniture, and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining terms of the related
leases or the useful lives of such improvements, whichever is shorter.

The assets useful economic lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-end and adjusted if
appropriate. An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the asset, calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item, is included in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income in the year the item is sold or retired.

(g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and assets acquired in a business combination which include
customer relationships, developed technology and trade name. Computer software is amortized on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, generally three to five years. The fair values of the acquired assets were
determined using the multi-period excess earnings method for the customer relationships; the replacement cost
method for the developed technology; and the relief-from-royalty approach for the trade name. The intangible
assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives, which range from 18 months to three years, using the
straight-line method. Certain contracts to manage funds without a specified termination date are classified as
indefinite-lived intangible assets.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(h) Goodwill

On an annual basis, management assesses certain qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of the Company’s reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. This assessment is
performed as of September 30th or sooner if events or circumstances exist that indicate that it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. No impairment charges have been recorded during 2021 or 2020.

(i) Leases

The Company’s leases consist of leases for real estate for corporate offices and other facilities. The Company has
measured the lease liability using its estimated incremental borrowing rate and the index or market rate of variable
lease payments at commencement date. Any subsequent changes to the index or market rate result in a
remeasurement of the lease liability and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. The portion of lease liabilities that
is expected to be extinguished over the next 12 months has been classified as a current liability in the
accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

Certain leases contain an option for the Company to extend the term of the lease. We have included options to
extend the lease term to the extent we are reasonably certain to exercise the options after considering all factors
that create an economic incentive for the Company, including significant leasehold improvements.

We recognize the finance cost of lease payments in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income on a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability each period.
The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease
term and is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low values assets
and short-term leases that have alease term of 12 months or less. Lease payments associated with these leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(i) Interest in Non-consolidated Deferred Compensation Trust

The Company elected the fair value option under IFRS 9 Financial Instruments for the interest in the non-
consolidated deferred compensation trust.

(K Income Taxes
The Company is not subject to U.S. federal income tax as it is organized as a limited liability company and is
taxed as a partnership. Ultimately, the members of PIMCO are responsible for taxes on their proportionate share

of the Company’s taxable income. The Company is subject to state taxes in certain jurisdictions in the United
States.

(Continued)

307/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

Certain consolidated entities are subject to federal, foreign, state, and local income tax, and file separate tax
returns and account for income taxes under the asset and liability method. This method gives recognition to
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the expected future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in the consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for al taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis.

(I) Distributions

Although there is no contractual requirement, PIMCO generally distributes its operating income (as defined in the
Company’s Limited Liability Company Agreement) for each calendar quarter no later than 30 days after the end
of such quarter. At the Company’s discretion, distributions can be reduced in an amount reasonably necessary or
appropriate for the Company to conduct its business in the normal course.

(m) Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company accounts for share-based payment arrangements by determining the value of employee services
received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant date fair value of the share-based
award. The cost of employee services is recognized as an expense, with a corresponding increase to capital, over
the period during which an employee provides service in exchange for the share-based payment award. As the
Company’s equity instruments have no publicly traded market price, fair value is determined by the Company’s
management based in part on a comprehensive analysis of trading values of comparable public entities, discounted
cash flows, market transactions of comparable entities, and consideration as to the Company’s historical and
forecasted financial performance.

(n) Marketing and Promoational

The Company incurs marketing expenses to promote its products to retail and institutional investors by creating
marketing materials and supporting third party intermediaries. The Company expenses marketing and
promotional fees asincurred.

(0) Foreign Currency Trandation

The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries have been translated into U.S. dollars at the current rate of
exchange existing at year-end. Revenues and expenses are translated primarily at the exchange rate on the date on
which the transactions are recognized. The effects of translating the results of operations of subsidiaries with a
functional currency other than the U.S. dollar are included in other comprehensive income or loss. The cumulative
trandlation adjustment of translating the balance sheet of subsidiaries with a functional currency other than the
U.S. dollar is included as a component of capital in the consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(p) Useof Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
estimates and assumptions about future events. These estimates and the underlying assumptions affect the
amounts of assets and liabilities reported, disclosures about contingent assets and liahilities, reported amounts of
revenues and expenses, and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements. These estimates and
assumptions are based on management’s best judgment. Management evaluates its estimates and assumptions on
an ongoing basis using historical experience and other known factors, including the current economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such
estimates and assumptions when facts and circumstances dictate. As future events and their effects cannot be
determined with precision, actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. Changes in those
estimates resulting from continuing changes in the economic environment will be reflected in the financial
statements in future periods as they occur. Management believes that the significant areas where judgment is
necessarily applied are those which relate to the:

Measurement of share-based payment arrangements, which includes estimates of fair value of the Company’
s membership units. These estimates can be particularly sensitive to assumptions in regards to the Company’
sfuture earnings; and

Assessment of provisions.

Critical judgments have been made by management in applying accounting policies. Those that have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements include the following:

Evaluation of the measurement criteria associated with the recognition of revenues associated with
performance fees (as discussed in note 2(€)).

Evaluation of control associated over entities (as discussed in note 2(b)), and the impact to consolidation of
such entities.

(@ Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. The amount
recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the obligation at the reporting date. If the effect is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. Future events that
may affect the amount required to settle an obligation are reflected in the amount of a provision where there is
sufficient objective evidence that they will occur. Where some or al of the expenditure is expected to be
reimbursed by insurance or some other party, and it is virtually certain, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset on the consolidated statements of financial condition, and the amount is recorded in the
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(r) Deferred Compensation

The Company accounts for its deferred compensation liability in accordance with IAS 19 and adjusts the carrying
value of the liability for changes in the fair value of the interest in the non-consolidated deferred compensation
trust in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and compensation and benefits in the
accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(s General and administrative

General and administrative expenses are mainly comprised of costs related to performance obligations under the
administrative fees contracts that do not meet the criteria as costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The Company is
considered the principal in these arrangements and recogni zes these costs on a gross basis.

(3 Fair Vaue of Financia Instruments

IFRS 7 requires that financial instruments carried at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial
condition are classified into a three-level hierarchy depending on the valuation techniques used and whether the
inputs to those valuation techniques are observable in the market.

Level 1 - Financia instruments for which the fair value is determined by using quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities are classified into this category. A financial instrument is
regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily available and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

Level 2 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with
any significant input being based on observable market data (observable inputs), are classified into this
category.

Level 3 - Financial instruments for which the fair value is determined by using valuation techniques, with at
least one significant input not being based on observable market data (nonobservable inputs), are classified
into this category.

The Company has evaluated its investments carried at fair value through profit and loss totaling $29.7 million and
$30.9 million as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and determined that based on the unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets used to determine fair value that the investments are classified as Level 1
instruments.

The underlying investments of the non-consolidated deferred compensation trust consist of mutual funds and
equity securities which are classified as Level 1 instruments, and investment partnerships which are measured at
net asset value (NAV) of the respective investment partnership at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

There have been no changes to the Company’s valuation policies during the year ended December 31, 2021 or
2020.

The fair value of investment advisory fees and administrative fees receivable, distribution and servicing fees
receivable, receivables from affiliates, and payables to affiliates has been deemed to approximate their carrying
value through reference to their short maturity as well as low credit risk. The fair value of short-term borrowings
from affiliates is based upon the Company’s comparison to current market rates available to the Company for
comparable debt. It isthe Company’s intention to hold such instruments until maturity or collection.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(4) Property and Equipment

The major classifications of property and equipment are as follows:

Office
equipment,
furniture, and Leasehold
fixtures improvements Art Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 49,845,420 88,261,081 1,021,436 139,127,937
Additions 8,445,092 1,289,112 50,174 9,784,378
Disposals (12,114) - - (12,114)
Depreciation and amortization (16,946,736) (10,841,783) - (27,788,519)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 41,331,662 78,708,410 1,071,610 121,111,682
Additions 11,894,806 5,334,168 140 17,229,114
Disposals (1,665) - - (1,665)
Depreciation and amortization (15,475,576) (11,569,501) - (27,045,077)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 37,749,227 72,473,077 1,071,750 111,294,054

The Company recorded depreciation and amortization expense of $27.0 million and $27.8 million during 2021
and 2020, respectively, which is included in occupancy and equipment in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income.

(5) Intangible Assets

The major classifications of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Customer Developed Trade
Software Relationships  Technology Name Tota
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2019 $ 5,711,545 23,520,000 793,103 100,000 30,124,648
Additions 13,838,448 - - - 13,838,448
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (5,879,698) (2,080,000) (637,931) (100,000)  (8,697,629)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2020 13,670,295 21,440,000 155,172 - 35,265,467
Additions 4,902,545 - - - 4,902,545
Disposals - - - - -
Amortization (4,948,015)  (2,080,000) (155,172) - (7,183187)
Carrying amount as of
December 31, 2021 $ 13,624,825 19,360,000 - - 32,984,825

The Company recorded amortization expense of $7.2 million and $8.7 million during 2021 and 2020,
respectively, which is included in other expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(6) Related-Party Transactions

PIMCO and its subsidiaries reimburse AAM LP and AAM LLC for certain overhead, administrative services, and
occupancy costs, including short-term lease costs, that are allocated based on time and usage factors. These
expenses generally consist of rental costs and salaries and related benefits for legal, internal audit, and other
general and administrative services. The amount charged for such services totaled $23.6 million and $24.7 million
during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which is a component of general and administrative and occupancy and
equipment in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The payable to affiliates includes
a liability to be paid to AAM LP and AAM LLC in connection with these services, as well as payables to other
affiliates in connection with services they have provided to PIMCO and for expenses that have been paid on
behalf of PIMCO over the ordinary course of business, totaling $21.5 million and $8.6 million as of December 31,
2021 and 2020, respectively.

From time to time, short-term interest-bearing advances are granted between AAM LP and PIMCO for generaly
less than 90 days, at arate of overnight LIBOR plus 0.2% to cover short-term operating cash needs. During 2021
and 2020, PIMCO borrowed and fully repaid several of these short-term cash loans from AAM LP to cover its
operating cash needs. At December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020, PIMCO had no outstanding short-term
loans. During 2021 and 2020, PIMCO incurred $102 thousand and $373 thousand, respectively, in interest
expense on loans, which is included in other expenses in the consolidated statements of income and
comprehensive income.

The Company earns investment advisory fees, administrative fees, and distribution and servicing fees from
affiliated fund complexes, which comprise substantially all of the amounts included in the consolidated statements
of income and comprehensive income as investment advisory fees - pooled funds, administrative fees - pooled
funds, and distribution and servicing fees, respectively. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had $1.0 billion
(2020: $822.6 million) in related receivables from affiliated fund complexes.

The Company manages private accounts for certain affiliated subsidiaries of Allianz SE. Investment advisory fees
earned on these accounts totaled $55.9 million and $52.4 million during 2021 and 2020, respectively, which are
primarily included in investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated statements of
income and comprehensive income.

Allianz Life Insurance of North America, an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE, provides certain
services on behalf of the Company to certain variable annuity and/or variable life insurance contracts invested in
PIMCO Funds. The total fees paid for these services by the Company were $7.3 million and $7.8 million during
2021 and 2020, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses and marketing and
promotional expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
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PACIFIC INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT COMPANY LLC
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

For certain advisory contracts with institutional clients, the Company shares the responsibility of fulfilling such
service contracts with PEG and its branches, a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz Asset Management GmbH,
who in turn, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Allianz SE. PEG, together with all of the PIMCO subsidiaries, are
subject to PIMCO’ s Global Transfer Pricing Policy (Transfer Pricing Policy) for shared management services that
are provided by al PIMCO entities. Shared management services provided include portfolio management, account
management, and business management and administration. Revenues earned from third parties for shared
management services are alocated in accordance with the Transfer Pricing Policy. In 2021, the revenue earned
from third parties for shared management services allocated to PEG was $400.4 million (2020: $147.3 million)
and the revenue allocated from PEG was $41.6 million (2020: $55.1 million) and are presented within investment
advisory fees - pooled funds and investment advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income and comprehensive income. In addition, costs for performing other shared services are
allocated to PEG based on headcount and estimated time and usage factors. During 2021, costs allocated to PEG
were $85.8 million (2020: $41.3 million) and are included as a reduction of compensation and benefits and
general and administrative in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.
As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a $26.2 million (2020: $13.5 million) receivable from PEG and a
$74.1 million (2020: $28.8 million) payable to PEG, which are included within receivables from affiliates and
payablesto affiliates, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition.

AAM LP has a $600.0 million revolving credit facility with Allianz SE to cover short-term operating cash needs,
which expires in November 2023. The facility permits short-term borrowings at a floating rate of interest of
LIBOR plus 20bps (interest rate of 0.264% as of December 31, 2021) until LIBOR has ceased to be quoted, at
which time the parties of the agreement shall determine in good faith and in line with market practice the
successor rate of LIBOR. To the extent necessary, AAM LP could draw on this revolving credit facility on behalf
of its subsidiaries, including PIMCO. There were no amounts outstanding under this agreement at December 31,
2021 and 2020.

Managing Directors and certain other executive officers are considered to be key members of management.
Management believes that these individuals provide significant contributions to the Company. In return for their
service, they receive remuneration, which management believes to be in line with its select group of peers. In
addition to an annual base salary, key management participates in certain benefit plans, some of which are
discussed in note 7. Total compensation of key members of management comprises the majority of compensation
and benefits included in the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 and 2020

(7) Benefit Plans
(@) ClassM Unit Equity Participation Plan

PIMCO has established a Class M Unit Equity Participation Plan (the M Unit Plan) for certain individuals
providing services to PIMCO and certain of its affiliates. Participants in the M Unit Plan are granted options to
acquire M units, which vest in one third increments on the third, fourth, and fifth anniversary of the option grant
date. M unit options are converted to M units based on the appreciation of fair value of the M unit over the related
vesting period. At the exercise date, vested options will be automatically exercised in a cashless transaction unless
the participant has elected to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan. As disclosed in note 7
(©), participants can defer their M units into the AAM LP Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. If, at the time
of vesting, the PIMCO Class M unit estimated fair value is less than the exercise price of the option award, no
Class M units will be issued. Class M units are nonvoting units of PIMCO and entitle the holder to receive
quarterly distributions in accordance with the Company’s Second Amended and Restated Limited Liability
Company Agreement. Those participants electing to defer the receipt of M units through the M Unit Deferral Plan
continue to receive quarterly distributions.

A maximum of 250,000 M units were originally authorized for issuance under the M Unit Plan. During 2020, the
M Unit Plan was amended to stop the granting of options to acquire M units and resulting in no M units being
issued, except pursuant to the exercise of options that were outstanding prior to the plan amendment. As of
December 31, 2021 and 2020, 102,231 and 148,726 M unit options, respectively, were outstanding and 74,205 M
units have been issued from the exercise of options as of December 31, 2021.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black Scholes option pricing model.
The model requires management to develop estimates regarding certain input variables. A third-party valuation
was completed to assist management in determining the fair value of a Class M unit. The dividend yield was
estimated based upon the historical Operating Profit Available for Distribution to M unit holders. Expected
volatilities are based on the average historical and implied volatility of a select group of peers using the Merton
Method. The expected life was calculated based upon treating the three vesting tranches (one third in years 3, 4,
and 5) as separate options.

No M unit options were granted during 2021. The following table provides the assumptions used in calculating the
fair value of the M unit options granted during 2020:

2020
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 17,806
Assumptions:
Expected term (years) 3.84
Expected volatility 25.1%
Expected dividends 11.1%
Risk free rate of return 0.6%

A summary of the activity in 2021 and 2020 related to the number and weighted average exercise price of the M
unit options outstanding and exercisable is as follows:

(Continued)
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Weighted
average
Number of options grant date
Vested Nonvested Tota fair vaue
Outstanding at
December 31, 2019 - 153,400 153,400 $ 13,492
Changes during the year:
Granted - 29,802 29,802 17,806
Vested 27,775 (27,775) - -
Exercised (27,775) - (27,775) 11,567
Forfeited - (6,701) (6,701) 14,146
Outstanding at
December 31, 2020 - 148,726 148,726 $ 14,674
Changes during the year:
Granted - - - -
Vested 41,017 (41,017) - -
Exercised (41,017) - (41,017) 12,967
Forfeited - (5,478) (5,478) 15,218
Outstanding at
December 31, 2021 - 102,231 102,231 $ 15,330
Exercisable as of
December 31, 2021 - - - 3% -

The M unit options outstanding as of December 31, 2021 have an exercise price between $11,804 and $17,806
and aweighted average remaining contractua life of 1.99 years.

The weighted average fair value per unit at the date the options were exercised was $20,924 for 2021 and $17,806
for 2020. M unit options totaling 41,017 vested during 2021. On March 31, 2021 and September 28, 2021, these
vested awards exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance
of approximately 15,597 M Units. As of December 31, 2021, 73,774 M units are owned by current and former
employees and 431 M units are owned by AAM LLC.

M unit options totaling 27,775 vested during 2020. On March 30, 2020, these vested awards exercised under the
cashless exercise feature provided in the M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 9,732 M units.

The fair value of M unit option awards is amortized to compensation expense on a graded vesting attribution
method over the related vesting period of each separate tranche. The total number of M unit option awards
expected to vest is adjusted for estimated forfeitures. Compensation expense recognized under the M Unit Plan
during 2021 and 2020 was $11.6 million and $15.5 million, respectively, and is included in compensation and
benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. As of December 31,
2021, the total estimated compensation cost related to nonvested M unit option awards, net of estimated
forfeitures, expected to be recognized in future periods through December 31, 2025 is $12.7 million.
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(b) Savingsand Investment Plans

AAM LP isthe sponsor of adefined contribution employee savings and retirement plan covering substantially all
employees of the Company and subsidiaries. The plan qualifies under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue
Code and allows eligible employees to contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, as defined, and is
subject to a maximum dollar amount determined from time to time by the Internal Revenue Code. Employees are
generally eligible to participate on the first day of the month following their start date. After the completion of one
year of credited service, the Company matches an amount of annual compensation, subject to Internal Revenue
Code limits, contributed by the employees. In addition, certain subsidiaries can contribute an additional amount to
the plan of eligible compensation to the retirement plan. The amount expensed by the Company related to this
plan during 2021 and 2020 was $59.1 million and $55.1 million, respectively, and is included in compensation
and benefits in the accompanying consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income.

(c) Executive Deferred Compensation Plan

AAM LP has anonqualified deferred compensation plan pursuant to which a portion of the compensation accrued
by the Company and subsidiaries and otherwise payable to certain eligible employees may be deferred at the
election of the employees. The plan is maintained primarily for the purpose of providing deferred compensation
for a select group of management or highly compensated employees, within the meaning of Sections 201(2), 301
(a)(3), and 401(a)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. Amounts deferred
under the plan are invested in marketable securities and M units or other investment partnerships as directed by
the employees and are held in a grantor trust. The assets held in grantor trust are not available to fund ongoing
activities of the Company and only would be available to the Company’s creditors in the event of insolvency.
Total investments and restricted cash and cash equivalents held in trust and the related liability at December 31,
2021 and 2020 was $1.2 hillion and $874.8 million, respectively, and are included in interest in non-consolidated
deferred compensation trust and deferred compensation on the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
condition.

(8) IncomeTax
The provisions for income tax expense (benefits) are as follows:

Year ended December 31

2021 2020
Current:

Federal $ 81,038 29,332
State 3,988,116 3,432,731
Foreign 115,094,758 121,394,722
Tota current 119,163,912 124,856,785

Deferred:
Foreign (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total deferred (11,685,074) (20,864,965)
Total provision $ 107,478,838 103,991,820

(Continued)
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The differences between the reported amount of income tax expense and the amount that would result from
applying the federal corporate statutory tax rates to pretax income arise primarily from the Company’s status as a
partnership for U.S. tax purposes as well as the effects of state and international taxes and nondeductible expense.

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, income taxes payable amounted to $32.8 million and $23.2 million,
respectively, and are included in accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial condition. Additionally, at December 31, 2021 and 2020, deferred tax assets amounted to
$54.8 million and $44.8 million, respectively. Deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2021 and 2020, amounted
to $285 thousand and $247 thousand, respectively. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are included in
other noncurrent assets and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the accompanying consolidated statements

of financial condition.

(9) Lease Arrangements

The following table represents lease costs that are included in the accompanying consolidated statements of

income and comprehensive income:

Depreciation of ROU asset

Interest expense on lease liabilities
Variable lease cost

Short-term lease cost

Expenses of leases of low value assets

Y ear ended December 31

2021 2020
$ 31,256,186 29,593,350
5,443,382 6,304,014
312,947 240,983
578,204 376,312
1,319,717 2,179,123

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, total cash outflow for leases amounted to $40.9 million and

$39.8 million, respectively.

The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2021:

Year ending December 31
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Total operating lease payments
Lessimputed interest

Present value of lease liabilities

$ 35,796,969
37,499,114
23,189,168
34,006,401
33,302,410
69,700,751

233,494,813
(19,310,763)

$ 214,184,050

(Continued)
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The following table represents a maturity analysis of the Company’s lease liabilities as of December 31, 2020:

Year ending December 31.

2021 $ 38,461,023
2022 34,822,467
2023 36,457,152
2024 22,087,757
2025 32,862,009
Thereafter 96,750,859
Total operating lease payments 261,441,267
Lessimputed interest (24,146,287)
Present value of lease liabilities $ 237,294,980

(10) Financia Risk Management
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk

Liquidity risk

Market Risk
Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. Management continually monitors the
Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and control is achieved.
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s

activities. Management reports its significant activity to the Risk and Controls Committee of Allianz Asset
Management GmbH, a subsidiary of Allianz SE.

(@ Credit Risk

Credit risk isthe risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to afinancial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers, bank
deposits, and investment securities.

Investment advisory and other receivables: The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the Company’s client base, including the default
risk of the industry and country in which client operates, has less of an influence on credit risk. However,
geographically there is no concentration of credit risk, and no single customer who is individually material to the
Company’s operations.

(Continued)
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The creditworthiness of customersis assessed as part of new client acceptance procedures. The Company does not
require collateral in respect of trade or other receivables, but monitors the assets under management for each
customer in relation to their outstanding receivable balance. The Company has an excellent history of collection
on outstanding receivables and establishes an allowance for impairment only when an individual customer has
been identified as at risk for collection.

Interest Bearing Deposits with Banks: The interest bearing deposits with banks are due from major institutions.
The Company reviews the creditworthiness of such banks and does not deal with such institutions if it is not
satisfied with the institution’s financia strength.

Investments: The Company’s investments are within investment vehicles, which it manages subject to detailed
investment guidelines. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure that the individual vehicles operate within
their applicable credit and liquidity risk limitations.

(b) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The mgjority of non-derivative financial
liahilities have a contractual maturity of less than six months at December 31, 2021.

The Company seeks to actively monitor its cash flow requirements. Typically, the Company ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financia obligations;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters. In addition, the Company has accessto AAM LP's line of credit with Allianz SE as discussed in note 6.

(c) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financia instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the
return.

Currency risk: The Company is exposed to currency risk on revenues, purchases, and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the Company. The magjority of the Company’s
transactions are in U.S. dollars, but transactions in foreign currencies also occur on a more limited basis by the
Company’s international subsidiaries.

The Company considers its exposure to currency risk to be limited, and currently does not actively employ any
hedging or other techniquesto limit such risk.

Interest rate risk: The Company is subject to interest rate risk only to the extent of its borrowing arrangements
with affiliates, al of which are short term in nature. As management considers this risk to be minimal, no active
hedging or other strategies are employed to limit such risk.
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Other market price risk: Market price risk arises from investment securities held within the investment funds the
Company holds and manages, each of which are subject to specific investment guidelines. Material investments in
such funds are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell decisions are made in accordance with client
guidelines or the funds governing documents.

In monitoring the Company’s exposure to market risks, management evaluates the Company’s sensitivity to
changes in currency rates, interest rates, and other market risk factors. As of December 31, 2021, there were no
changes in such factors that were deemed reasonably possible that would have resulted in any material differences
to members capital as of December 31, 2021 or the reported comprehensive income for the year then ended.

(d) Capital Management

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to preserve investor, creditor, and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s approach
to capital management during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries, with the exception of Pl
LLC (see note 1) and certain foreign subsidiaries, are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

(11) Provisions

The Company is subject to various pending and threatened legal actions as well as regulatory inquiries, which
arise in the normal course of business. In the opinion of management, the disposition of these matters currently
pending and threatened will not have a material adverse effect on PIMCO and its subsidiaries financia position,
results of operations, or cash flows. Management believes that they have made appropriate estimates for
provisions in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition and in the accompanying
consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income. The Company expenses related legal fees as
incurred.

In early 2020, the existence of a new coronavirus (COVID-19) was confirmed which spread across a significant
number of countries leading to disruption to economic activity and globa markets. Given the inherent
uncertainties, it is not practical to determine what impact COVID-19 will have on the Company in the future.

(12) Interest in Unconsolidated Structured Entities

The Company manages a number of structured products and other funds for the purpose of investing monies on
behalf of the Company’s clients in a range of investment strategies. In most cases investment vehicles managed
by the Company have substantive removal or liquidation rights. Investment vehicles for which substantive
removal or liquidation rights do not exist have been identified as structured entities. The vehicles are separate
legal entities, and are financed by investments made by the Company’s clients. The Company is paid for the
investment management services it provides to the vehicle directly from the vehicle.

The Company earned $3.3 million and $731 thousand in investment advisory fees from structured entities during
2021 and 2020, respectively, which is included in investment advisory fees - pooled funds and investment
advisory fees - private accounts in the accompanying statements of income and comprehensive income.

The following table summarizes both the size of the unconsolidated investment vehicles where substantive

removal or liquidation rights do not exist and the Company’s interests in those vehicles:
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December 31
2021 2020
Net assets of unconsolidated structured
entities $ 2,408,685,532 $ 582,606,016
Investment advisory fees
receivable - pooled funds and private accounts 567,143 222,021

The Company’s maximum exposure to loss from unconsolidated structured entities is limited to the investment
advisory fees receivable.

(13) Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated events occurring after the date of the consolidated statements of financial condition
through April 25, 2022, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued to determine
whether any subsequent events necessitated adjustment to or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements,
noting the Company has identified the following events to disclose:

PIMCO M unit options totaling 38,253 vested subsequent to the date of the consolidated statements of financial
condition. On March 31, 2022, these vested awards were exercised under the cashless exercise feature provided
inthe M Unit Plan, resulting in the issuance of approximately 16,727 M units.

On February 1, 2022, the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) has replaced LIBOR for AAM LP's
revolving credit facility with Allianz SE (as discussed in note 6).

In late February 2022, Russia commenced a military attack on Ukraine. The outbreak of hostilities between the
two countries could result in more widespread conflict and could have a severe adverse effect on the region and
global supply chains. In addition, current and future sanctions imposed on Russia by the global community could
have a significant adverse impact on the Russian and global economy. The extent, duration, or repercussions of
such military actions are impossible to predict, but could result in significant market disruption. As a result of
such events, the Company has experienced negative portfolio returns on managed assets, but the events have not
resulted in a material adverse impact to the Company. Given the inherent uncertainties, it is not practical to
determine the overall impact to the Company or to provide a quantitative estimate of any future impact.
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30

1,117,718,214 154,949,276
22,187,248 3,075,818
583,419,002 80,879,376
296,058,867 41,042,641
48,191,354 6,680,767
16,822,230 2,332,066
24,264,674 3,363,812
32,472,086 4,501,605
86,134,876 11,940,878
2,227,268,551 308,766,239
102,056,187 14,148,049
158,562,406 21,981,506
1,006,816,397 139,574,957
30,865,176 4,278,839
29,986,888 4,157,082
32,907,785 4,562,006
58,124,696 8,057,827
1,419,319,535 196,760,267
3,646,588,086 505,526,506
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419,088,130 58,098,187
578,771,182 80,235,049

64,870,656 8,993,019

33,834,936 4,690,537

81,830,157 11,344,115

24,264,674 3,363,812

4,490,265 622,485

1,207,150, 000 167,347,205

1,006,816,397 139,574,957

164,933,641 22,864,751

115,010,504 15,943,906

3,615,936 501,277

1,290,376,478 178,884,891

2,497,526,478 346,232,096

850,000 (133,718,082) (18,537,338)
150,000 1,281,455,256 177,648,142
90,933 71,204,614 9,871,096
60,434 21,195,975 2,938,398
(91,076, 155) (12,625,887)

1,149,061,608 159,294,411

3,646,588,086 505,526,506
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2022 30

1,918,013,768 265,894,249
538,043,676 74,588,995
607,567,041 84,227,019
150,045,251 20,800,773

20,791,015 2,882,258

3,234,460,751 448,393,294
958,156,841 132,829,283
239,330,399 33,178,373
321,577,100 44,580,233
117,015,533 16,221,863

90,846,357 12,594,030
55,319,442 7,668,934
17,426,195 2,415,793
21,870,339 3,031,885
1,821,542,206 252,520,396
1,412,918,545 195,872,898

(175,838,837) (24,376,538)

(2,646,132) (366,833)
(4,080,832) (565,726)
1,230,352,744 170,563,801
49,153,693 6,814,176
1,181,199,051 163,749,624

(38,367,407) (5,318,874)

1,142,831,644 158,430,751
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2022 30
850,000 (6,433,247) (891,841) 150,000 1,333,506,696 184,864,033 74,205 69,610,604 9,650,118
820,500,299 113,745,956 263,510,464 36,530,456 97,188,288 13,473,212
(954,645,277) (132,342,475) (315,561,904) (43,746,347) (105,822,415)  (14,670,161)
2,254,593 312,554
4,605,550 638,467 10,228,137 1,417,927
850,000 (133,718,082) (18,537,338) 150,000 1,281,455,256 177,648,142 90,933 71,204,614 9,871,096
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2022 30

102,231 32,603,374 4,532,282 (52,708,748) (7,307,014) 1,376,668,679 190,847,579
1,181,199,051 163,749,624
(1,376,029,596) (190, 758,983)
2,254,593 312,554
3,336,288 462,510 3,336,288 462,510

(14,833,687) (2,056,394)
(38,367,407) (5.318,874) (38,367,407) (5.318,874)
60,434 21,195,975 2,938,398 (91,076,155) (12,625,887) 1,149,061,608 159,294,411
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2022 30

1,181,199,051

163,749,624

3,290,743 456,196
35,746,934 4,955,597
2,646,132 366,833
4,080,832 565,726
1,007,455 139,663
13,890, 086 1,925,583
(7,530,911) (1,044,010)
(73,464,851) (10,184,432)
(2,646,132) (366,833)

0
436,774,977 60,550,115
(27,259,715) (3,779,014)
284,964,118 39,504,576
(20,389,461) (2,826,591)

1,832,309,258

254,013,032

(5,216,311) (723,137)
(636,025) (88,172)
(5,852,336) (811,309)
579,000,000 80,266,770

(579,000,000)

(1,376,029,596)
2,254,593

(17,794,390)

(80,266,770)
(190, 758,983)
312,554
(2,466,836)

(1,391,569,393)

(192,913, 265)

(38,367,407) (5,318,874)
396,520,122 54,969,585
721,198,092 99,979,691

1,117,718,214

154,949,276
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Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
2022 984,456,267.25 1,364 7,517
PIMCO
PIMCO 1971 1940

PIMCO

PIMCO

Maples

Trustee Services Bermuda Limited

2022 25 3,466

2016

Brown Brothers Harriman and Company

2022 10 4,000 1,441 7,520

Brown Brothers Harriman  Luxembourg S.C.A

2022 1,209 16 7,604

1989
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund, PIMCO
Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund, PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond
Fund (M), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged), PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund Il, PIMCO
Euro Total Return Fund, PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (collectively referred to as the
“Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of investments, as of May 31,
2022 and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets, and for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO
Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, including the related notes, and the financial highlights for the year
then ended (collectively referred to as the "financial statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all materia respects, the financial position of
each of the Funds as of May 31, 2022, and the results of each of their operations, changes in each of their net assets, and
for PIMCO Real Return Fund and PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund each of their cash flows, and each of the financial
highlights for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America

Basisfor Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Funds and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Satements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,

considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for one
year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.
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Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or error, and
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Funds
internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial
doubt about the Funds ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during
the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Boston, MA
August 17, 2022

361/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 2020 12 31

2021 2020 12 31

12

362/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 25

363/369



EDINETOOOO
OO000DOo0oDoooDo0obDo00bDo0o0oo00b0o00oOO(ELs034)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Report of Independent Auditors

To the Management of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Pacific Investment Management Company LLC
and its subsidiaries (the “ Company”), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December
31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of changes in capital
and of cash flows for the years then ended, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated
financia statements’).

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International

Accounting Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US
GAAYS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsihilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Company and to
meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of consolidated financia statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern for at least, but not limited to, twelve months from the end of the reporting period,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic aternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as awhole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on
atest basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e FEvauate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise

substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for areasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during

the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Los Angeles, California
April 25, 2022
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Trustee and Management of PIMCO Bermuda Trust

We have audited the accompanying financia statements of each of the funds indicated in the table below (collectively
referred to as the “Funds’), which comprise the statements of assets and liabilities, including the schedules of
investments, as of May 31, 2021, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and
the financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table below. These financial statements and financia highlights
are hereafter collectively referred to as“financial statements.”

PIMCO Bermuda Foreign Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund 11 (1)
PIMCO Bermuda U.S. Low Duration Fund (1) PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund (2)
PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (JTF) (1) PIMCO Real Return Fund (2)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (M) (1) PIMCO Short-Term Strategy (1)

PIMCO Emerging Markets Bond Fund (Y en-Hedged) (1)

(1) Statements of operations and of changes in net assets and the financial highlights for the year ended May 31,
2021

(2) Statements of operations, of changes in net assets and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year
ended May 31, 2021

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of materia
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the Funds preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Funds internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financia statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
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In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of

each of the Funds indicated in the table above as of May 31, 2021, and the results of each of their operations, the changes
in each of their net assets, and for PIMCO Euro Total Return Fund and PIMCO Rea Return Fund each of their cash
flows, and each of their financial highlights for the periods indicated in the table above, in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
August 12, 2021
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